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VIA OVERNIGHT MAIL

Florida Public service Commission v

Division of Communications, Certification = _’-»’-
and Compliance Section

2540 Shumard Oak Boulevard

Re:  Application of Digital Services Corporation for Authority to Provide
Alternative Local Exchange Service Within the State of Floridu

Dear Chief Clerk:

Transmitted herewith for filing on behalf of Digital Services Corporation ("DSC) is
an original and six (6) copies of its Application and Exhibits to obtin authority to provide
alternative local exchange service within the State of Florida.  As DSC s cager to commence
providing service in Florida, it hereby requests expeditious processing of this Application.

A check in the amount of $250.00 has been enclosed to cover the filing fee associated
with this Application.

1400 SIXTEENTH STREET, N. W.




Florida Public Service Commission
November 18, 1996
Page 2

So that we may have proof of receipt of this filing, please date-stamp as received the
extra copy of this Application and return it in the self-addressed stamped envelope.

Please do not hesitate to contact the undersigned directly should you need any
additional information.

Sincerely,
4 .
f \ v [ J_f R

Terri B. Natohi
Counsel for Digital Services Corporation

Enclosures
4700
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FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION

CAPITAL CIRCLE OFFICE CENTER - 2540 SHUMARD OAK BOULEVARD

TALLAHASSEE, FLORIDA 32399-0850

APPLICATION FORM
for

AUTHORITY TO PROVIDE ALTERNATIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE
WITHIN THE STATE OF FLORIDA

5.

INSTRUCT IONS

This form is used for an original application for a certificate and
for approval of sale, assignment or transfer of an existing
alternative local exchange certificate. In case of a sale,
assignment or transfer, the information provided shall be for the
purchaser, assignee or transferee.

Respond to each item requested in the application and appendices.
If an item is not applicable, please explain why.

Use a separate sheet for each answer which will not fit the allotted
space.

If you have questions about completing the form, contact:

Florida Public Service Commission

Division of Communications, Certification & Compliance Section

2540 Shumard 0ak Boulevard
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-0866
(904) 413-6600

Once completed, submit the original and six (6) <opies of this form
along with a non-refundable application fee ~f 3250 made payable to
the Florida Public Service Commission at the above address.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.




This is an application for (check one):

(%)

Original authority (new company)

() Approval of transfer (to another certificated company)
Example, a certificated company purchases

an existing company and desires to retain
the original certificate authority.

() Approval of assignment of existing certificate (to a
noncertificated company)

Example, a non-certificated company
purchases an existing company and desires
to retain the certificate of authority
rather than apply for a new certificate.

()

Approval for transfer of control (to another certificated company)
Example, a company purchases 51% of a

certificated company. The Commission must
approve the new controlling entity.

2. Name of applicant:
Digital Services Corporation
3. A. National mailin

g address including street name, number, post office
box, city , state, zip code, and phone number.

Digital Services Corporation
2300 Clarendon Boulevard,
Arlington, VA 2220]

Telephone:  (703) 528B-8787

B. Florida mailing address including street name, number, post
office box, city , state, zip code, and phone number.

Suite HOO

N/A

C. Physical address of alternative local exchange service in Florida
including street name, number, post office box, city, zip code and phone
number . 35(_' is st ili in the process of 1ddent hy: q ?11-- [:r'lpr."lilﬂ‘
“location within the state that will serve as the site for its
local exchange scrvice ollice. As

soon as this location is
determined DSC will promptly notify the Commission.

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.




10.

11.

Structure of organization:

( ) Individual ( ) Corporation

A Foreign Corporation ( ) Foreign Partnership
( ) General Partnership ( ) Limited Partnership
( ()

) Joint Venture Other, Please explain

If incorporated, please provide prooi from the Florida Secretary of State
that the applicant has authority to operate in Florida.

Corporate charter number: 96000002045

Name under which the applicant will do business (d/b/a):

Digital Services Corporation

If applicable, please provide proof of fictitious name (d/b/a)
registration.

Fictitious name registration number: N/A

If applicant is an individual, partnership, or joint venture, please
give name, title and address of each legal entity.

N/A

State whether any of the officers, directors, or any of the ten largest
stockholders have previously been adjudged bankrupt, mentally incompetent,
or found guilty of any felony or of any crime, or whether such actions may
result from pending proceedings. If so, please explain.

No.

Please provide the name, title, address, telephor: number, internet
address, and facsimile number for the person servirg as ongoing liaison
with the Commission, and if different, the liaisor responsible for this
application.

See Exhibit A
Please 1ist other states in which the applicant is currently providing or

has Iapplied to provide local exchange or alternative local exchange
service.

Sec Exhibit B

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.



12.

13.

14,

15.

Has the applicant been denied certification in any other state? If so,
please list the state and reason for denial.

No.

Have penalties been imposed against the applicant in any other state? If
so, please list the state and reason for penalty.

No.

Please indicate how a customer can file a service complaint with your
company.

Sce Exhibit C

Please provide all available documentation demonstrating that the
applicant has the following capabilities to provide alternative local
exchange service in Florida. Sce Exhibit D

-

A. Financial capability.
Regarding the showing of financial capability, the following appliés:

The application should contain the applicant’s financial statements,
including:

1. the balance sheet
2. income statement
3. statement of retained earnings for the most recent 3 years.

If available, the financial statements should be audited financial
statements.

If the applicant does not have audited financial statements, it shall
be so stated. The unaudited financial statements should then be signed by
the applicant’s chief executive officer and chief financial officer. The
signatures should affirm that the financial statements are true and
correct.

B. Managerial capability. See Exhibil i

C. Technical capability. Sce Exhibit ¥

FORM PSC/CMU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.




AFFIDAVIT

By my signature below, I, the undersigned officer, attest to
the accuracy of the information contained in this application and
attached documents and that the applicant has the technical
expertise, managerial ability, and financial capability to provide
alternative local exchange service in the State of Florida. 1 have
read the foregoing and declare that to the best of my knowledge and
belief, the information is true and correct. 1 attest that I have
the authority to sign on behalf of my company and agree to comply,
now and in the future, with all applicable Commission rules and

_orders.

Further, I am aware that pursuant to Chapter 837.06, Florida

Statutes, "Whoever knowingly makes a false statement in writing with
the intent to mislead a public servant in the performance of his

official duty shall be guilty of a misdemeanor of the second degree,
punishable as provided in s. 775.082 and s. 775.083".

o’ A :
s 1N “’c;;f_r’wf-% Sjtl-f'/ !'{f;‘l.’/f (

0ffici
Signature = Date
Title: PRESIDENT (n )/t - 15
Telephone Number
Address: 2o Coe¥ee yiu o e v,

Sw,re  Sco

At rakeTiins vA T2 L

FORM PSC/CHU 8 (07/95)
Required by Chapter 364.337 F.S.
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Exhibit A
Question No. 10

Commission Liaison

Persons to receive correspondence or communications regardimg this application or
DSC's service are as follows:

and copies 1o

Terri B. Natoh

Robert E. Stup. Jr.
Fleischman and Walsh, L.L.P.
1400 Sixteenth Street. N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20036
(202) 939-7900 (Voice)

(202) 745-0916 (Facsimile)

Counsel for Digital Services Corporation

Hal B. Perkins, Esquire

General Counsel

Digital Services Corporation

2300 Chirendon Boulevard, Suite 8K
Arhngton, VA 22201

(703) 528-8787 (Voice)

(703) 527-9433 (Facsimile)



Exhibit BB
Question Noo 11

Other States In Which Applicant Has Applied or Will Apply

to Provide Local Exchange or

Applicant currently has licenses from the Federal Commumications Commussion (the
"1CC") o construct and operate 18 GHz microwave facilines in 26 Standard Mcetropohitan
Statistical Arcas ("SMSAs”) covering approximately 22 states, including the State ot Flonda

It is through these facilities, in comunction with the resale of the local exchange
services of other authorized LECs and ALECS that DSC will provide s local exchange
services.  Accordingly, DSC is in the process of preparing and filing apphications for local
exchange service initially in all of the states where it will have heensed FCC facihnies

These states include:

PUim dida®” ail de

Californmia
Hhmnois

New York
Pennsylvania
Michigan
Texas
Washington, DC
Massiachuscetts
Georgia
Minnesota
Missouri
Arizona
Washington
Colorado
Florida
Ohio
Oregon
Wisconsimn
Indiana
Kansas

New Jersey
Virgina




Fxhubn ¢
Question No. 14

Customer Complaint Process

At the time DSC initiates service, it will have an effective price hist on file with the
Florida Publi¢ Service Commission which will set forth the method by which customers can
file complaints with the company or otherwise inquire about their service. Morcover, at the
time service is commenced for any subscriber, that subscriber will be provided with the
company’s toll free, customer service telephone number, 1-800-689-9367 and a customer
service point of contact for inquiries or complaints regarding any aspect of their service

I W ik ol dh




Exhibit D
ltem 15A

Financial Capability

Attached hereto are financial statements for DSC as of August 31, 1996 As a start
up company which has only been in operation for the past several months, DSC does not
have audited financial statements, nor financial statements for o full year period. As such,
DSC's interim financials have been signed by s chiel executive officer and chief Tinancial
officer affirming that these financials are true and correct.  DSC 1s wholly-owned by Dr
Rajendra Singh and his wife Neera Singh. Dr. Singh and Neera Singh are also the majority
owners of Teicom Ventures, L.L.C. ("Telcom™) a privately held corporation, which, through
its numerous subsidiaries, including LCC International, Inc.. had over $S100,000,000 in
annual revenues during 1995, DSC’s start-up capital has been provided by a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Telcom. While Telcom's financial statements are confidential as a result of the
fact that it is a privately held corporation. Applicant has attached hereto a copy of a pubhicly
avanlable current prospectus dated September 24, 1996 of one of ‘Telcom™s indirect wholly
owned subsidiaries. LCC International, Inc ., an athiliate of DSC, as evidence ol Telcom’s
strong financial position. Morcover, Appheant has attached & commutment letier from
Telcom indicating it will make available 1o DSC whatever funds are necessary to enable 1t to
provide the local service for which it seeks authority in this Application

With respect o the three specilic questions the Commssion has asked repardimg
DSC's fmancial capability: 1) to provide the requested service m the geographic arca
proposed: 2) to maintain the requested service, and 3) to meet its lease or ownership
obligztions, DSC submits that it has the financial capability to mecet all of these requirements.
through the commitment of Telcom to fund its operations, if necessary. until it is capable of
sustaining its own operations.

THN dres? 11140




Digital Services Corporation
Balance Sheet
August 31, 1996

Assels
Current assets:
Cash 2,452
Accounts receivable 3.846
Due from joint venture 90,776
Deposits 1,000
Total current assels 98,074
invesiment in Associaled Communications 1,836,595
License rights, net 60,244
s 1,994,912
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equily
Notes payable 2,139,110
Stockholders' equity:
Commaon stock 800
Additional paid-in capital 85,930
Accumulated deficit (230,928)
Total stockholders' equity (144,198)
5 1,994 912

Kﬂﬂ (o 1e. 5;7 e

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

B leafely

CHIEF :-'mnuc:nl. 5FFICER

The above-signed affirm that this financial statement is
true and correct.

UNAUDITED AND CONFIDENTIAL




Digital Services Corporation
Statement of Operations
August 31, 1996

Revenues 6,298
Cosl of operations
Gross profit 6,298
Selling, general, and administrative expenses:
Renl expense 17,502
Consulting fees 149,492
Legal lees 23,504
Other 20,241
Operaling loss (204,441)

Other income(expense):
Interest income
Iinterest expense

/67'4:%.//;« St

CHIEF ‘EXECUTIVE OFFICER

-) /} Z/Q/Z’f

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

The above-signed affirm that this financial statement is
true and correct.

UNAUDITED AND CONFIDENTIAL




Telcom
Ventures, . «

October 28, 1996

Hal B. Perkins

General Counsel and Assistant Secretary
Digital Services Corporation

2300 Claiendon Boulevard

Suite 8OO

Arlington, VA 22201

Dear Mr. Perkins:

This will confirm the Agreement of Teleom Ventures, LL.C(TV) 10 advance start-up costs
to Digital Services Corporation (DSC). so that DSC may build out its system and operate as a
facilitics based local exchange service provider in the State of Flonda, TV will further advance any
and all deposits that may be required by any other carriers which deposits will be necessary for the

provision of services.
Sincerely,

TELCOM VENTURES, 1L.L.C.

Neera Singh
Vice President

BoA DR AR TR

Artiesigton Couwrthouse Plaea it 2300 Clicendon Boulevarn® Swide 800 Adagton. VA 22201 (703) S8 8787 Fax (703) 2434950




Exhibit I-
ltem 158

Managerial Capability

DSC is wholly owned by Rajendra and Neera Singh, who cach have over twelve (1.0)
years of experience in the telecommunications ficld. Rajendra Singhoas a 1980 graduate ot
Southern Methodist University with a Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering, and s currently the
President of DSC.  In addition, Dr. Singh is the Chairman, CEO and majority owner ol
Telcom Ventures, L.L.C. ("Telcom™). which includes among its subsidiaries Wireless
Ventures of Brazil, Inc.. a majority owner and operator of the largest specialized mobile
radio network in Brazil, and LCC, L.L.C. ("LCC"), the world’s Targest independent
provider of wireless engineering consulting services and related products. LOCC has over 600
employees worldwide and annual revenues of approximately $100 milhon. Telcom also has
majority and minority interests in a wide vaniety of other imternational telecommumeations
propertics.,

Dr. Singh has played a pivotal role in the cellular telephone industry and has
established industry standards for system design and methodology. He organized a
conference on Time Division Multiple Access ("TDMA™) and Code Division Multiple Access
("CDMA"), the two digital standards utilized by the cellular industry i the United States
In addition. Dr. Singh founded and dirccted APPEX Inc., a billing services firm that was
sold to Electronic Data Systems in October 1990,

Neera Singh, Rajendra’s spouse and the Vice President and Sceretary of DSCL has
been an officer and principal executive of Telcom since its inception in 1994, and of LCC
since its founding in 1983,

Rahul Prakash, the Assistant Treasurer and Director of Business Development of
DSC. his over nine years of experience in the telecommunications tield, and has worked
throughout the world consulting with companies in the arca of wireless telecommunications
Among other projects Mr. Prakash was recently mvolved i the winming bid for a GSM
cellular license in Bombay, India and was active in the steerimg committee for i consortium
applying for a cellular license m Holland . Prior to this, he was the Diector ot Business
Development for Telemate, a joint venture between Telcom and France Telcom, which was
based in France.

In addition DSC and another FCC 18 GHz licensee, Microwave Scervices, Inc . have
formed a joint venture limited lability company . Assoctated Communications, Lo1L.C
("Associated”) to act as an agent for a variety of services and management functions
including but not limited to the marketing of services 1o potential customers and management
of the competitive local exchange carrier networks. The Charrman and CEO of Associted i
Mr. Alex Mandl, former President of AT&T, and an individual with numerous years ol

THY ol 2 06




hands-on experience in the business of providing high-quality, faciliies-based
telecommunications services 1o the public.  Applicant’s day to day operations will be
managed by Peter Vouvounas, who has more than twenty five years of experience in the
telecommunications industry.  Mr. Vouvounas, for the past seventeen years, has directed the
development and operation of numerous nationwide and regional radio and wireless networks
for a number of major companies.

Biographical sketches of all of the above-named individuals have been attached hereto

PIiS drans® 11



DIGITAL SERVICES CORPORATION

Dr. Rajendra Singh - Chairman of the Board, President, Chief
Executive Officer and Treasurer

Dr. Singh has been the Chairman ot the Board, Presaident, Chied
Executive Officer and Treasurcr of DSC since its formation in
August 1%93. Dr. Singh also serves as Chairman of the Member:s
Committes, President, Chiel Erxccutive Officer and Treasurer ol
Telcom Ventures, L.L.C. ("lelcom®) since its format ton in January
1994. In addition, Dr. Singh has served as Chailrman, Chied
Execut ivee Ol ficor and Treasurcr ol LCC, L.L.C, ("LCC"}) since he
founded that company in 1983, LCC 15 the world® s leading
provider of products and services relating to the design and

engieer g ol wireless commandcat 1on systoms [ Saonvh hags
played an instrumental role o the collular andust sy by cetting
standards used in system design and methodology today . Saingh

holds a Ph.D. in Electrical Engineering {rom Sout bearn Met hodist
Universily.

Neera Singh - Director, Vice President and Secretary ol DSC

Neera Singh has sorved an Viee Prestdent , Secrpet ey and Director
of DEC sinee its format ion in Angust 19940 Mro. Hingh also
serves as Senior Vice President, Scecretary and o omember of the
Members Committec of Telocom Vent uare:s. Mrs. Sineghy, the wilee ol
Dr. Singh, co-founded LCC in 1983 and has served s oan offi1cey
and director of that company since 1ts formation.  She currently
sepvest o Sendior Vies President , Secretary and o omember of b
Mesmbyeer o o b U ] 00

Roy Menta - Director of Operations - DSC

Roy Mehta g the Viee President ol Operat dons of DESC Ire 1 bt
capacity he has been actively anvolved an edipasest powg b b
construction and operation of DSC's 18 Gile tacelit e and
overseeing decisions related to site acquisition for, coguiprent
procurement for, construction of and operation of Dbty
facilitices,  Mr. Mehta has oo MSEE degrees from tlee THhinoge
Institute of Technology, and cighteen yoears expeer denee it e
telccommunicat ions industry.  With an enginecr tng baclogronnd,  Roy
brings a combinat ion of technical and moanaer 1ol expert yse o
DSC. He has been involved in oall plioeses ol prostie deve bopment
projoect  dmplement at ton,  s5trat egie prloapmirng e ARCES SR O S S T

LT 0 AR G LT Y

Rahul C. Prakash - Director of Buniness Development nse
Rabml o Prakash gz carvemt by the Dioreeton /(1 ' ]

Dessrns Loapanertit watted Ul Special fedviiiar b Dhe Sheibr ot I O N
Reabing]l hads eaver TELIIe yeralizn apl eedpeerr pediieer ol Bt e LR T
[t.... ;,!,.-.-J,,:;:- 1 1w -,._.‘”_.- i__.l.”,; 118 T b wlrerle 1 7 TS AR ER N I 5T
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opportunities in the arcas ol wireless tes ] ecommuniecal vons,
Rahul s strengths e an the areas o Drnanee . shratoegy and ew
p]'uji_-t'[_ deve lopment

Hal B. Perkins - General Counsel for DSC

Hal B. Perkins, General Counscel of DSC, has represented anvestors
and businesses in a wide variety of domestic and international
transactions. Since graduating trom Benjamin N. Cardozo Law
School with honors in 1984, he has specialized in mergers and
acquisitions, investment transactions and publie secnrities
offerings. Before joining Digital Services Corparat ion in 19949,
Mr. Perkins was associated with several laws firmg, including two
major firms at which he represented Wesray Capital Corporation
and its affiliates in numerous transactions over o peven-year
period.




Alex J. Mandl - Chairman and Chiefl Executive Officer
of Associated Communications L.1.C.

Mandl. 52, joined Associated Communications in August 1996 after serving as presudent, chict
operating officer and director of AT&T, and as a member of the office of the charman. In
addinon to managing AT&T s long -distance and wireless communications businesses, Mandl wis
one of the architects of the company’s plans to compete with the regional Bell operating
companies in providing local telecommunication services following the passage ol The
Telecommunications Act of 1996.

Mandl joined AT&T in 1991 as chiet financial officer and group executive, a posiion he held
until 1993, During that time, he directed AT&T's financial strategy. policy and operations.
oversaw AT&T Capital Corporation; and managed various internal support functions for the
company. In 1993 he was named executive vice president of AT&T and chiel executive otficer
of its Communications Services Group, with responsibility for AT&T's core Jong-distance
services business.  He later managed the $11.5 bilhion acquisition and integration of McCaw
Cellular Communications, Inc.

From 1988 to 1991, Mandl was chairman and CEO of Sea-land Services, Inc.. the world’s
largest ocean transportation and distribution services company. Under his leadership. Sea-Land
nearly doubled in size and was transformed into the most profitable shipping company in the
world.

Mandl began his business career in 1969 at Boise Cascade Corporation as a merger and
acquisition analyst, and held various financial positions over the next 11 years,  In 1980, he
joined Seaboard Coast Line Industries as senior vice president of finance and corporate planning.
Afier Seaboard merged with Chessie Systems, he was named senior vice president in charge of
corporate development, human resources and chiel information officer of the new parent
company. During the same period, he also had operating responsibility for three transportation
and information technology subsidiaries. He was appointed chairman and CEO of Sca-Land
Services, Inc. in 1988.

Mandl is a member of the Global Business Management Council, Young President” Orgamzation
(alumnus), the American Enterprise Institute for Public Policy Rescarch and the Minagement
Policy Council (alumnus). He also serves on the boards of the Warner-Lambert Company.
Carnegic Hall, the Walter A, Haas School of Busiess at the Umversity of Caltlorni at
Berkeley. Willamette University, and AT&T Umversal Card Services. He s a tormer member
of the boards of the Coalition of Service Industries and the Emergency Committee for American
Trade. In January 1994, Mandl was appointed to the Advisory Council of the National
Information Infrastructure by Vice President Gore

Mandl has an M.B.A. from the University of Califormia at Berkeley and a B AL degree n
cconomics from Willamette University in Oregon,  He was born in Austria, and received his
early education there. He came to the United States to attend college. and has lived here ever
sinee.

45901 T4




Peter D, Vouvounas - Director of Field Operations
for Associated Communications, L.L.C.

In the carly 1970s, Mr. Vouvounas was employed in the engmeening stall ob several tadio i
television stations. In 1979, he joined Motorola Commumcations where he supported numerous
federal povernment agency networks (FBL DEA, ACOL, US Customs), and was directly
responsible for several public safety systems such as the city of Baltimore Fire Commumication.
network. In 1981, Mr. Vouvounas became the Network Manger tor Amencan Radwo Telephone
(later MetroMedia) responsible tor the deployment of the hirst ULS, non-wirchne cellular
telephone system. He was later appointed Director of Engineering and set up paging networks
serving over 100,000 subscribers.

In 1989-1991, Mr. Vouvounas served as Regional Director for MobileComm Bell South s
responsibilities included technology development and operations for seven VHE and tour UHE
networks with combined subscriber level of over 200,000, He later started his own internationl
consalting service firm which accomplished numerous projects to include the development and
deployment of the first nationwide paging system in Venezuela and the design and wrn up ol the
Reuters financial wireless network. In 1993, Mr. Vouvounas joined TDS as Natonal Director
of Engineering with the responsibility for satellite/microwave controlled national and regional
networks throughout the U.S.  He later jomed LCC as the Director of Installation and
Optimization Services PCS Broadband designing numerous systems in this area.

Mr. Vouvounas has a Bachelor of Science in Electronic Communications trom the University
of Maryland. He has been an instructor i digital electronies and communications at Arundel
Institute of Technology. and is a member of numerous technical associations, including 1EEE.
NABER, MAPRA, Broadcast Engineers Society, MARCCA, and NYRCCA.

45437 1M




Fxhibn |
hem 1507

Technical Ability

DSC's service i Flonda will be provided through us own 18 GHz microwave
facilities licensed by the Federal Communications Commission (the "FCCT) (copies of these
relevant FCC licenses have been attached heretoy which will be interconnected with the local
exchange networks of the incumbent LEC Tmitially these services will be provided an the
Tampa SMSA and the Mianmi SMSA where DSC currently has FCC microwave licenses. In
those areas throughout the state where DSC does not have its own facilities, it may offer
local exchange services through the resale of the local exchange facilities of other authorized
carricrs.  DSC will negotiate with the incumbent LEC to obtain its iterconnection
arrangements shortly, so as to be able o provide alternative local exchange service at the
carliest possible date

Through its currently constructed 18 GHz nucrowave tacihiies, DSC provides non
iterconnected and enhanced services. The Commission has recently deemed DSC o be
qualitied 1o provide Alternative Access Vendor service ("AAVT). See Docket No. 960641
TA. Certificate No. 4708.

THS Jonn il dn




A A Rak? ok

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

RADIO STATION AUTHORIZATION

SE CEITIFICATION

AIATICAS

ZLATICAS

§.3.ECT

TENSE, INILLDING T

AITY_i5 =EREBY Saay
CRERATED A4S mEREIMAF
COCITINATES EE.Dw: - (DANE) T

CONTROL S2I8T < LPCAL

wWhi.EQ &Y

Th AnTENNAT EAD

FCC Form 488



O O e e N N T O e e ]

Fl-'[)I-.R\L COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

RADIO STATION AUTHORIZATION

VEIZATICN

FORDITIoNAL LIZENSE B LICENS

TIGLTAL ELELTECNGC wESSALE

SYISIOnS OF THE COMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 1%3a,
TREATIES, AN2 l;L HE...I"’hs REQETOFLRE C2
SREZELNDER, AND FURTRER SL3.ECT TO TwE QONDI-
s Ta1s cb “"'“\l. ..h.\!‘ INILDING 'FS%E
zacE AJTEDR] .S =ERERY GRANTE
TED AL -;:5‘;::'5:

STATIIN LITATIIN ¢ 23 MILE RRJIUS OF COCIDINATES SELOW: (RINELLAS) 45 SERWICE ASEM - TAwBR: £
ATYLLSE 2750 3an LENGITLTE Q82 30 948 W, SONTROL POINT .« LT,
5 Fis STRUSTURE <EioHT BT, ASTVE GROLNC FLILTING REIGRT L ToTAL Fl. hesy
FT. A.G.L.
ITEIE _NITS ALTRIRIZED

IM TTEL.ISSTILLTION MASKING [5 W37

AATES ICEwBER v2. Y9

TI5(AIC6), 27,108 AND 21.503(C)1T) WAIVED v  COMMISS:
ceaations o

fulesiiy waASE, RISZED GAIN ANTENWAS A3 RO FL

vo.o We2 Bai-pd Freguemcy Sand '5220.0 - SI30.C we2

A

FCC Form 488




PROSPECTLS
Seplember 24, 19496

5,250,000 Shares
LCC International, Inc.
Class A Common Stock

shares ot Ula
and 25000000 =

The Com

Stoch offered heret
v osold By the Selling

eoeive any ol the procecd

lass B

wmbined v
ot the L
I ot the Con

I t
hnt tl\ |1‘11\ to vlect
v See Risk Fawtors — Co

\- 3 n-ul' such comp
1 o control the

HY Descnption of Capital Stock — Common Stock
Prior to the Otfening. there has been no public market for the Class A e
L nderwriting” tor information relsting 1o the tactors considered in deternumimg the init L

PTICC

The Class A Common Stock otfered hereby has been approved for bsting on the Nasdag Natonal
Market under the ssmbol "LCCTH T subject to omaal notice of issuar

e
See “Risk Factors” beginning on page 8 for certain information that should be
considered by prospective investors.

THESE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SECLRITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION NOR HAS THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OR ANY STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION
PASSED UPON THE ACCURACY OR ADEQUACY OF THIS PROSPECTLS. ANY
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE.

Price Underwriting Proceeds Proceeds to

to the Discounts and to the the Selling

Public Commissions(1) Companyi2) Stochholder
Per Share Sloan S1L12 S14.88 SI4 88
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Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette
Securities Corporation
Alex. Brown & Sons

Incorporated

Oppenheimer & Co., Inc

uﬁ'[l‘ m”
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IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITERS MAY OVER-ALLOT OR
EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE
COMPANY'S CLASS A COMMON STOCK AT A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHER-
WISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH TRANSACTIONS MAY BE EFFECTED ON THE
NASDAQ SATIONAL MARKET OR OTHERWISE. SUCH STABILIZING, IF COMMENCED, MAY
BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.




By offer: . a full co..iplement of network
engineering and program management
services, - sign and anadvsis software and field
medsurement equipment, the Company
pron‘d::s i a“(.lmplete and integrated line of

products and sesvices to the wireless industry.

o

The Company does not manubactue. marke ne Aseibn aide i+ o _a .



PROSPECTUS SUNMNMARY

Fhe following summary o gualitied 1n s entrete by reference o and showdd e read in compari tons woth

the more detailed mpormation. pro forma financial information and financial statemients and sotes s
appearing elsewhere in this Prospecris Unless atherwise indicared. all information e ths Prosgs
Summany and elsewhere in this Prospectis assumies ne exeecise of the Over-Alotment Optaon 1ol 1,
context indicates or requires atherwise, references in this Prospectis 1o “LOCCT or the “Congpamy e,
(e the combined operations of the Company’s predecesser, 1OC 1 C 0w Delaware femned
coempany, and it subsidiaries (the Eonired Biabilioe Compame o preor o the date op the mierger
Fonpredd ooy Commpany oo 1.CC Tgernational. Ine . a orecenthv- formved Delaware corporation 17100
fernationad 1, ay described befow ithe “Merger™) and () LOC Imternational and 1 subsidiaries, after thy
Merper. Each prospectivie investor s urged Tooread thes Prospectus i dts enteeety. Beforrions of tec bl oo !
ather terms are set forth i the Glossary starting at page -1 References berein o wieeless telegonne
Loy or similar termes are ool imtended Boonclude satellite transmisocon, whick some comsider bo bea wirdls

tevhnolog

GESEFRAL

LOC i one of the world's Lirgest andependent providers of nnho freguency ("KRE™) engmcenne and
network design services and products to the wireless telecommumications industey. The Company has provaded
these services, along with related proprictany software tools and field measurement and analysis equipment, 1o
operators of more than 200 warcless svstems in more than 40 countries. The Company intends to leverige s
leadership position and s relattonships with magor wireless customers to benelnt from the especied sipmificant
growih i wireless networks worldwide

The Company has provided services and products 1o seven of the ten largest UiS cellular system
operators, large anternational  cellular  operators, ancluding  Britsh Telecommumcations ple " Brnsh
Telecom™), France Telecom and Mannesmuann Mobilfunk Gmbl, Germany (Mannesimann™ b, companics
building or proposing to build personal commumications services (“POS™ ) svstems, mcluding Aba T Wareless
Services, Pacihie Bell Mobile Services, NeatWave Telecom, T ("NextWave Telecom™ ) and DUR POS
Ine. ("BCORTE operators of enhanced spectalized mobile radio ("ESMRT1 systems, imcluding Neael
Commumications, Inc. ("Nextel Communications™); and aperators of two-way messaging systems. Muany ol
the Company’s major customers have entered ainto partnerships with anternational wireless operators, which
has enabled the Company to obtinn signiicant new business from such operators. The Comipany alse Bas
established working relationships with two nugor telecommumications equipment vendors, purswant to which
the Company prowvides services and products on o subcantiact bases.

1O beleves that ss 26.9% compound annual growth in revenues over the past five voars has been fueled
primunly by the growth of the wireless telecommunications indusiry. The Company denves o sipniticant
portion of its revenues from its international customerns Capprosimately 395 an 1995 A substantial numiber ol
new witeless network licenses have been awarded worldwide over the Last five vears, and the Company eapedts
a sigmiicant pumber of additional wireless licenses o be awarded i the next few years. Construction of news
networks, and optimization of existing networks, require substantial cawounts of RE engineening services and
products. In addition, many existing svstems are continuing to grow, LOC estimiites that opetators of wireless
networks operatmp at capacity add a new cell site, requinog addiional BE enpineenng scrvices, Tor overny
approsiniately 1SR pew subsonibers added

O approsumately 370 RE engineers provide engmeenng solutions to openton of o owile range o
wircless networks, imcorporating all magor wircless technologies avinlable today, mchoding THDM A gwluch
mcludes GSM, DOUS and 15-136), CDMADEN, AMPS and FTACS 1OC beheves that at e the Lingest
mdependent empliver of RE engincers e the world and believes that this s G substantial compening
advamtape, espeonally with respect o Lupe customers LOU provides (o, in the case of Phase 4o deseloping
services anid products for operstors involved inall four phases of wireless system development: (1) Mhase |
dding for the heenses necessary 1o buld and operate the system: (n) Phase 7 build-out ol the ssstem
(m) Phase J — optimization and enhancement of the system o meet the requirenients ol an morcasimg




]

subserber hase amd to provide mereased quality and coverage, and (i) Phase 4 achicvement of preat
clliciencies i providing service in onder to compete marcas where there are muluple system operaton

The Company’s services consist ol (1) 78 Engineering and Design Senvices and (1) Program Manaw
mient. which imvolves the procurement amd management, on a turnkey basisc ol a range ol services and
products tor wireless networks, The Company’s products consist ot (1) Soffware Yool and (ny Pield
Measirenent and Analvses Equipment. both of which are used 1o desipgn wireless networks and optinize the

performance of existing networks

By siskss STRATEGY

The Company’s ohjective is 1o maintain s position: s one of the world's Largest independent providers o
RI engincenng and network design services and products 1o the wircless telecommumcations ndustry. and 1o
incredse its market shire by pursuing multiple growth paths. The key elements m the Company’s stralegs are

« Maintatn Technological Leadershep 1.CC believes that it has the most sophisticated and diversihied
technological capabilities (incorporating all major wircless technologies available today ) m the wireless
network design industry and intends to maintan s technological leadership

e Leverage Larve Installed Customer Base The Company believes that it large customer se pives it a
significant advantage in obtmning additional business for its existing and new services and products
Pypically, a substantial portion of the Company’™s fevenues in a4 given year are penenated by customers
for which the Company has previously performed services of prosided products

o Pursue trernational Growth The Compuany helieves that the prowth of the mternatonal wireless
industry over the neat several vears will be substantial. The Company s devotmg significant etlurts to
incteasing s market share of internationa) busimess, and s partcnlarly locused on providing phinmng
services to companies that are participating in government tender provesses lor new hicense prants e
Company has Tound that provision of such services olten results i engineenng contracts ol such

COMLnIes reoeive licenses.

o Pursie New Marken

POS According to the FOC, over SI7.9 bilhon has been spent or commitied to acguire nes PES

Bcenses in the LS, over the past two vears, and ¢ach of the hoensed areas must be Bt out oner the

fve vears Tollowing the date of the hoense gran Phe € onipans eapects that such new heensees will

account for g sigmificam portion of the & wamd tor the € ampany’s services and products over the
st several sears

Ve Mareless Networks and Technologies The development of new 1ypes of swireless potwoiks and
new  wireless technologies, including private corporate networks, wireless cable (LMDS and
MAMDS ) services, wireless Tocal Toop and wireless high speed duta services, s expeted 1o result i
addional potential customers for the Company’s services and prowducts

tralon 100 Digiral Conversion. The Company expedts that many cellubar operitors will convert from
an analog to a digital format in the next several sears. and that this conversion will resuft
additional deniind for the Company’s services and prosdicts

o Otter and Develop New Dypes of Serviees amd Produces

eovrans Manavement Services. Program management involves the procurement and management,
on o tirnkey busis, of o range of services and products relating 1o deployment or expansion il
wircless networks, including systems inlegration, sie acquisition. st enginecing, procuremes:
N ment, construction management, installation and commuissioning, and custamer tramimg
hese management services are often packaged swith the Company’s traditional I and netwark
enpimeenng services, software tools and lield measurement and analysis equipment The Compam

helieves that an increasing number ol wireless systen opentton e antracted o this g b




« Extahlish Strategic Relationships with
ohtaning new business opportunities

arrangements, as 4 means of obtning

Class A Common Shares Offered( 1)
By the Compiny
By the Selling Stockholder

Total, ...
Common Stock to be Outstanding after the
Offering(1)
Class A Common Stock ...............
Class B Common Stock ........ .
Tolah, o sx v vy s aamaae

Lise of Proceeds . .

Voting Rights ........

that program management will incree e revenues trom RE enginecning services e addition o
providing revenues from new services

Phase 4 Sysiem Efficiency Services and Products. The Company is developimg new RE enpineenng
services and products 1o increase system efficiency and manasge costs in the multiple-operator
environment expected to develop in the next few vears,

Curriers and Eguipment Vendors The Company has entered

into strategic relationships with new wircless carners and major equipment vendors ws o means of

The Company antends 1o pursue additional relationships,

including using proceeds from this smital public offenng (the “OMerng™ ) lor bnancimg and svestinent

new business,

o Pursue Strategic Acquisitions. The Company intends to punsue acquisitions «f compamies that huave
developed, or are developing, complementary products and services, LOC believes that such acguisi-
tions will accelerate the development of products and enhance the recruitment of technical statl

Tur OrvERING

2 TSOANM) shares
2;54!].{1?!1 \_I_:.ru_n_.':‘
5,250,000 shares

5.278.411 shares
K.K15984 shares
14,114,395 shares

Repavment of amounts outstanding under o Credin Apree-
ment, dated June 14, 1996, among the Company, certam of
ity subsidianies and The Chase Manhattan Bank (7Chase ™).
as Admimstrative Agent, and the lenders (the "Lenders™)
sipnatory thereto, as amended and restated o subsiitute the
Company lor the Looned Dabnhty Company g the 70 readn
Facithty™): advancement of $U5 milhon o an entity con-
trolled by the Company’s founders 1o assist that entity in
paving certiin Laaes; strtegic limancing for customers s
incentives for new business: acquisitions, working capital, and
pencral corporate purposes. See “Lse of Proceeds ™

The shares of Class A common stock, par vidue S001 per
shure ("Class A Commuon Stock™ ' have vne vote per share,
while the shures of Cliss B common stock, pur value SO0
per share (70 Liss B Common Stiwk™ ), hive ten soles per
share (the Cless A Common Stowk o € Liss B0 onmem
Stock are collectively  reterred 1o herein U o
Stock™). The Class B Common Stock, which has etfecine
control of the Company and will be whaolly-owned by KI
Investors, 1.1L.C. ("RF Investors™) and the Founder Corpo-
ration {as detined below i, s oot bemg ollered by s
Prospecius. Class B Common  Stock convertible anto
Class A Common Stock on a share-for-share basis. See

il

s




“Risk Factors — Control of the Company by RE Tnvestors
andd “Desenption of Capital Stock — Commuon Stock

Proposed Nasdag Nanonal Market symbaol Ledl

(1) In conncction with the Offering, it is anticipated that the board of directors of the Company (the “Board
of Directors™ ) will grant (1) pursuant to the Company’s 1996 Employee Stock Option Man (the
“Emplovee Plan™) options 1o purchase () approximately S90.000 shares of Class A Common Stock to
approximately 265 employees of the Company al an exercise price per share equal to the Offening price
and (h) approximately 2,160,000 shares of Cliss A Common Stock 1o approximately 40 employees of the
Company us conversion of interests held under the Limited Liability Company’s Employee Option Plan
(the “LLC Option Plan™) and Phantom Membership Plan (the “LLC Membership Plan™) at excroine
prices per share ranging from $4.00 1o $12.00, (i1) options o purchase 20,000 shares of Class A Common
Stock and 70,000 shares of Cliss B Common Stock at the Offering price 1o four directors under the
Company s Directors” Plan (the "Directors Plan™) and (ii1) options to purchiase 25,000 shares of Cliss A
Common Stock at the Offering price 1o a person or entity {a “Carlyle Option Designee™) designated In
the Carlyle Investors (as defined below ), who have designated one ol the Company's directors In
addition, m connection with the Offering, the Board of Directors will reserve (1) approximately 360000
shares of Cliss A Common Stock for purchase by eligible employees of the Company or any ol its
subsidiarics pursuant to the Company’s Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (1) approximately 474,000
shares of Class A Common Stock for future grants of options under the Employee Plan.
(i) approvimately 40,000 shares of Cliss A Common Stock and 1RO000 shares of Class B Commaon
Stock Tor Tuture grants ol options under the Directors Plan and (v) 60000 shares of Cliss A Conmimen
Stock for future grants of options to Carlyle Option Designees. Sce “Management — Stock Plans™ and
“Certain Transactions — Conversion of Interests Under LLC Option Plan and LLC Membership Plan
o Stock Options.™

Hisk Factonrs

Prospective investors should carefully consider the factors discussed in detail elsewhere in this Prospectus
under e caption “Risk Factors.”
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RISh FAC TORS

Foo wdilitnon oo the other anfornnation n this Proape s the following fucton dhonlid b wareputh
comstdered 1 evaluating the Company and (ts bustress betore purchasing the Class 1 Comrton Ntoa koaffered

Twririn

Changes Adversely Impacting Demand for the Company's Products and Services

The wireless telecommunications industry is undergong o number ol sipmbicant changes that are
adversels mmpacting denand tor the Company™s RE engincering and selated services and products. Such
chanpes include (1) mereased use of in-house engmeers by operators. of - mature wircless networks,
() ereasing dependence of wireless network operators on equipment venduors lor desipn services and
v delins i deplovient of POS networks

Increased Use of In-House Engineers by Operators of Mature Wircless Networks

Over the Tast Tew vears, operators of several mature wireless networks have reduced the amount of
engmeenng services purchased Trom LOC and have replaced such services with those provuded by their own
engineers. LOC expects this trend 1o continue and o atfect ather 1ypes of wircless netwarks beoth within the
LS and internationally.

Increasing Dependence of Wireless Network Operators on Equipment Vendors for Design Services

Wircless network aperators, particularly PCS operatons and nesomternational Toensces, are mcreasingly
dependent on equipment vendors to provide turnkey solutions for the design and deployment ol wireless
networks and 1o provide vendor financing for the entire project. Vendors of wircless telecommuniciations
cquipment have been conditioning the availability of inanaing for services or products, other than those
principally offered by the vendor, on being granted the nght 1o select the providers ol such services and
products. including RE engineening and network desipn. The Company helieves that the need of S and
other wireless operators Tor vendor financing and the pachaging of services by equipment vendors v mahking
the vendor a cormpetitor of the Company (since the vendor is providing engineering servives., gencrally through
o subcontract awimmgement ) and is causing the vendor 1o replace the wircless operator as g customer of the
Company - While the Company has established  relationships with magor telecommunicaiions cquipment
vemdors puesoant o which the Company provides serves amd privlucts lor the wireless telecomumunications
projedts tot which such vendors act as prime contractons, such arrangements often e less protitable tor the
Company than direct sales to the end user since the vendor often submins o comparatively lower i foor the
chngineenng work 1o secure or increase its profits on equipment sales In addition, working through o prime
contractor weakens the relationship with the petwork operator and may reduce the Company s abilits to obtain

vatilinung business

Delays in Deployment of PCS Nerworks

The € ompany helieves that demand Tor its services and products may be allected by Tuteie delavs n the
paace ol deplosment of PCS networks i the LLS A sipniticant portion of the Company s iescnues is penerated
from new hicensees for designmg and budding out their networks. Purthenmore, a spmiicant portion ol the
Company s hacklog consists of services and products to be provided under two ive-sear contracts forsenices
and products ageregating SIS million with the two top bidders i the recently concluded C-block broadhand
PCS auction. See “Business — Customers and Backlog ™ Finally, the Company anticipates that addimonal
future revenues will be penerted from successful bidders in the D-, E- and F-block broadband PCS auctions
eapeated to b held within the neat two to three vears. To date, the pace of POS network deplinment has been
stower than expected. due in part to dithculty expenenced by holders of M EA hoenses i vansing the necessarn
tinancing and there can be no ussurance that bidders for BTA licenses will not expenience smibar ditheulties
In addition, the C-block bidders have been hampered by delass in the auction process and by subsequent
challenges to the ssinanee of licenses (o successful hidders, wnd there can be no assurance as to when the D-,
booamd -Block auctions will oecur, nor th when hieenses will be granted  Accordingly, otders lor network

o




design and deplovment from PCS licensees, including o sigmbicant portion of the Company s backlog, are
subject 1o uncertainty. See “Risk Factors Bisks Associated swith Steatepne Relationships, Stratepa
Financing and Acquisitions.”

Risks from Competition

The current market for wireless network design senvaves, related soltw.are tools, hield measurement amd
amalvsis equipment and program management services s highly compentive. Many companies olfer such
services and products, and the Company beheves that the number of other independent hirms providing o
combination of these services and products o wireless network operators throughout the world s increasing
Wircless operators themselves and system equipment vendors are abso deselopimg capabilities competitine with
those provided by LCC. See "Risk Factors — Changes Adversely Tpacting Demand Tor the € ompany's
PProducts and Services — Increased Use of Tn-House Engineers by Operators of Mature Wircless Netwarks’
and “— Increasing Dependence of Wireless Network Operators on Equipment Vendors for Design Senvices”
Same of tie Company’s competitors are part of I.JTFC corpaorate groups of alliances with greater resources and
broader technology bases than those of the Company. In addition. some of the Company's competitors huse
been founded by or have recruited senior engineering exccutives from current or patential Company custoiens
and muay have better relatonships with those current or potential customers than are avakable 1o the
Company. Recently, as o result of increased compention, the Company has expenenced a dechne inthe prices
it can charge tor ats software tools and field measurement and analvsis equipment. There can be no assurance
that competitive Lactors will not have an adverse effect on the Company’s business

Substantial | everage

The Company had $30 million of debt obligations s of June 300 199%, consisting of the $20 nnlhon
Credit Facility and the $20 million note held by MCT Telecommumications Corporation ("MOT7) Prioe 1o
the Offering the Company will be assuming the $30 mullion note held by MOT that was issued by Teloom
Ventures (detined below ) Accordingly, the Company s highls leveraged  The two MUT notes, which are due
in 2000, are exchangeable for Common Stock of the Company, and the Company antends o reguire this
exchange i August 1997, See "The MCI Notes, MO Note Assumption, MO Conversion™ However. il
there is a default under such MCI notes prior 1o this exchange, or if there s o default under the Credn
Facil 'y, there would be a material adverse etlect on the Compans. The Credit Facilits prohibits the ©ompany
from incurring additional debt and contins numerous other restneiive cosenants dee “Management s
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liguadity, Capital Resources and
nher Financial Data ™

Rapid Technological Changes

The market for wireless network syatem |[1.‘\|F]| servives amd tools s charactenzed in l..pul Lll.l.ll}'l.’ and
unprovements in technology, The Company's future sucvess will depend i part on it ability o enbance ity
current products, o introduce new products that heep pace with technological devel prients and o address
the imereasingly sophisticated needs of ity custoniers. There can be po assuraince that the Company will be
successful i developing and marketing i a0 tmels manner product enhancements o new pronducis that
respond 1o the technological advances by others, or that ats products and services sl adequateds aml
compertnely address the needs of the chianging marketplace Lechnological changes wath respect 1o softwaire
tosels aned ekl measurement and analysis equipment have resulted in the shortenmng of product cveles, amd il
the Company s not ready to introduce new compenitive producis, the Company s aperating results could be
adversely affected. In the past, the Company's operabing revenues Trom sales of software tools and tield
measurement and analyais equipment have been adversely atfected by this trend In particular, approsamately
two sears apo, customer regquirements for UNIX-hased products emerped at o time when the Company's
LINIX-based products were still heing developed. and the Company's revenues from software tools Tor 1994
were adversely affected. See "Management’'s [hscusston and Analvais of Frnancial Conditon and Results ol
Operations — Results of Operations — Year Ended December 31 1994 Compared 1o Year Foded Decem
her 31, 1993, In order to remauin competitive, the Company nay e regquired to eapemd g preater peteentage
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of its revenues on product innovation and research and development or technologs acguisition than hstorcally
has been the case. See Note 1 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Inaddition, the Company believes that, as the number of wireless networks in the US. increases with the
addition of PCS heense holders and other competitors Phave 400 operatons will expernience greater prive
competition and place greater emphasis on contuining costs and ssatem elhoeney The Company’s customers
will require new network engineering services and products to mcrease system elliciency and manage costs i
the Phase 4 multiple-operator environment. Although the Company is developing such services and products
and believes that none of its existing competitors presently offer such services or products, there can be no
assurance that the Company will be able to offer such services and products in g umely manner

Dependence on Professional Staff; Need for Additional Qualified Technical Personnel

The Compuny receives the majority of its revenues from the efforts of approximately 170 RE engincers
Ihe success of the Company’s business therefore depends on its ability to retan its existing stall and replace
departing engineers. Morzover, 1o continue its growth at s current rate, the Company needs tooittract
additional RF engineers and other technical professionals, and 4 number of professionals with shills in the
program management arca, There are a limited number of RE engineers, and such individuals are sought both
by RE engincering companies such as LCC and by wircless network operators. Competition for such persannel
v intense, which has ot times caused LOC to expenience difficulty an recruiting and retawning gualitied
technical personnel. In the program management area, although the number of available professionals i
greater, the Company has less experience in hiring such professionals. There can be no assurance that the
Company will not experience ditliculties in retaining and augnienting ity professional stall

Dependence on Significant Customers and Large Contracts

The Company derived approximately 50% of its revenues from its ten Largest customers i the year ended
December 31, 1995, Nextel Communications, the Company’s Largest customer in the year ended Decem-
ber 31, 1995, accounted for approximately 14% of its revenues. Although such major customers genrrally have
differed from year to year as work under existing contracts is completed and services under new contracts are
commenced, the Company depends on having large contracts from some customers cach vear 1o meet its
expected revenues. There can be no assurance that the Company will continue to receive large contracts from
customers, In ddition, the Company’s contracts typically have provisions that permit customers to termimite
their respective contracts under various circumstances, which include nonperformunce or unsatishictory
performance by the Company. There can be no assurance that customers under any aof the Company’s long-
term contracts will not attempt to cancel or renepotiate ther contracts with the Company

Lengthy Sales Cyele

Purchases of the Company’s products or services by custamiers often entail an extended decision-making
process for the customer because of the substantial costs and strategic imphications associated with seleching
wireless network deployment services and products. Senor managemient of the customer is often involved in
this process, given the importance of the decision as well as the risks faced by the customer if the Compuny's
services and products do not meet the customer's particular needs. Therefore, large procurcments of LOC
services and products involve Tengthy selling oxvcles, resulting i o relatively hagh cost of new business
pencration. See “Business — Sales and Marketing ™

Significant Fluctuations in Quarterly Results: Uncertaintics Relating (o Backlog

The Company’s quarterly revenues and operating results have vaned considerably i the past and are
likely oo vary considerably Trom quarter o guarter i the future. Fluctuations in the Company’s revenucs
depend on a number of factors, some of which are besond the Company’s control These Bactors include.
among others, the timing of issuance of new heenses by povernmental agencies, the Tength of sales eyeles,
changes in pricing policy by the Company or 11y competitors, the liming of coninits and customer budget
changes. In addition, even after contracts are entered into. the timing of debivery of services and products
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depends in pant on the customer’s readiness 1o receive the services and the pace of the build-out of the
customer’s network, wlich i torn depend on a number of business decisons by the customer and provision «f
services and equipment by providers other than the Company. A large portion (S 1S million, or approsimately
64,00 ) of the Company’s current backlog consists of services and products to be provided under two five year
contracts with holders of PCS licenses. and the customers have tlexabiliny within such fivesear periods
reparding the timing of ordening and mix of services and products 1o be purchased trom the Company. See
“Wusiness — Costomers and Backlog ™ The orders under such contracts are also subject 1o uncertnntics
relating to PCS network deplovment generally and 1o matters that may alfect the businesses and financial
resources of such customers. See “Risk Factors — Changes Adversely Impacting Demand for the Company’s
Products and Services — Delays in Deplovmient of PCS Networks™ and "Risk Factors - Rishs Associated
with Strategic Relationships, Strategic Financing and Acquisitions.” The Company establishes its expenditure
levels for product development and other operating expenses in Large part on its expected future revenues. As
resull, should revenues fall below expectations, operating results are hhely 1o be adversely affected. Giross
profit as & pereent of total revenues generally declined from 1993 through December 31, 1945 There can be no
assurances that this trend will not continue. See “Management's Discussion and Analyvsis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations — Overview”

Dependence on Proprictary Technology

The Company relies on a combination of copyrights, trademarks, trade seerets, non-disclosure and other
contractual agreements and technical measures o protect its proprictary nghts in s products. There can be no
assurance that others will not independently develop similar products or duplicate the Company s products
There can also be no assurance that the steps taken by the Company will prevent misappropriation of this
technology. In addition, effective copyright, trademark or trade secret protection niay be unavialable or honted
in certain circumstances, There can be no assurance that third parties will not assert imfrmgement el
against the Company in the future or that any such choms will not reguire the Company to enter into ol
arcangements or result i costly Tingation mvolving the imposition of damages or mjunctive rehel against the
Company, any o which could adversely alltect the Company's business.

Trade Account Receivables

The Company is subpect to credit nisk o the torm of trade account recemvables. As of December 311995
and Tune 30, 1996, the Company had trade account recevables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts, ol
254 million and $29.5 million. respectively. The Company frequently as unable 1o enforce a poliey of
receiving payment within 30 days of issuing bills, especially in the case of customers who are in the carly
plises of business development. In addition, many of the Company's loreign customens are not accustomud 1o
paving their suppliers on terms as attractive as those typically existing in the United States. See "Risk
Factors — Risks of International Operations.” Generally, the Company does not require collateral or other
seeurity o support customer recenvables,

Risks of International Operations

Approviniateh 3% of the Company’s revenues tor 195 were generated outside of the Umited States, and
the Company cxpets this segient of its business 1o continue o account Tor o material rart al 1ts revenucs
Licensing software and selling other products and services in foreign countries s subject 10 vanous risks
inherent in international business activities. Risks mclude those presented by general econonie amd pohitical
conditions in each country. the effect of apphicable foreign tas structures, tantl and trade regulations,
ditheulties in obtaining local business licenses, the need to munage a geographically duerse organization amd
ditliculties i complying with a variety of forcign laws and regulations. In addition, adverse changes in the
reguliatory environments in foreign countries, including delayy in deregulation or privatization affecting the
pace at which licenses are awarded 10 wireless network system operators, atlect the level and timiig of the
demand for the Company’s services and products. Providing products and services outside the Umited States
carries the additional risk of currency Nuctuations and Toreign exchange contols imposed by certinn countrics
Foreign customers may be aceustomed 1o payving their supplicrs, mcluding the Company, on terms and
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conditions less attractive than is typical in the United States. and collection of accounts receivable due from
foreign customers can be more ditficult than from domestic customers

Risks Associated with Strategic Relationships, Strategic Financing and Acquisitions

Risks Associated with Strategic Relationships and Strategic Financing

There are a number of nsks associated with the Company’s plans 1o pursue opportumbics T enter it
strategic relutionships with new wireless operators or 1o extend financing lo customers in feturn lor new
husiness opportunities. There can be no assurance that the Company will receive the anticipated husiness, thit
the business will be of the anticipated level or that profits from the new business will offset any possible fosses
on the investment made or financing extended by the Company 1o enter into such relationship. A foan toor
wvestment i customer will be subject to muny of the same risks to which the customer s subject i secking
1o operate und grow its businesses, and there can be no assurance thal the customer will be able 1o repay o
return the Company’s investment within an acceptable period. The Company’s first two arrangements with
customers under this strategy involved financing aggregating $11.5 million to the two top bidders in the
recently-conclud-d C-block auction for broadband PCS licenses as part of arrangements invalving the
Company receiving contracts aggregating $115 million for new business over o hive year penod. The
Companyv's investments in, and expectation of future orders from, these two C-hlock hdders could be
adversely affected to the extent that the businesses and financial resources of these o o -block bidders s
affected by any (or a combination) of: the possibility that the FCC wall find enther entity incligible for the
licenses for which they were the top bidders; the head start enjoyed by A- and B-hlock licensees (which muy
be exacerhated by delays in the issuance of C-block licenses caused by challenges to such issuance filed by
rival bidders); the relatively large amounts owed by the C-block bidders to the US. Government as i result of
the C-block auction; and the entreprencurial or “start-up” status of the C-block bidders and related ditheulties
in obtaining adequalte financing for the capital intensive build-out of their systems and to cover operating
losses during the early months of operation.

Risks Relating to Acquisitions

The Company’s intention to engage in acquisitions 1o acquire companics that have developed or are
developing complementary products and services is subject to the nsks that the assets baing acquired or
additional professional stalf being recruited to perform services will not perform s expected, that the acquired
entity wi'l have unanticipated liabilities and that the returns realized by the Company sltimately wall nat
support the investments made or indebtedness incurred in such acquisitions,

Restrictions Affecting the Company’s Ability to Engage in Strategic Financings or Acquizitions

There are several restrictions and other Gactors atfecting the Company™s aluliny o engage in stnalepi
nancings or acquisitions, Although the Company presently intends to engage n such transactions only 1o the
extent that the net proceeds from the Offering, together with amounts that will be avanlable under the Credn
Facility, arc sufficient to fund such opportunistic investments and acquisitions, there can be noassiiance that
additional capital will not be required for such purposes. The Company cannot predict the extent to which
additional capital may be required, and there can be no assuranee that the Company widl be able o ohtan
such additional capital on terms acceptable to the Company. In addition. the Credin Fooaliny contans certan
restrictions with regard to, among other things, acquisitions, capital expenditures and incurrence of additional
indebtedness that may limit the ability of the Company to complete certam acquisitions. See " Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liguidity, Capital Resources and
Other Financial Daty — Existing Indebtedness.” Certain entities formed by The Carlyle Group, a Woashing
ton. DO -hased mvestment group (the "Carlyle Investors™) also have certan mghits that Tt the abiling of
the Company to incur debt above specified ratios or amounts. See “Description ol Capital Stowh — Certun
Relationships Between the Founder Corporation and the Carlyle Investors Affecuing the Company.”
Moreover, in secking to make investments in wireless operators or acquire other companics, the Company will
he competing with organizations that are larger, have access o more substantial capital resources o e
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pursuing other strategic poals. There can o 0 anures oz hat the Companm will b socvesstul i coanpleting

these transactions.,

Dependence on Key Personnel; Management of Growth
Depeadence on Key Personnel

I he success of the Company depends o signibicant degree upon the contrthution ol its executivg otlicers
and uther key personnel. None of the Company’s exccutive oflicers hus an emplosment agreement with the
Company, other than an agreement terminable at will, There can be noassurance that the Company wall he
able to retain its key managenal and other key personnel or to attract sutable replcements or additional
personnel il required.

Muanagement of Growth

To manage its growth cifectively, the Company must continue to strengthen 1its operational. financ il and
management information systems, and expand, train and manage its work force. Falure to dosoetlectinehy
and on i timely basis would have an adverse effect upon the Company’s husiness

Concerns About Mobile Communications Health Risk May Affect Prospects of 1OC

Allegations have been made that serious health risks have resulted from the wse of portable mvlil
communications devices, Some studies have found some instanves of interference with beanmg ands amd othes
medical devices caused principally by digital wireless handsets. The actual or percened health nshs ol monile
communications devices could adversely atfect LOC through @ reduction in the number of systems dephined
worldwide or a reduction in the number of sites constructed in those systems that are deployed

¢ ontrol of the Company by RF Investors

Upon completion of the Merger and the Oftering, RE Investors, a recently tormed subsidiany of Telcom
Vemtures, L.L.C. ("Telcom Ventures™ ). will own all texcept for a small number of shares held s the
Founder Corporation, indirectly an equity holder of RE Investors) of the outstanding shares of € Liss B
Common Stock, which will represent 93.5% of the combined voting power of buth chisses of Commion Stoch
See “Principal and Selling Stockholders.” Accordingly, RE Tovestors and its equits holders will be able
without the approval of the Company’s public stockholders, 10 (0 elect all of the Company's directorns,
(1) amend the Company's certiticate of mcorporation (the "Certiticate of Incorporation™) with respect o
rost matters or effect a merger, sale of assets, or other nugjor corporate transaction, (an) deleat amy non-
negotiated takeover attempt, (iv) sell RE Investors” shares of Common Stock sithout participation i sich
sile by the Company™s public stockholders, (v ) deternime the amount amd tiing of dividends pod ol an
with respedt to Common Stock and (vi) othersise control the managemient and operations of the € emmprany
and the outcome of virtually all matters submtted for o stockholder vote. RE - Investors oy gl In
converting its shares of Class B Common Steck into shares of Class A Common Stock, abitam o sulhicient
number of shares of Class A Common Stock (624% of the total outstandimg shares of Cliss A G onntnon
Stock based upon the number of shares of Cliss B Commaon Stock hebld by BE Pove stois om the sbate of the
OfTermg) e determine the outvome of any vote with respect toamy matter on which the holders of € L A
Common Stock are entitled 1o vote together s a class. D Ragendra and Neera Soagh, who waith certam Simgh
family trusts indirectly own 75% of Teleom Ventures (the “Singh Fare Croup™ ). are alvo directons o
exceutive officers of the Company, and Mark Fin, o designee of the Carlyle Tnvestorss who are the 2
indircet owners of Telcom Ventures, also v o dhirector of the Company The Teloom Ventures
RI' Investors limited liability company apreements provide that, tor as Jong s the Carlyle Tnsestors
collectively own at least $% of the total membership mterests of Teleom Ventures, Teloom Ventures shull vole
any and all shares of the Company held by it and shall cause RE Investors tovore any and all stares ickd s
1. from time 1o time: (1) 1o eleet as directors of the Company up o two peesons recammended by the © e
Investors upon the request of the Carlyle Investors, and (i) not 1o ke any of the followang actions st
the coment of the Carlyle Investors: (a) approve any amendment to the Certiticate of Incorporation or the
Bylaws of the Company: (b) approve the incurrence by the Company of any debt (or the granning of secunty
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relating 1o the incurrence of debt) if as a result of such meurrence, the debt o equity ratio of the Company
exceeds b1 or, if as i result of such debt incurrence. the total outstanding debt of the Company exceeds $30
million plus or minus, as the case may be, the cumulatve pet imcame of the net losses of the Company after
Tanuary 1994, (¢} approve any new alfiliated party transactions in excess of SIS0 or moditications 1o
eaisting trinsactions, subject w certain limited excephions, (d) approve the appointment as independent
accountants of the Company of a firm other than ane of the “hig sin™ accounting irms, or (€) approve certaim
events relating to the hankruptey of insolveney of the Company The RE Investors and Telcom Ventures
Bned Dbty company apreements provide Tor certan nghts of the Carlyle Investors to cause the
disthution 1o the Carlvle Investors, beginning three vears after the Offening, of up to 25% of the Common
Stock held by RE Investors. Such a distribution would still leave RF Investors with voting control of the
Company. See “Description of Capital Stock — Certam Relationships Between the | ounder Corporation and
C arlule Investors Atlecting the Company.”

Relationship with Teleom Ventures; Potential Conflicts of Interest

Teleom Ventures, RE Investors' parent. is prncipally engaged in making investments in wireless system
aperators and emerging wireless technologies. Directors of Telcom Ventures and ity subsidianes who are also
directors or ofticers of the Company have certain fiduciary obligations to cach organization. Telcom Ventures
and directors of Telcom Ventures and its subsidiaries who are also directors and officers of the Company are in
posttions involving the possibility of conflicts of interest with respect o certain transactions concerming the
Company. In additon. the Company and Telcom Ventures and certain of Telcom Ventures' subsidianes have
entered and will enter into arrangements which provide for certain transactions and relationships between the
parties or which otherwise affect the Company. The Company, R1° Investors, Teleom Ventures, and Telcom
Ventures  owners (the Founder Corporation, the Singh Fanuly Group and the Carlyle Investors) Gin ciach case
as detimed herein and collectively, the “Telcom Ventures Group™) will enter into an agreement (the
“Intercompany Agreement” ), effective with the Offering. wherehy, among other things, (1) the Singh Famly
Group will be limited in its ability to compete with the Company in s traditional lines of husiness and
(i) Telcom Ventures will be limited in its ability to invest in entitics whose prumary. business 1y 1o compele
with the Company in its teaditional lines of business, in cach case until the carher of (1) the date on which the
Lelcom Ventures Group no longer possesses S1% or more of the outstanding voting power of the Company or
(it} the occurrence of certain termination events specihied in the Formation Agreement among the Telcom
Ventures Group. Each of the Carlyle Investors (but not its affiliates) will be hmited in s ability to tnvest in
entities whose primany business is 1o compete with the Company in s traditional ine of business {excluding
the proptun management business) until the earher ot (1) the date on which such Carlvle Investor no longer
awns, dhireethy o indireetly, an interest in the Company or (n) the occurrence of certaun termination events
specitied in the Formation Agreement among the Telcom Ventures Group. The Company will be free 1o
pursuc investment opportunitics on its own, but will be obligated to refer to Telcom Ventures investment
opportunities prior 1o offering such opportunities toany other third party 1 Telcom Ventures does not elect to
pursue the myestment opportunity within five davs, LCC will be free wootler the opportunity o third parties
Phere can e no assuranee that the Intercompany Agreement will eliminate or reduce conthicts ol anterest of
inconsistent Bduciary obligations. See "Certain Transactions — Corporate Opportumity” and 7 Foiure
Fransactions with (flicers, Directors and Prancipal Stockhalders ™

Absence of Dividends on Common Stock

e Company does not anticipate paying any cash dividends on its Common Stock in the foresecable
future, but instead intends 1o retain all working capital and carmings, if any, for use in the Company’™s husiness
operations and in the expansion of its business. Certin covenants i the Credit Facaibin prohibut the pavment
of vash dividends sithout the consent of the Lenders. See “Dhividend Policy ™

Negative Fifect of Shares Eligible for Future Sale

U pon completion of the Offering, 14,114,395 shares of Commen Stock will be outstanding (assuming no
exercise of the Over-Allotment Option ). none of which will be freely transferable without restriction or further
registration under the Secunties Act of 1933, as amended (the “Secunties Act”™), other than the 5.2 5LXK)
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shares of Class A Common Stock oflered hereby. As of the completion of the Offening, the Company s
existing stockholders will continue to own an aggregate of 8804395 shares of Commion Stoch, assuminge i
excreise of the Over-Allotment Option. Al ol such shares of Common Stock are deemicd to be “restnctad
secuntics” as that term is defined in Rule 144, promulgated under the Secunties At

In general, under Rule 144, 4 person (or persons whose shares are aggregaied with shares hebil by another
person) who is not an afliliate of the Company and who his satistied o twosveat bolding pered nas . under
certain circumstances, sell within any threc-month period a pumber of restocted securnies which does not
exceed the greater of one percent of the shares outstanding or the average weekly trading volime dunng the
four calendar weeks preceding the notice of sale required by Rule 143 Inaddition, Rule 144 pernuts, under
certain circumstances, the sale of restncted secunties, without any quantity limitations, by a person whois not
an afliliate of the Company and who has satishied a three-year holding penod. Under Rule 144, RE Tnsestors,
the Founder Corporation and TC Group (dehined below ) may be deemed, at the ume of the Otfenng. 1o have
held the Common Stock owned by them for more than two years and, accordingly, cach may be able o
commence public sale of any of its Common Stock pursuant to Rule 144 hegimning 90 dass atter the Ollenng,
except as provided by its “lock-up™ agreement with the Underwnters desenibed below. MUT may be able.
the time of the MCI Conversion (anticipated to be in Aupust 1971 10 commence public sale purswant to
Rule 144 of the Common Stock received by MC]

The Selling Stockholder, the Founder Corporation, TC Group and executive ofticers and directons of the
Company have agreed not to, directly or indirectly, offer. sell, transfer. contruct 1o sell, grant any ophion 1o
purchase or otherwise dispose of any Common Stock or secunities convertible o or exercisable or
exchangeable for Common Stock or, in any manner, transfer all or o portion ol the econumie consequenyes
associated with the ownership of Common Stock or cause to be liled with the Commssion . registtation
statement with respect thereto, for a peniod of 180 days after the date of this Prospectus without prior wntten
consent of Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenreite Sccunties Corporation (7DLI7), notwithstanding any Rule 144
exemption which may be available to such person. Pursuant to such “lock-up™ arcangements, which mas he
termmnated earlier at the discretion of DLJ, commencing 180 davs after the date of this Prospectus there nan
be 8804395 restricted shares of Common Stock available for sale pursuwant 1o Rule 1440 The Canmpam
intends to tile a registration statement under the Secunties Act with respect o the approsiimately 503000
shares of Common Stock available upon exercise of options under the Emplovee Plan. the Emploves Stock
Purchase Plan and the Company’s 1996 Directors Stock Option Plan. Finally, RE Investors has and. apon the
exchange of the MCT Notes for Class A Common Stock, MO will have certn “demand”™ nights tooequine
the Company to register their Class A Common Stock for sale and 10 register shares ona “prgeyback™ hasis in
connection with most registered public offerings of securities of the Company. RE Tnvestors and MOT are o
will be entitled to registration rights that would. among other things, pernnt cach of RE Tnvestors and MO 1o
submit three denmand registration requests to the Company. Generally, the Company will be required e use
“hest efforts” to Qle a registration statement with the Secunties and Exchange Compussion ithe "Commis
sion™) within 90 days of recewing such a request. However, once o vear, the Company mus deter o denamd
registration request for a period of up 10 90 days b the Board of Directors makes o posd Loth deternination
that it would be “seriously detrimental” to the Company to Ble w repistration statement witlie the me period
otherwise required. Any sales of such secunties by stochholders putsuant e Rule 144 or punsuant 1o 4
registration statement may have an adverse eltect on the market price of the Cliss A Cosmaon Stovh and an
the ability of the Company 1o obtun additional equity financing. See “Shares Phebie For Puture Sale
“Prncipal and Selling Stockholder™ and “Certain Transactions — Repistation Kights ”
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Potential Anti- Takeoser Effect of Certain Provisions of Certificate of Incorporation, By-1aws and the Credit
Facility

Phe € ertiticate of Ingorporation and the Company’s ByLows (the “Bylaws™ ) include provasions that may
disconinage of present certain types of transactions mvolving an actual or potential change in control ol the
Company. In addinon, the Board of Directors has the authoniy o i the nghts and preferences of and 1ssue
shares of preferred stock, which may have the effect of delaving or preventing a change 1in control of the
Company without action by the stockholders. See “Description of Capital Stock — Preferred Stoch™ and

Advance Notce Provisions for Stockholder Proposals and Stockbolder Nominations of Directors ™

In addition, there are vanous provisions in the Credit Faciliny that may have the effect of discouragimg
non-nepotited tiheoser attempts of the Company. In particular, the Credn Faaility provides for an event of
detault it without the prior wotten consent of the Lenders, (1) the Company sells, leases, dssiygns, translers or
othierwise disposes of anv of its assets, other than in the ordinary course of business and in other himited
circuimstinces, (i) the Company merges with another corporation other than a wholly-owned subsidiary,
(1) S0y PeEson oF Two of more persons acting i concert (other than Dr. Rajendra Singh, Neera Singh, any
trists for their benetit or the benehit of their fanuly members, and any of their respective allilates which are
cantrolled by am one or more of them ) acquire beneticial ownership of more than 23% of the voting stock of
the Company, or v ) during any peniod of 12 consecutive months, individuals who ot the begimming of such
I 2omenth period were directors of the Company (or other persons nominated by such individualy ) cease for
any reason to constitute a magonty of the Board of Directors of the Company. See “"Management's Discussion
and Amalvsis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liguadity, Capital Resources and (ther
Financial Data”

Incurrence of Substantial Dilution

Investors participating in this Offering will incur immediate and substantial dilution of approximately
S1 62 per share i the pro forma net tangible book value per share of the Cliss A Common Stock from the
assuinesd il public olfenng price. See “Dilution.”

o Prior Public Market; Possible Volatility of Stock Price

Prie to this Offening, there has been no public market for the stock ol the Company and thers can be no
assuranee it an active public market will develop or be sustamed after the Offenng. The Olenng price was
determmned by negotiitions among the Company, the Selling Stockholder and DL Alex. Brown & Sons
Incorporated and Oppenheimer & Co. Inc, actimg as representatives for the Underwriters t1he “Representa-
tives 1 See CUnderwriting.” Factors such as the announcement of the antroduction of new products or
services by the Company or its competitors, the awand or termination ol sigmibicant customer contracts. guaricr
v guarter varations in the Company’s operating results and changes incarmings estimates by analysts, as well
oo market conditions in the technology and emerging growth company sectors may have o significant impact
on the market price of the Class A Common Stock. Further. the stock market has on occasion experichced
extreme price and solume Nuctwations, which fuve particnbarly atfected market prces of the equily secunties
ol pans technology companies and which hove often been unrelated to the operating performance ol such

conpranres These hroad market fuctuations mas matenally and adversely atfect Jhe market price ol the
C Liss A Comnnmon Stowk -




THE COMPANY

The Company's business commenced in 1983 in o corporation named LOC, Incorporated (presently
named Chernvwood  Holdings, Inc.), o Kansas corporation organized n 1983 and wholly owned by
Dr. Rajendra and Neera Singh and other members of the Singh Family Group (the “Founder Corporation™)
The business was transferred by the Founder Corporation to Telcom Ventures for a 75% interest in Telcom
Ventures in January 1994, at which time the Carlyle Investors acquired o 25% interest in Telcom Ventures in
consideration of a cash contribution. Telcom Ventures then formed the Limited Liabiliny Company and
transferred the business to the Limited Liability Company in exchange for a 99% nterest an the Linned
Lushility Company. The Founder Corporation and TC Group, L.L.C., an affilate of the Carlsle Investors
(" TC Group™), received direct interests of 0.75% und 0.25%, respectively, in the Linnted Liability Company
See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liguidits,
Capital Resources and Other Financial Data — Capital Raised to Date” and Note 2w the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

In preparation for the Offenng, LOC Intermnational will become the corporate successor to the Limited
Liability Company. Tmmediately prior to the closing of the Offering, the Limited Liabaliny. Company wall
reorganize into corporate form by merging with and into LCC International, which until that tme will have

minimal assets and liahilities. See “The Merger”

The Company’s executive offices are located at 2300 Clarendon Boulevard, Suite 800, Arhington, VA
22201, and its telephone number is 703-351-6666

THE MERGER

Inpediately priore 1o the consummation of the Olening, the Limaed Loabuliny Company will be anerged
with and mto LOC Tnternational, LCC Intermational will be the surviving company i the Merger, and the
separate existence of the Limited Liability Company will cease. As a result of the Merger, LCC International
will own all of the assets and rights and be subject w ull of the obligations and liabiliiies of the Lumited
Licbility Company, including those under the Credit Facility and the MOl notes. Because the Merger s
mtended o qualify as tax-free under Section 151 of the Code, the tax hasis of the assets held by 10 ¢
Internations alter the Merger will be the same as the tax basis of the assets held by the Linmuted Luabihty
Company immediately before the Merger, and LCC Inmernational will add 10 its holding period for certain
assets the period for which the Limited Liatality Company held such assets.

In conncction with the Merger, 11,250,751 shares of Class B Common Stock will be issued 10
RI' Investors, ¥5,233 shares of Class B Common Stock will be issued to the Founder Corporation and
%A1 shares of Class A Common Stock will be issued 10 TC Group, Immediatiiy pnior 1o the Merger,
Telcom Ventures will transfer its membership interest in the Limated Liability Company o RE Tnvestors in
return for o membership interest in RE Investors of 995 (the remaning membersship interests of 00 75% and
0.25% will be held directly by the Founder € arporation and TC Group, respectivelv i Teas presently antended
that subseguent to the Offering, the Founder Corporation and TC Group will contnbute thewr shares of
Common Stock to RF Investors. As a result of the Merger, RF Investors and the Founder Corporation will
own Class B Common Stock which will represent upon consummation of the Offering 94 4% of the combined
vating power of both classes of Common Stock. See “Risk Factors — Control o the Company by
BRI Investors™ and “Descrption of Capmital Stoch ™

Pursuant to the Merger, LCC International will be required to indemmifly Telcom Ventures, RE Investors,
the Founder Corporation, the Carlyle Investors and TC Group against obligations and liabilities associated
with the Limited Liability Company’s operutions. LCC International will bear all of the costs incurred by the
Limited Liability Company and such entities, including transfer taxes and relited fees, in connection wuh the
Merger,
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THE MCIENOTES, MCENOTE ASSUMPTION, MCT CONVERSION

In June 1994 the Limited Liability Company and Teleom Ventures entered mte o Note Purchase
Apreement with o then unrelated thind party, MUL shich prosuded Tor the ssuance of o S20 mnllien
subordinated note by the Limited Liability Company (the “LCC Note™) and of & $30 million subuordinated
note by Telecom Ventures (the “Telcom Ventures Note™) to MCHin return for cash in such amounts When
M1 entered into this transaction, it advised the Company that MCT intended the transaciion 1o Lwihitate it
plans. at that time, to acquire licenses o buld-out and operate o mational PCS sastem Inoconnection
therewith, it was contemplated that MO would utilize the services and products of a separate division of the
Company. MC1 has not pursued acquisition of licenses for i national PCS network, has not entered into any
service arrangements with the Company and, as a result, MCs role regarding the Lumited Liabalitny Company
has been hmited to that of o passive financial investor.

The LCC Note and the Telcom Ventures Note (collectively, the “Eachangeable Notes™) are both due
June 28, 2000 and bear interest at a rate equal 1o the higher of 6.8% per annum, payable semiannually, or an
amount which approaimates the return had they comverted into a membership interest in the Limited Liabihiny
Company from the date when the Exchangeable Notes were issued. Immediately prior 1o the Merger. the
Telcom Ventures Note will be assumed by the Linnted Liability Company (the “MCT Note Assumiption’ ).
aned the $30 million prinaipal repayment obligation and interest thereon will become the sole abligation ol the
mited Liabiliny Company and, following the Merger. the sole obligation of the Company

The Exchangeable Notes are exchangeable at certan specitied times, including dunng the 45 day perid
commencing on June 27, 1997 (MCT exchange right). the 45 day penod commencing on August 7. 1
(Company exchange night ), and the same respectine penods in 1998 and 1999 and including upon certain
extraordinany events, such as merger or sale of all assets of the Company. tender offer for more than 259 ol
the Common Stock or distribution of assels representing 8% or more of the total assets of the Company. Any
exchange of one note must include the exchange of the other note. The Company presently intends Lo exercise
its exchange option in August 1997 to cause the Exchangeable Notes to be exchanged into 2R41L,099 shares ol
Class A Common Stock (such exchunge is herein referred 10 i the "MCT Conversion™ ). The Company s
pranted MO registration rights which will be exercisable following the MOT Conversion. See "Certan
Fransactions — Registration Kaghts ™

USF OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds to the Company Trom the Otfenng are estimated 1o be approammately $39.10 nnllion,
(approximately $45.3 million if the Over-Allotment Option iy exercised in full). alter deductimg the estinated
underwriting discount and estimated transaction fees and expenses payable by the Company The net proveeds
of the Offering will be used (i) to repay entirely the amount outstanding under the Credit Facthin
(approximately $20 million), (i) to advance $3.5 million to Telcom Ventures to assist Teleom Ventures in
paving certain taxes due in connection with the MCE Note Assumption (the “Teleom Tay Advance™), and
(iit) for strategic financing of investments in customers and equipment vendors, acguisitions Cl Couipanics

with complementary products and services, and working capital and gencral corporate purproses

The terms of the Credit Facility, which (following an amendment to the Credin | avthtoy wall comtinne in
place after the Olenmg and the applecation of net proveeds thesetmm, are deserr’ 8 Dekow e detal
under the caption “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Kesults of Opera-
pons — Liguidity, Capital Resources and Other Financial Data ™ Following such amendment, the terms ol
the Credit Facility will be s follows. The maximum amount that the Company may borrow under the Credit
Facility is $20 million. which borrowing shall be in the form of revolving loans and letters of credit. Interest
under the Credit Facility acerues at the Company™s clection (subject o certim restrictiis amid lintations
contained 1 the Credit Agreement), at cither (1) a vanable rate (the “Vanable Rate™) eyual to the higher ol
() the Federal Funds Rate plus 0.50%, and (b) the announced prime commercial lending rate of ( hase, or
(i1) a fined rate (the “Fixed Rate™) for a designated penod of time (1, 2. 3 or 6 months ) equal 1o the rate at
which US. dollar deposits are offered to leading banks i the London interhank mvarket plis 1 25% Hhe
revolving loan commitment expires in September 1999 Subject to certam restoction on the nnmum
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permitted amount of any prepavment und the requirement thal certim notices of prepavment be given to
Chase. the principal of the revolving loans is prepayable without penalty or premium, so long as the Lenders
are compensated for losses, costs and expenses attributable © 2= prepayment of any loan acorumg interest at
the Fived Rite on o dite other than the last day of the appheable mterest penod. See “Management's
Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liguidity, Capital Resources and
Other Financial Data — Existing Indebtedness.”

The Teleom Tax Advance will be repayable over five vears, with equal annual principal pasments over the
term of the loan. Interest will acerue at the rate of LIBOR plus 1.75% and be pavable annually, Such loan will
be semior indebledness of Telcom Ventures. Upon the sale by Telcom Ventures or any of its atliliaies (dehined
as cach entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with, Telcom Ventures, each natural person
that controls Telcom Ventures and each member of Telcom Ventures as of the date of the loan) of shares of
Common Stock resulting in Telcom Ventures and such atliliates. in the aggregate, owning less than 25% of the
outstanding Common Stock, the Company may decliare the loan to be immediately duc and pasvable. See
“Certan Transactions — Advances to and from Telcom Ventures and Related Parties.™

The Company penodically reviews acquisition and strategic imvestment opportunities that are reluted to
the Company’s business and belicves that it is desirable 1o have funds on hand so as to e ahle o make
acquisitions and strategic investments promptly. As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company has no
specific agreements, understandings, commitments, or arrangements with regard to any particular future
acyuisition or strategic investment, and no assurances can be given that the Company will be able to
consummate any acquisitions or strategic investments or that, if consummited, such acquisitions would be on
terms that are favorable to the Company.

The Company's proposed use of proceeds is subject 1o changes in general, ¢conomic and competitive
conditions, tmng and management discretion, eiach of which may change the amount of proceeds expended
for the purposes intended. The proposed application of proceeds is also subject 1o changes in market conditions
and the Company’s finuncial condition in general

Pending such uses. the net proceeds will be invested in short-term investmient gride, interest beanng
abligations. The Company will not receive any proceeds from the sale of Cliss A Common Stock by the
Selling Stockholder.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company does not anticipate paying dividends on the Common Stock. ¢ash or otherwise, in the
foreseeahle future. In addition, the Credit Facility prohibits the payvment of dividends by the Company without
consent of the Lenders. Future dividends, if any. will be at the discretion of the Bourd of Directors and will
depend upon, among other things, the Company's operations, capital requirements and surplus, general
financial condition, contractual restrictions and such other factors as the Board of Directors may deem
relevant




IEETTRON

The pro forma net tangible book vialue ol the Company on June 3, 19 (determned as il the Merger
and MO 1 Note Assumption but not the Offering had occurred on June 30, 1996), was $030.3) mulluin, or a
pro furma per share amount of approximately $12 661 Pro forma net tangible bk value per share represents
the amount of total tangible assets less the amount ol ot liabilines divided by the total number of pro lormia
shares of Common Stock outstanding. After gnng effect to the receipt of approximately $39.0 mullion o
estimated net proceeds of the sale by the Company of 275 million shares of Class A Common Stock pursuant
to the Otfering and the Telcom Tax Advance of S35 million, the pro forma net tangible ook value of the
Company at June 30, 1996 would have been approvimately $5.3 mullion or $38 per share. This change
represents an immediate increase in pro forma net tanmble book vilue of $303 per share to the exsning
aockholders and an immediate dilution of $15.62 per share 1o new investors purchasing shares of Cliass A
Common Stock i the Offerig. The following table ilustrates the substantial and immediate dilution 1o new
s ealurs

Ollenng price per share. ... .. [ S16.04
Pro forma nei tangible book value per share before Offening : S(2.60)
Increase per share attnbutable 1o new mvestorsi b0 oo A
Prov forma net tangible book value per share after Offening(1) ; 38
SI5h2

Dilution per share 1o new investors(2)(3) : ; 1562

(1) After deducting underwnting discounts, and estimated transaction fees and eapenses of approaimately
$1.% million, 1o be paid by the Company in connection with the Offening.

(2) Dilution s determined by adding net tangible book value per share afier the Offerning 1o the amount
assumed paid by o new investor for a share of Cliss A Common Stowk

(31 Assuming the Over-Allotment Option is exercised an Tull, pro lorma net tangible hook value of the
Company alter the Offering would be $0.79 per shure and the immediate dilution 1o new myvestors would
he 1821 per shure.

Ihe following table summarizes the difference between exiting stockholders tdetermned s if the
Merger had occurred on June 30, 1996) and new investars with respect o the number of shares of Commuon
Stock purchised from the Company. the total consideration pad Lo the Company by the purchisers of shares
of Class A Commen Stoek in the Otfering and by the existing stockholders, and the werage price pad per

sliare onan as-adjusted buasis,

__'rh_nt_u_!':_rtbnrd ~ loral € onsideraiion Average Price
Sumber Petorntage Amouni Petcentage FFer Share
New Investors . g 2,750,000 1955 S UNLHHD KON LI ERLY
Eaisting Stockhholders( 1) . oo 11364395 KOS 10423000 192 nul
Tatal | e 1AI4,395(2) 10007 $S4.423.000 e

(1) The existing stockholders are RI Investors, the Founder Corporation and TC Group. See "Principal and
Selling Stochhalders ™ Othier than 10 shares of Class A Common Stock purchased i connection with the
formation of LCC Tnternanonal, the Common Stock reflected in thas table as being owned by the existing
dochholders will be issued 1o them in the Merger, See “The Merger.” The above table does not include
the shares issuable upon the MCI Conversion. See "The MO Notes, MO Note Assumption, MO
Conversion.”

() Duses not include 412,500 shares of Class A Common Stock issuable upon exercise of the Over-Allutment
Option that the Underwriters have the option to purchase from the Company to vover onver allitenents, ol
any. or 3979000 shares of Cliss A Common Stock amid € Liss B Comman stk resened or o be
reserved Tor issuance under the Company s stock option, directon’ of stock purchase plans or lor options

pranted o the Calvle Option Designees. See “Underwntng™ and ““Munagement Stock Plans ™
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CAPITALIZATION

[ he tollowing table sets torth at June 30, 1996 (1 the combined capitalization of OO Tnternationad and
the Linuted Lubihiny Company and (1) the pro form combined captabizaton of the Company as adjusted
for the Merger. the MCT Note Assumption and the Offening. including the apphcation of $20 mullion of the
estimited net proceeds of the Offening 1o pay ofl amounts outstanding under the © redit Facihing. See U se il
Proceeds,” This table should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Sttements and relared
notes thereto included clsewhere in this Prospectus

As of June Wi, 199

Actuali 1) Adjusi e niy Pros Fuima
(ho thonsands g

Short-term debt, including current installments of long-term debi(2)  S20,000 S 20ANK ) §
Fong-term e

Comvertihle Subondinated Debt S20.000 S ML 14 $50.000

Total long-term debt ... 20,000 HTET] SULIHN)
Limited Liabilny Company equity (A REY 218 %)
Stockholders” equity:
Class A Common Stock, S0.01 par value:
TOO00.000 shares authonzed; -0- and 5278411 shares aued
and outstanding, respectively : S1an) hl
Class B Common Stock, SO.01 par value:
20,000,000 shares authonsed: <0- and RE3I5 954 shares vsued
LL Y b1

and outstinding, respectively ...
Preterred Stock:

TOOD0.000 shares authonzed: -0- shares issued and outstanding
Pand=in capital
Retamed carmings

s AN 1) 5404

S0 0Ty 4200
Lot stockholders” equity uxil R

Foral capitalization SITHOG S a1 908 LAy Nt

(1 Combined capitalization of LCC International and the Limited Loty Company as of June 30, 19%0

12) Represents amounts outstanding under the Credit Facihty. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations — Liguidity, Capital Resonrces and Other Binancial
Data — Lasting Indebledness.”

(1) Retlects the application of $20 mullon of the estimated net procecds of the Otlenng to pay ol amounts
oulstandhing under the Credit Facilaty,

(4) Reflects MUT Note Assumption.

(51 Refleets chmimation of Limited bty Companmy gty upon the Merger and conve s B Sl
whapter © Corpminition

(6} Represents allovation of estimated proceeds from the Offenng of $39.12% mallon, the Merger, the MO
Note Assumption, and the Telcom Tax Advance of $3.5 nullion

-
-4
-

Includes non-recurnng pavment of compensation cxvpense of 3049 anlhon (net of apphicable taws)
resulting from the dvadend to Teleom Ventures of the pote recemable from Teleom b entures hebd by the
Company. See “Managements” Discussion and Analysis of Financal Condition and Results of Opera
tons Liguidiny, Capital Resources and Other Fiancial Datas — Cash Flows ™ Abse ancligdes o none
recurnng deferred tay benelt from conversion from a linited lababiy company tooa Subchapter
Corpotation for income tax purposes, estimated to be approviniately 36 9 milhon.and bned Tabaliy
Company ooty of $¢2 1880 nnlhon
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SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

Set forth below are (1) selected consolidated financial duta s of and for the five years eaded December 311991 throsugh
1995, which data hase been derived from the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements that have been audited by b "M
Peat Marwick DL i) selected timancial data for the six months ended June 30, 1995 and 1996, s hwh datia have been derived
from the Compam's unaudited financial statements, and (1) selected pro forma consolidated summany of operations data tor
the vear ended December 31, 1995 ind the six months ended June 30, 1996 and selected pro forma consolidated Balance sheet
bt i of June ML 1996, which data pive effect to the Merger, the MO Note Assumption and the iMlenng (includhing the
application of $20 mmllion of the estimated net proceeds of the Olermg 1o pay entirely the amount outstanding under the € redit
Facility and the Telcom Tax Advance) as if cach had occurred as of the begimmng of the respective pro form periods. In the
opinion of the Company, the unaudited data for the six month perods include all adpustonents necessan tor a Lur presentation
of such imtormation. Operating results for the six months ended June 30, 199 gre not necessanly indicative of the results that
s be achiesed for any intenm periods during the year ending December 3110 1996 or any Tuture penods The selected
comsolidated tinancial data set forth below should be read in conpunction with “Management’s Discussion and Analvsis ol
Fanancial Condition and Resulis of Operations™ and the Consalidated Francial Statements and related notes thereto muluded
clsewhere in this Prospecius

Sin Months b aded
o ] Near Fnded December U, June M),
[Rall 1992 1wy 1 1% s s R 19

o bormat 13200 Pro bormai iy
i1n ihousands, except per share data)

Consolidated Statements of
Ohperations Data:

Koeenucs

Senwe feveimigs LRI R AY SHLTEY WM % Al i & redible L e TRL U LU LY ]
Prowduct pevenis [ T L L R LR LR e ETTRE R it M MR MY
Tostal fesenues ETIN T g 14} IR Th ks Jind 4o 1 340 TR TR TR [FIRLL ]

€ oamt wl resenoes

Cant o somfiiee FEVenues Nodea 2 s w7 h N LR 44 s 44 hn} 4N N LT NI
Camt ol prosluct tesennes SRt Th | TR 1 0124 i ) R L 2% 448 [H AL 14,71 4 T
Fotal womt ool pes@nues 802 LR 700 Midkd o L AT LA T T T w2
Linns profit HLTUS 22408 2R ug ey (R AR (RIS LA 10 842

Eiperating caponises

Sales and marketing T am CRET d.907 amti “« wi ryd bk NTER
Ceenerad and admnistratne S Lk 4 T L TR 1 dne TN JuTT &M SR
Sunvash compe raatie LI 4 tedie 4 tdns b e | s
Paepresiation and amoriisation 1511 1.7 1m0 ] 1 Ve 1.3%] 2t PP Jan
Fonal aperating capenwes T4 U LT 1k 2437 M2 [0 = T N Py | 5.4 B
Dyperaling inuoms 3,332 183 114an noA T LRI Wi I Mg 4410 4414

UMhicr ot feyjense i

Interest, ol el | md (e Tl N P2 1wy RN ity g ] Jusy L
(hher m [ P2 5 | N N Jas | oo (NN
Pl ertbiwd aniwesiiig feapaenie ) AdS i (LA ST AR (R T P44 LR S AR
Irwiitie belote shiatng Laves 4,107 14141 A2 T oL i RiM L 4 Ty 4.0k
Pieevtstonm Dot piie it Laves 7 Y LRl AT R INE b e T | S (LY
S b 0T o o s LS TF T ¥ R TON {1 L RUR TR T S 1] A RIC™ ! . $ il Bt P
Pro Forma Data
Peis fiarmnad et oh e 4T L dnd § IATdIN L TP P
P formoa met incoitie pot share L T TR ] [IRE ¢ 2hd £ ul

iMher Thata
[N TR N NE ] S oANA St SR YR CDT ORI AT b ol
0 apaial | ospemditures JAN | [P L '] 4. 353 o U2 140

bl
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Year Foded December M, A June W
1w 1992 [kl 1 s [l 1y
110 (housands) Fro Yormai 1)
Consolidated Halanoe Sheet Data:
Cash £ 0T 8§ ke S N T SEedne 8 AT R4l L R
Working capital THTd A0 FRAN [EETTR B ol = U] [T i
Property, plant. and cquipment, net §udy (T §AHIS B S 440 R & Tdr
Fenses and other intangibles, net 0 i 1] 1?7 174 4 48 4
Fotal sanscts 19707 2210 41T sasmne nlad) mnone
Tatal debt L 44 LT F NITLLT] LORLLE Liian .
uReT IR 12 % AL 124 2 P

Fqunts (deticn )

(1 Adjusted to seflect the pro forma effects, as applicable, of the Cilenng Gincluding the applivation of estimated net priceeds of the Offering 1o 1eju
attounty outstanding under the € redat | acilits and related interest expense ), the Peloom Tay Adsance of 5% miflion the MU L Sote Nwswmmption and
related interest expense. wnid the Merger (assuming such offening. advance, assumption and merger onvumed on Linuan 1S cacept for comalided
balance sheet data. which assumes such transactions occurred on June W, 199¢)

In connection with the Offcring and the Merger, the Company will be converting 1o a Subchapter € corpotation under the € ade P i
Company has been a limited fiability company for Federal and cortaim state income Ly purpames As sl inaaone of the Comipanin was tavabie to the
individual members rather than to the Company. Accondingly, the proviin for iscome taves for the sears ended December VP o Bl the e
months ended June 30, 1995 and 1996 represents state inconne tases on carned income in those states that du oot recopnize ihe How througl natyre of ihe
limited Iuihalits company and foreign tanes Pro lomma net income oot of o prosesson ot apconie Baves s ol the Commpany sore o Sl bapler €
corporation it an asaemed effective meome tax rate of approvmatels A5 The amount of the pre Borie pros ionn Bar ancotie s i 35 750100 il
S1NR1RRE tor the year ended December 11, 1995 and the siv months cnded June MY 1PH, respectinely

Pro forma net income per share has been computed by dividing oo Lo net income by the pro B weghited avciage number of commion shares anid
cotmmon sliaie equivalats outstanding The amount of the weipghicd average shares used in the Compulation o pro e pet mwemic e shate 1.
(LR T ]

I HETDIA tepresents carmings before interest mcome, interest eapemse, other ncume. mcomic laxes, depreciation and amortization, ERITDA s commonh
wsed i the telecommunications industry 10 analyze companes on the buasis of operatng performance, leverage and bgurdinn. EBETDA oo iot intended 1o
represent cash o fir peinads, nor has it been ‘ll‘t“lv:l'l“‘jla\ an altermative 1o operating income of as an indicator of opctating pecfotmiance and shodld o
e considered in isalation of ax a substitute for measunes of performance prepared i accordance with generally accepted accountimg pomoples See the
Company's Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows in the € ompans s L omsahidated I inancnal Statements dontamed clewhere in this Prospectus

*ro forma net ancome has been adjusted 10 reflect the pro Jorma eflects of the conversion of the Compans fooa Subschapier © carg
I amount of the pro forma frovision o income taxes 15 S LIS TINE and S0 0000 for the sear ended Decernber F10 1995 and the sin memths ended

June MY, 1, respectivels. Weighted averape shares used in the computation of pro forma net income per share i ppprronamiately 14 6 minllom

T 1T AT T

e
-

4

Uhaifi Bsee 100 abeibg §

-
»

Includes mon-recutnng pasment of compensation expense of 309 million (oet of applicable tives) from the dinadend o Tedoom Yentures of 1he mite
resenable fnom Teleom Ventutes held by the Company. See “Munagements’ Discussion and Analyas af Dinancial € ondiin amd Besulis of 41petatums

1 wqusdiny, Capital Resources and other Financial Data — Cash Flows ™ Aloancludes a non-recurnng deferred tas benehit Do gonve s frong o Jinited
habihity company o a Subchapter C corporation [of income tas purposes, estimated 10 be approvimarely 3659 anthon the MUT Note Assamjinon the
(Mlering and the Telcom Tan Advance of $3.5 million
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AMANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

(heniew

LCC is one of the world's largest independent providers of RF engincenng and network design services
and products to the wireless telecommunications industry. The Company has provided these services, along
with related proprictary software touls and ficld measurement and analysis equipment, 1o operators of more
than 200 wircless systems in more than 40 counines.

The Company’s revenues are generated through contracts for RE engincering and program management
wervices, licenses of the Company’s software products and sales of the Company’s ficld measurement and
analysis products. LOC provides engineering services on a contract basis, usually in a customized plan for each
client. The Company generally charges for engincening services on a time and materials basis, although
Phase | services or other projects of short duration may involve i fixed price or success fee. The Company
generally provides program management services on a time and materials basis, such contracts often have
ceilings on cost ser eell site. The Company’s revenues also include reimbursement for expenses, including the
living expenses of engineers on customer sites (approximately 15% of revenues from RF engincenng services
for 1995). The software tools used by LCC's engincers, which are used as part of the customer’s system after
completion of the project pursuant to a license, are recorded as product, not service revenucs, Revenues from
wftware tools are carned under license arrangements, which in the US. often consist of an annual fee per
workstation or per cell site and which are for a fixed term that requires rencwal by the customer to retain the
software. The Company charges an up-front fee in many cases outside the U.S. where customers are nol
aceustomed to paving annual licensing fees for software, A portion of the revenues from licensing software 1o
customers, apart from those associated with engineering services contracts, consists of upgrades or additional
software modules developed by the Company following the initial licensing. Revenues from ficld measurement
and analvsis equipment consist primarily of one-time paymenls, although there are some penodic rental
paviments and there may be additional charges for cquipment maintenance and upgrades.

Service revenue consists of revenues from engineering services (approximately 56 3% of 1995 revenues)
and program management services Gapproximately SO0% of 1995 revenues), which the Company commenced
providing in 1995, Product revenue consists of revenue from software tools approximately 18.5% of 1995
revenues) and revenue from field measurement and analysis products  (approximately 20.2% of 1995
revenues'. The Company derives a significant proportion of s revenues from its international customers
(approxinaately 39% in 1995). Since almost all of the Company’s contracts are denominated in U.S. dollars,
the Company generally does not maintain currency hedge agreements

Cont of revenues consists of costs associted with engineenng design services and program management
services as well sy costs associated with the production and design of lield measurement and analysis
equipment, licensing of software and related maintenance costs. Sales and marketing expenses consist of
salaries, sales commissions, travel and other expenses required to implement the Company’s marketing, sales
and customer support plans, General and administrative expenses consist of the compersation, finance,
information systems, professional services, office and occupancy costs required to manage the Company’s
bustness. Non-cash compensation consists of awards under a program for key exccutives adopted in 1994,
Such plan is accounted for as a vanable plan and, therefore, to the extent that the deermicd fair market value of
the Company increases, compensation expense will increase uecordingly. Ttis anticipated that, in connection
with the Offening, the Company will grant options 1o replace the awards granted under this plan. 1ts expecied
thant such options will be granted with excrose prices substantially below the il pubbic olfenng prnice. See
“Management  Stock Plans™

The key drivers of LCC's growth have historically been (1) tne issuances of new or additional wireless
telecommunications licenses by governmental authorities to wireless operators, (i) increases in the number of
cell sites operated and the number of subscribers served by wireless network operators, (i) the mtroduction of
mew senvives or technologies, (iv) the increasimg complexity of the systems deployed by wircless network
operations and (v) the expansion and optimization of existing systems by wireless nctwork operators. To keep
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pave with the subscriber growth currenthy anticipated by most indostne analvsts, LOC expects that thiere will
continue o be significant investment by network system operators over the nest few vears i design senace

software tools and beld measurement and analvsis equipment. The Company expects that as svstem buldeon
is completed and areas (particularly i the ULS begim to hive muluple network operatorns, the dennnd o
RE enpincenng services will change. Sce “Husiness The LOC Stratepy Offer and Develop New Tapes of
Services and Products — Phase 4 System Lhicieney Services and Products™ From 1991 1o 1995 the averag
vperating gross margins of the Company were approsiately 3435 ol total revenue and the compound anmil
growth rate of s operating pross prolit was approxinuitely 33005 Giross profits as o percent ol total resenues
generally declined from 1993 through December 31, 1995 due 10 the factors desenbed below . There can e
assuranee s 1o the effect of murket changes impacting the Company. See “Risk Factors Clhonpes
Adversely Impacting Demand for the Company’s Products and Services" and = Bashs From € ompetation

Results of Operations

The Tollowing table sets forth certain items as a percentage ol revenue from the Company's audited
comolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 1L 1993 1993, and 1995 and the
umaudited statements for the six months ended June 300 1995 and 1996,

i Muonths

) ‘lfl_l\ l'l'll‘.ll-rd Ihecembser ‘l_. I nded June M),
ja g 1w Jus 1
Revenues:
Service revenucs . AN S34r; T I 6 N R A
Product revenues : EUN| At 8.7 7.2 ity
Fotal revenues ... .. i . S 1000 1K) 100 TR TEbL)
Costol Tevenues .. ............. y ceevimas, ABEK trfs 4 [IEN TN 7 1y
Gross profit K8 b i gy 174
Operating espenses:
Sales and marketing . : j i\ 0 b S0 ¥ S
General and administrative Wy 116 M7 17 R
Non-cash compensation i 0o 4.1 44 s i)
Pepreciation and amortization : il 24 14 14y 12
Total aperating expenses v 251 232 2sn hesy |
Operating meome: ... ... .. ... SR AT AR T 154 b 8.7 42 1.3
Uther meome lexpense )
Interest ncome ... ... - : ) TR 07 06 s =
Interest expense . (41} (4 (2.7 (22 127
{Mher T (1K) 0 14 2N
Latal other inconie (expense) . . . . i1 0.7 i1.2) (11 i
Income hefore income taxes . . IX% . J5 74 v T4
Provasion for income Gises |4 27 L |1 ‘i
Ml mginme 174 5% 4.5 .ty B

Sixv Months Ended June 30, 1996 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 1995

Revennes Revenues Tor the siy months coded Tupe W, 1990 were gpguosanate s Seo d mnllon conpaied
tor approvimieitely Sa66 mllion Bor the siv mnths ended Tane M, 1995 an ncrease of apposingitels
SUAK pulhon or 2906%., Service revenues were approsimatels $39.3 mulhon compared to approsimuatels
$29.2 nullion for the comparable six months of the prior scar, an increase of approsoatels STOCL illon o
M5 The inerease was due o new devand Tor enpineenng design services trom the PCS nnarket and
revennues penerated by the program oanagement division, which commenced operations i 1995 Pronduct
revenues lor the six months ended June 30, 1996 were approsimately $21 1 oodbon commpared toapprosimaiely
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$17.3 million for the comparable six months of the prior year, an increase of approximately S35 milhon or
21.8%. The increase was due primarily to growth in hardware sales, which increased approsimately
£2.3 million or 25.7"% between vears

Cond of Beventies and Gross Profit. Cost of revenues was approstmately $40.8 mwidlion tor the siv manths
ended June 30, 199 compared to approsimately $33.0 million tor the s pionths ended June 30, 1995 2m
ierease of approvimitely $7.8 million or 23,85, As a pereentage of total revenues., cost of revenues wis 67.6%
and TUX% for the siv months ended June 30, 1996 and the six months ended June 30, 1995, respectively
Giross profit was approximately $19.5 million for the it siv months of 1996 compared 10 approximtely
S1 46 llon tor the comparable penod of the poor year, an imerease of approximuately $54 milhon or 43975
s percentage of total revenues, gross profit was 12.4% and 29.2% for the six months ended June 30, 1996
amd JUS, u--,!mc.ni\.-cl:._ The ;.ppnnim;ur]:. £5.9 pullion Increase i gEross me'tI Largely resulted Trom
corresponding revenue growth. The increase in cost of revenues wis due, in part, to the Company™s buthd-up ot
engineering and related staff 1o serve the PCS market, particularly in the program management division

Sales and Marketng Sales and marketing expenses were approximately $3.0 million for the siv menths
ended June 30, 1996 compared to approximately $29 million for the six months ended June 30, 1995, an
increase of approximately $0.1 million or 3.6%. As a percentuge of total revenues, sales and marketing
expenses decreased 1o 5.0% for the first six months of 1996 compared 1o 6.3% for the comparable perod of
995 promanily as o result of o reduction in labor costs

Coenergd and Vdmeinistrative. General and adonmstralive expenses were approsimately $6.0 milhon for
for the first siv months of 1996 compared 10 $5.0 million for the first six months of 1995, an increase ol
approsinitely $1.0 million or 19.9%. The increase was primarily the result of an increase in the allomance Tor
doubtful accounts due to increasing revenues. As i percentage of total revenues, general and administrative
eapenses were 9% and 10.7% for the six months ended June 30, 1996 and 1995, respectively, s the increase
in revenues outpaced growth in general and administrative expenses

Non-Cash Compensation. Non-cash compensation inereased 1o approximately $3.6 nillion for the sin
months ended June 30, 1996, from approximately $2.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 1993, an
ncrease of approximately $1.2 million or S1.7%. The increase s the result of the vesting of certiamn portions ol
the award of non-cash compensation under the LLC Membership Plan and an increase in the deemed Lar
market value of the Company.

Aot fcome. Net income was approximately $3.0 million for the six months ended June 0. W96
compared 1o approximately $0.7 million for the six munths ended June 30, 1995, an increase of approximately
£2 1 million or 307.1%. The increase was the result of an inereise in gross profit from corresponding resenue
prowth, and an merease inother income due 1o the sale of the Company’s SO mterest in Telemate, 5. b
approsmuitely $3.8 million offset by an increase i general and administrative expenses, non-cash compensa-
tion, depreciation and amortization expenses, interest expense and meome taes. Deprecration and amortiza-
tion expense increased approximately $1.2 million the first six months of 1996 o approximately $25 million s
a result of the increased samount of amortization of capitalized soltware development costs Interest capense
increased approsimately $0.6 milhon lor the first six months of 1996 o approsimately $1.6 o lan promarnidy as
A result uf horrowings under i Note Purchase Agreement dated as of My 30, 1995 bemween Nomura Holding
America. Ine. (“Nomura™) and the Company (the “Nomura Faciliy™) and costs & sockted with the
purchase of the Nomura Facility by Chase. See “Management’'s Discission i Aribvsis of Pl
Condition and Resalts of Operations — Diguiditg, Capital Resources and Other Financiad 1ats I sisting
Frnde bediness  Tncome taxes increased approniately SO nullon, or T35, 10 approvimately $18 milhon
for the s months ended June 30, 1996 primarily as a result of revenue growth

Year Ended December 31, 1995 Compared 1o Year Ended December 31, 1994

Revennes Revenues lor 1995 were approxinuitely 103 S pallion versus approsinatels S760 1 wllon dor
P, ancrease ol approsimately $25.4 million or 3715 Service revenues were approsiniitely $64.0 mllion
i 1995 cersus approsimately $41.1 million in 1994, an increase of approximately $229 million or 33.9% . The
IBCTease i service revenues was prmarily due to new husiness in the PCS market combined with an imcreise
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in revenues from domestic cellular and ESMR operators. Further, the program management division
commenced aperations an 1995 and had revenues of approximately $5.2 milhion. Product revenues were
approximately $40.5 million for 1995 compared o approvmately $35.0 malhon for 1994, an anerease of
approximately $5.5 million or 15.6%. An increase in software hicensing revenue was oflset by s shght dechine in
field measurement and analysis product sales. The increase in software licensing revenue was largely due to
mereased international revenues. The Company expenenced a stagnant demand for s held measurement and
amalysis products dunng 1994 (reflected in revenues from Gield measurement and aonalvsis products for 1995
when it devoted its resources 1o enhancing its own tield measurement and analysis product development
capabilities ruther than developing new products.

Cost of Revenues and Gross Profit. Cost of revenues increased to approximatels $710 mullion for 1995
compared to approximately $50.5 million for 1994, an increase of approximately $2006 pullion or J0.9% . Ax
percentage of total revenues, cost of revenues was approximately 68 1% and approsimatels 66 4% for 1995 and
1994, respectively. Ciross profil was approximately $33.3 million for 1993 from approximatels $25.6 million for
1994, an increase of approximately $7.7 million or 30.3%. As a percentage of total revenues, gross profhit was
approximately 31.9% and 33.6% for 1995 and 1994, respectively. The approximately 7.7 mnllion increase in
pross profit Largely resulted from corresponding revenue growth. The increase in costs of revenues and the
dechne in gross profit as g percentage of total revenues were due, in part, 1o the Company™s build-up of stall 1o
serve the PCS business which was followed by the slower than anticipated development of that business,
competitive pressures with respect 1o field measurement and analysis products and software tools, and costs
associated with the start-up of the program management division

Sales und Murketing. Sales and marketing expenses were approximately 85X mullion fur 1995 compared
to appronimately $5.0 million for 1994, an increase of approximately SO.8 milhion, or 1685 The increase was
primarily attributable to growth in the Company’s marketing personnel 1o support the increase in revenues. As
a percentage of tolal revenues, sales and marketing expenses decreased 1o approvmuately S6% for 1995
compared to 6.6 for 1994, as o result of a greater rate of increase in revenues relative o the prowth i sales
and marketing expensces,

General and Adnunistrative. General and administrative expenses were approximately $1OU million for
1995 comnared to approximately $8.8 million for 1994, an increase of approsimiately $1.3 million or 1485
The increase was primarily the result of ncreases in the Company’s administrative personnel 1o support
prowth. As o percentage of total revenues, general and admimstrative expenses were approumtely 9.7% and
approximately TLOE for 1995 and 1994, respectivels, due to the ived nature of certan overhead costs

Nan-Cash Compensation. WNon-cash compensation increased 1o approvmately $46 nollion for 199
from approximately $3.3 million for 1994, an increase of approximately $1.3 million or 42 7%, The increase
was the result of an increase in the vesting of the awards under the 1LC Membership Plan and an crease in
the deemed fair market value of the Conpany.

Net Income Net income was approsimatels $4.7 million for 1995 compared 1o approvimeaiels €50 mul-
lion for 1994, u decrease of approximately $0.3 mullion or 4.6%. As a percent of fotal re cnues. nel ncame
decreased to approximately 4.5% for 1995 from approximately 6.5% for 1994 The decrewse in net income of
03 omllion wis the result of an increases in operating expenses, interest expense. and th provision for income
Ly Drepreciton and amorbization expense imereased s aoresalt of the capitabization amd amortization of
external costs ancurred by the Company i connection with the apgrade of s Tiancnsd mfonmation ssstcns
Interest expense increased approximately $2.1 mullion or 29305 for 1995 s result of additional borrowings
under the Nomura Facility which was used 1o dividend and loan funds 1o Telcom Ventures Income taves
increased approximately $1.1 million or $4.2% for 1995 as a result of an increase in the absolute amount ol
international revenues.

Year Ended December 31, 1994 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 1993

Revenues Revenues for 1994 were approximiately $76.1 million compared to approximatels $60.3 mullion
for 1993, an increase of approximately $158 mullion or 26 1% Service revenues were approximately
FAL 1 mdhon for 199 versas approsimadely $ 0.7 muldbon for 1995 an increase of approsomatels $104 aullion
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or 33.7%. Engincening design services aceounted for the entire increase as the progrim nunagement services
did not commence until 1995 The incrcase in engineenng design services revenues wias pramaniy due to
signiticantly increased revenues from domestic cellular and ESMR operators International engineening design
service revenues grew at a slower rate in 1994 due to the completion of several major Luropean projecis. which
were oflset by a broademng of the Company s international clicnt base. Produgt revenues were approximately
$35.0 million for 1994 versus approximately $29.6 million for 1993, an increase of approximately $5.4 mallion
or 18.2%. An increase in field measurement and analysis product sales was offset by dechne i sofiware
licensing revenue The increase in field measurement and analysis product sales was primunly duc toncreases
in European sales and sales to ESMR operators. In addition, sales to domestic cellular operators and to
systems operators in Asia and South America increased. The decline in software licensing revenucs was i
result of increased customer requirements for UNIX-based products at a time when the Company's UNIX-
based products were still being developed. as well as increased competition in software products,

Cost of Revenues and Gross Proft. Cost of revenues was approximately $50 § milhon for 1994 compared
to $37.1 million for 1993, an increase of approximately $13.4 million or 360 As a percentage of total
revenues, cost of revenues was approximately 66.4% and approximately 61.5% for 1994 and 1993, respectively
Gross prefit was approvimately $25.6 million for 1994 compared to $23.2 million for 1993, an increase ol
approximately $2.4 nulhion or 10.2%. As a percentage of total revenucs, gross profit was approanmately 13675
for 1994 compared 1o approximately 38 8% for 1993, The approximately $2.4 million increase in gross profit
resulted primarily from corresponding revenue growth, The increase in the cost of revenues and the decling in
gross profit as a percentage of total revenues were due, in part, to an invesimenl in training and process
development for PCS capabilities by the engincening design scrvices division and increased cost of software
products relative to licensing revenues as a result of technical issucs associated with the development of
UNIX-based products,

Sales and Marketing Sales and marketing expenses were approximately $5.0 million for 1994 compared
to approximately $4.1 million for 1993, an incrzase of approximately $0.9 million or 20 3% As a perventage of
total revenues, sales and marketing expenses declined slightly to approximately 6.6% for 1993 as compared 1o
approximately 6.9% for 1993 The increase of approximately $0.9 million was pnmanly duc 1o an ncrease in
commissions paid 1o agents.

General and Administrative General and administrative expenses were approximately S8 % mllion for
1994 compared 1o approsimately $5.8 million for 1993, an increase of approximately $3.0 million or ST.R% As
a pereentage of tofal revenues, general and administrative expenses increased to approximately 11.6% for 1994
from approximately 9.6% for 1993, The increase was prmarily due to an increase in administrative labor costs
as a result of revenue growth.

Non-Cash Compensation  During 1994 the Company established the LLC Membership Plan for certam
of the Company’s key executives whose responsibilities and decisions affect the long-term growth and
profitability of the Company. Expense 1s recognized over the vesting period of the award and 1 based on a
percentage of the deemed fair market value of the Company. Non-cash compen<.uon under the LLC
Mecmbership Plan was approximately $3.3 million for 1994,

Net Income  Net income was approximately $90 million for 1994 comp . odw approvmately $1005 ol
lion for 1993, a decrease of approximately $5.5 million or 52.7%. As a percent of total revenues. nel mcome
declined to approximately 6.5% for 1994 from approximately 17.4% for 1991, The decrease in net INCOMe was
primarily due to an increase in gencral and administrative expenses, establishment of the 1 LC Membership
Plan and an increase in income taxes of approximately $1.2 milhon or 145 7% The increase in incomme Lises
was due o an increased amount of foreign income taxes as « result of an expanding nternational presence




Liquidity, Capital Resources and Other Financial Data

Additions o property and cquipment were approvmatels $4.2 million for 1995 compared 1o
mately $2.4 mullion for 1994 and approximately $1.9 anllion tor 19910 Approvmatels $09 nnlhon
SLE million increase from 1994 10 1995 related 1o an upgrade of the Company s iinancial information sy
sftware The renuander of the increase from 1994 10 1995 and the approximately $0 5 pullion increase
1998 1o 1994 represented ongoing additions to office furniture und computer equipment, Lirgely i suppont
the Company's expanding revenue base. Software development costs are prnimaniy wages and contractor lees
which are capitalized after establishing the commercial and technological feasibility of the pridudt

1991 LaT] e
tln millions )

Additions o property and equipment ; $19 24 $42
Investments in joint ventures . s i - (2 4
Software development costs - 1y 29

Total ; SI k4 §4.5 $7.5

Cush Flows

The Company has gencrally maintained a positive cash flow and has generally funded 11y operating
requirements with cash generated from operations, Cash and cash equivalents were approvmately $5.4 million
at June 30, 1996, 4 decrease of approximately $1.1 million or 17.3% from December 31, 1995 The decrease is
due primarnily 1o changes in operating assets and liabilities, No dividends were paid dunng the six months
ended June 30. 1996. Dividends paid during the six months ended June 30, 1995 were $9.5 oullion. Duning the
siv months ended June 30, 1996, the Company advanced approximately $4.8 million 1o its parent, Teleom
Ventures, under a revolving promissory note. Total advances of $14.1 million at June 30, 1996 are reflected as
4 reduction of members” capital in the statement of members capital in the accompanving unaudited
Consolidated Finaneial Sttements

Net cash generated from operations was approximately $4.5 million in 1995 and approximately
S50 million in 1994, Net cash used in operations was approximately $4.2 mallion i 1993, Dividends pand were
approximately $9.5 million in 1995, approximately $9.3 million in 1994 and approximately $7.7 million in
1993, In addition, during 1995 the Company loaned approximately $9.4 million 1o Telcom Ventures under a
revolving promissory note, classitied as a reduction of members' capital in the statement of members” capital
in the accompanyving Consolidated Financial Statements.

Cash und cash equivalents were $6.6 million at December 3, 1995, 4 decrease of approxamaltely
$11L.Y million or 64.4% from 1994, The decrease was due pramanly to the $9.4 mllion loan 10 Telcom
Venures, additional purchases of equipment and increased software development costs. Cash and cash
cquivalents were approximately $18.5 million at December 31, 1994, an increase of approvimately $9 3 mullion
or 10L4% from December 31, 1993 The increase wis primanly due to proceeds from the wavance of
convertible subordinated debt in June 1994 (see Note 11 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements )

Working capital gexcluding cash and cash equivalents and current portion of note payable) wa
approvimately S215 million at June 30, 1996 versus $21.1 million at December 31, 1995, an increase «
approximately $0.4 million or 2.0%. The increase is primanly the result of an increase in unbilled 2.4 trade
accounts receivables offset by an increase in accounts payable and accrued cApenses

Working capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents) was $21.1 million at December ¥, 1995 versus
approsimately $13.0 million at December 31, 1994, an increase of approximately $8.1 million or 61 7%, The
increiase wis pnmanly due to an increase in trade receivables as a result of higher overali sales actvity, hugher
export sules and a generally slower collection of receivables

Working capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents and current portion of pote pavable) was
approsiately STLO onlhon gt December ML 1994 versus approximately $26.0 mullion at December 31, 1991,
adecrease of approxmately. 100 nulhion or 49.8%. The decrease wis primarily the result of the transfer to
Felvom Ventures of certamn imvestments during the formation of the Limited Liahility ompany in 1934
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Liquidity, Capital Resources and Other Financial Daia

Additions to property and equipment were approumately $4.2 million for 1995, compared 1o approxs-
mately $2.4 million for 1994 and approximately $1.9 million for 1993, Approximutely $0.9 million of the
SLE million increase from 1994 to 1995 related 1o an upgrade of the Company’s hinancial information systems
software. The remainder of the increase from 1994 to 1995 and the approximately $0.5 million increase from
1993 10 1994 represented ongoing additions 1o office Turniture and computer equipment, largely in support of
the Company’s expanding revenue base. Software development costs are primanly wages and contractor fees
which are capialized after establishing the commercial and technological feasibility of the product

1991 1994 1995
(In millions)

Additions to property and equipment ... .. SPTOTE 519 $24 £4.2
Investments in joint venlures : ” : ; e 02 04
Software development costs ... ... ... .. s T B R B e 19 29

Cash Flows

The Company has generally maintained a posinve cash flow and has generally funded ns operating
requirements with cash generated from operations. Cash and cash equivalents were appronimately $5.4 million
at June 30, 1996, a decrease of approximately $1.1 million or 17.3% from December 31, 1995, The decrease is
due primanly to changes in operating assets and liabilities. No dividends were paid duning the six months
ended June 30, 1996, Dividends paid during the six months ended June 30, 1995 were $9.5 million. During the
six months ended June 30, 1996, the Company advanced approximately $4.8 million to its parent, Telcom
Ventures, under a revolving promissory note. Total advances of $14.1 million at June 30, 1996 are reflected as
a reduction of members’ capital in the statement of members’ capital in the accompanying unaudited
Consolidated Financial Statements,

Net cash generated from operations was approvimiately $48 million an 1995 and  approximately
8.0 million in 1994, Net cash used in operations was approximately $4.2 million in 1993, Dividends paid were
approximately $9.5 million in 1995, approximately $9.3 mullion in 1994 and approximately $7.7 million in
1993, In additon, during 1995 the Company loaned approximately $9.4 million to Telcom Ventures under a
revolving promissory note, classified as i reducnion of members” capital in the statement of members” capital
i the accompuin g Consolidated Finincial Statements

Cash and cash equivalents were $6.6 million a1t December 31, 1995, a decrease of approximately
$11.9 million or 64.4% from 1994, The decrease was due pnmanly to the $9.4 million loan 10 Telcom
Ventures, additional purchases of equipment and increased software development costs. Cash and cash
equivalents were upproximately $18.5 million at December 3, 1994, an increase of approximately $9.3 million
or 101L4% from December 31, 1993, The increase was pnmanly duc to proceeds from the issuance of
convertible subordinated debt in June 1994 (see Note 11 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements).

Working capital (excluding cash and cash cquivalents and current portion of note pavabic) was
approsimately: 8215 million at June 30, 1996 versus $21.1 million at December 31, 1995, an increase of
appronimatels S04 nullion or 200 The merease s proomanly the result of an increase i unbillad and trade
aceounts receivibles offset by an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses.

Working capital (excluding cash and cash equivalents) was $21.1 million a1 December 3, 1995 versus
approximately $13.0 million at December 31, 1994, an increase of approximately $8.1 million or 61 7%. The
incredse was pooarnly due to an increase in trade recevables as i result of higher overall sales activity, higher
export siles and a generally slower collection of receivables

Working capital (excluding cush and cash equivalents and current portion of note payable) was
approximately $13.0 million at December 31, 1994 versus approximately $26.0 million a1 December 31, 1993,
a decrease of approximately $13.0 million or 49.8%. The decrease was primarily the result of the transfer o
Telcom Ventures of certain investments dunng the formation of the Limited Liability Company in 1994,
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Capital Raised 1o Dare

-y

The Limited Liability Company was capitalized in L 1994 with o contribution of 3167
Telcom Ventures in exchange Tor o 99% interest in the Luted Liability Company. Feloom Ventures' capital
contribution consisted of approvmately $6.4 mullion in the form ol assets, nel of habihties assumed. formerly
emploved by the Founder Corporation and affiliates in the Company’s business, which were transierred 10 the
Limited Liuhility Company at their respective carnvang values, and approximately 103 million i vash received
by Telcom Ventures from the Carlvle Investors. The Tounder Corporition and TC Ciroup (on behall of the
Carlvle Investors) recensed 0.75% and 0.25% interests i the Dimited Liability Company

mullion from

The Company has raised capital on several occasions since the beginning of 1994, but on niist oceasions
has used such capital 1o make distributions to the Limited Liability Company's owner. Telcom Ventures, for
use by Telcom Ventures inits investment activities, which consist of investments in wireless license holders in
Asia and Latin America, Such distnbutions Tave included (0 a divudend of the proceeds ot and the guarantee
by the Company of the Telcom Ventures Note (see helow): () the lean o Teleom Ventures ol
approximately $9.4 million of the proceeds of the ssuance of $10 milhon of Vanable Rate Guaranteed Senor
Secured Notes 1o Nomura in June 1995; and (i) advances 1o Telcom Ventures of approvimately $3.1 milhon
in January 1996 of certiin proceeds from the sile of the Company s interestin | clemate, S.A In March 1996,
the Company borrowed $10 million from Chase to Jund two imvestments N customers, aggreganing
$11.5 million. s part of arcangements involving contracts agpregating STES mithon n orders for services and
products over the next five vears. See Note 19 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements

Existing Indebtedness

In June 1994, the Company and Telcom Ventures sold 20 milhon and 530 mullion, respecinnely, of notes to
MCL. which notes are exchangeable, at certain times, consisting of 43 day penods commencing i June and
August of 1997, 1995 and 1999, into 2 841,099 shares of Cliss A Common Stock. The Company distributed the
proceeds of its loan to Telcom Ventures, for use by Telcom Ventures inits investment activitics, s discussed in
more detail above. The $30 million owed by Telcom Ventures, which has been guaranteed by the Company, will
be assumed by the Compamy immediately prior o the Merper: The Company presenthy intends 1o exercise s
option in August 1997 1o cause the Exchangeable Notes 1o be exchanged mio Cliss A Comiman Suwk. The
events of default under the Exchangeable Notes (which would cause such notes 10 become due and payable)
include non-payment and bankruptey. See “The MCT Notes, MCT Note Assumphion, AMOT Comersion.”

I ective May 30, 1995 the Company entered mnto the Nomurs Faciliny under which Nomura agreed to
purchase from LLC up to $15 millon of Vanable Rate Guaranteed Senor Secured MNotes (the "Nomura
Notes” ). $10 million of which were issued on June S, 1995, The Nomura Notes were secured by substantially
all the assets of the Limited Liability Company and a pledge of all of Telcom Ventures” membershup interest
in the Limited Liability Company. Chase purchased the Nomura Nates in March 1996 and hecamie the lender
under these notes Also in March 1996, the Company barrowed an additional ST millon from ©hase o fund
two investments in customers, ageregating STLS mlhon, as part ol arrangements involving contracls
aggregating $115 million i arders for services and products over the neat iive veans. See “Busimes s — The
LCC Strategy — Establish Strategic Relationships with Carners and Egquipment Vendors ™

tn June 1996, the Tinnted ©iability Company amd s subaadiaries entered e the Eredir acthity with
Chase, s Admmsiratne Agent, and the Lenders. which Credit Faailiny will be mansterred o oo
International and amended and restated to reflect the transactions contemplated by the Merger immedaately
prior to the closing of the Offering. The Credit Facility consists of a revolving loan and letier of credit Gcility
in an aggregate principal amount not 1o exceed $20 million The revolving loan commutment will expire an
September 1999 Subject to certn restrictions on the mimmum permitted mount ol any prepasmient and the
requirement that certam notices of prepasment be given to Chise. the principal o the revolving hoans i
prepayable without penalty or premium, so long as the Lenders are compensated for losses, costs and expenses
attributable 1o any prepayment of any loan accruing interest at the Fived Rate on o date other than the last day
of the applicable nterest period. Interest under the Credit Faailiny acerues at the Compam’s clection (subject
to certain restrictions and limitations contained in the Credit Agreementy. at eather (30 the Varnable Rate
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cquit W the higher of (a) the Federad Funds Kot plus 05300 and (b)) the announced prime commerdial
lending rate of Chase, or (ii) the Fixed Rate for o designated period of time (1. 2. 3 or 6 manths) equal to the
rate at which US. dollar deposits are offered to leading banks in the London interbank market plus 1 259

The payment and performance of the obligations of the Company under the Credit Facility are secured
by substantially all of the assets of the Company, cluding the stock and membership interests of ats
subsidiariecs. The Credit Facility requires that the Company satisfy certiin inancial tests, including the
maintenance of certain leverage, debt service and other financial ratios, and that the Company meet certan
minimum quarterly operating cash flow requirements, The Credit Facility also contiains certain restrictive
covenants which impose restnictions and/or limitations on the operations and activities of the Company
including, among other things: the incurrence ol ndebtedness and the terms thereol, the creation or
incurrence of liens, investments and acquisitions, sales of assets, declaration or payvment of dividends on or
other payments or distributions to stockholders and capital expenditures. The Credit Facility provides for
vitnious events of default, including interest or pnncipal poyvments defaults, breach of any condition or covenant
that G certanm cases ) contmues unremedied for S dass, matenally adverse events, the renderning of one or
more material judgments against the Company or any subsidiary thereol which is not sacated, satished,
discharged. or stayed within 30 days, and certain events relating 1o the bankruptey or insolvency of the
Company. In addition, the Credit Facility provides for an event of delaultif, without the prior wntten consent
of the Lenders, (1) the Company sells, leases, assigns, trinsfers or otherwise disposes of any of its assets, other
than in the ordinary course of business and in other lomted circumstances, (0 the Company merges with
another corporation other than a wholly-owned subsidiary, (ni) any person or two or more persons acling in
concert (other than Dr. Rajendra Singh, Neera Singh, any trusts for their benefit or the benefit of their family
members, and any of their respective afliliates which are controlled by any one or more of them) acquire
beneticial ownership of more than 25% of the voting stock of the Compuany, or (iv) during any period of

2 consecutive months, individuals who at the bepinning of such 12-month period were directors of the
Company (or other persons nominated by such individuals) cease Tor any reason 1o constitute a majority of
the Board of Directors of the Company. The Credin Facihity is guaranteed by Telecom Ventures, provided tha
the guarantee of the Credit Facility will terminate upon consummuation of the Offering assuming that no event
of defiult is then existing thereunder, The Company intends to repay all amounts that will be outstanding
wnder the Credit Pactlity Capprosimately 820 malhion ) sath proceeds of the Oflenng

Taxes

Prior to the Merger, the Company has generally not heen liahle for LS, Federal and state income taxes,
States that did not recognize the limited labiliny company as o low-through entity required the Limied
Liability Company 1o be taxed as if it were a corporation. The Company has been and will continue 10 he
subject, however, to taxation on income in certin countries i North Amenca, Latin Amenca, Europe, the
Middle East and the Far Eust, where the Company has either established branch oflices or has performed
signihicant services which constitute a permanent establishment Tor tin reporting purpeses. Following the
Merger, the Company will not be o How-through contts and will e Bable for applicable mcome tises The
Company has established a provision for state and foreign income tises. See Censobidiaed Dmancial
Statements and Notes 3 and 9 thereto.

Inflation
The financial statements are presented on o historical cost basis and do not tully reflect the impact of

prior years” inflation. 1t is estimated that the cost of replacing equipment today is greater than s histonical
cosl. Accordingly, depreciation expense would be preater if the eapense were stated on o current cost basis
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BUSINESS
LOC is one of the world's Lirgest independent providers of RE enginecnng amd network design services
and products o the wireless telecommunications industry The Company has provaded these services, along
with related proprictany software tools and ekl measurement and analysis equipment. to aperatars of maore
than 200 wireless systems 1in more than 40 countries. The Company intends 1o leverage it leadership position
and its relationships with major wircless customers to beneit from the expected significant growth in wireless
networks workdwide.

The Company has provided services and products 1o seven of the ten Larpest U S cellular system
operators: large international cellular operators, including Brtish Telecom, France Telecom and Mannes-
mann: companies building or proposing to build PCS systema. including AT&T Wireless Services. Pacilic Hell
Mobile Services, NextWave Telecom and DCR: operators of ESMR systems, including Neatel Communica-
tions: and operators of two-way messaging systems. The customers listed above cuch contnbuted 8% or more
of the Company’s consolidated revenues (107% or more in the case of Neatel) dunng one or more of hiscal
vears 1991 through 1995 (or, in the case of NextWave Telecom and DO R, have entered into agreements o
purchase services and products aggregating $11S million over approximitely the next ine vears ). Many of the
Company's major customers have entered into partnerships with international wircless aperators, which has
enabled the Company 10 obtain signiicant new business from such operators The Company b las
established working relationships with two major telecommunications equipment semdors, pursiant o which

the Company provades services and prosducts on o subcontract basis

LOC believes that its 26.9% compound annual growth in revenues over the past e years has been fueled
primarily by the growth of the wireless telecommunications industry. The Company dernves o sigmilicant
portion of its revenues from il international customens (appronimately 39% i 1995) A substantial number of
new wireless network licenses have been awarded worldwide over the List five years. and the Company expects
a signiticant number of additional wireless licenses 1o be awarded in the nest few scars. Construction of new
networks, and optimization of existing networks, require substantial amounts of RE cogineenng sernvices and
products. In addition, many existing systems are continuing to grow, LCC estimaies that operators of wireless
netwarks operating at capacity add a new cell site, requinng addinonal RE engineening senvices, for even
approvigntels 1500 new subseribers added

LCC s approvimtely 370 RE engineers provide enpincenng solutions o opetators of o wide range ol
wircless networks, incorporating all major wireless technologies available toddan . mcluding 1THDMA (wloch
includes GSM DOS and 151360, COMAL IDEN, AMPS and FTACS LOC heheves that s the Lirgest
emplver of RE engineers in the world and believes that this is i substantul competiine advantage, espectally
with respedt 1o Tange customers, LOC provides (oro i the case of Phase 40 s deseloping ) senviees and products
for uperators involved in all Tour phases ol wireless system development (i) Phase 1 badiig lor the
licenses necessary 1o build and operate the systenn, () Phase 2 build-out of the system. G Phase £
optimization and enhancement of the system Lo meet the requirements ol annereasing subscnber hase and 1w
provide increased quality and coverage: and () Mhase 4 achievement of preater cthciencies i providing
service an order o compete m arcas where there are mnliple ssstenn operators

The 1OC Strategy

The Company's objective is to maintain its posttion as one of the world's Lirgest idependent provuders of
RI engmeering and network desipn services and produocts 1o the wireless teleconmmunte o cmdustry, amd o
mcrease is nrket slare by pursumg multiple growth paths The key elements e the Compans s sioategy e

o

Muintain Technological Leadership

LOC behieves that it has the most saphisticated and disersiied technologieal capabilities: fincorporiating
all major wircless technologies avarlable today ) i the wircless network design induostey and imends 1o
maintain its technological leadership, The Company s comtinuoushy working on nes seltware releases and
fickd measurement and analysis product upgrades 1o keep s products technologieally equal or atiperior 1o
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those ol sts competitors, One of LOCS prncipal asets s s statl ol approsamatels 370 fophly teoned amd
expenenced RE engineers, which the Company believes is constderahly Larger than the engineermg stadl of ans
other independent company in s field. 10 ¢ s enpingers have expenence workmg e and have prepuired
wireless design databases Tor, many of the words metropolitan arcas. whach the Company belivves pives 10
aosipmiticant advantage in pursuing new business mothese areas

Leverage Large Installed Customer Base

LOCC has a substantial customer base among magor wireless network ssstem operators sworldawede Ty
services and products have been used in virtually evers magor market i the TS and o more than 300 areien
countries. The Company believes that s Large customer hase gives it o spmbicant advantage i obbmng
additional business for 11 existing and new products and services 1O U beheses that bt provides the onganal
network desipn services toa customer, it s an advantage over competitors i otlenmg follow=on services
relating 1o expansion or optimization of that customer's network. In addition, moos of the Company s o
customers have entered into partnerships with international wireless operators, from which the Company s
recerved significant business, Typically, o substantial portion of the Company s resenges g piven sear ane
peneriated by customens for wiich the Conpany bas previoashy perlormed servves o provided products

Pursue Tntervoational Groweh

Approsiniately 3% of the Company's revemues dunng 1995 was denved from imtemmational custonicrs
The Company believes that the growth of the intermational wireless industey osver the newt several sears will be
substantial. In particular, foreign governments have been awarding, and are expected to continue 1o anand, o
large number of new wireless system hicenses. The Company is devoting sigmiticant ctlonts tooimcreasing 11s
mirket share ol international business. and is particularly Tocused on provedimg plinmme seroaces to companies
that are participating in government tender processes lor new heense grants. The Compans has tounid that the
provision of such services often result in engineering contracts il such compamics revene hoenses

Pursue New Vurkers
The Company is pursuing growth i several new arcas. as lollows

PON Aceording to the FOC, over ST79 Inllion has been spent or comptted toaoguire nes PON
hcenses in the ULS over the past twe searsamd cach of the hoensed areas st be budt out over the e
sears following the date of the hicense grant. 1 he Company expects that such new licensees will gcommt
for 4 significant portion of the demand Tor the Comgany s services ol products over the nest several
vears The Company’s efforts an this area mehode working witl nes or petential hvensees i the imital
desipas of their ssstems and nukang investinents an new PCS ontities an rcturn Tor sipnihicant comteacts 1o
be nnplemented over the nest several vears

New Wireless Networks amd Technologies Vhe development of new 1pes o wireless networks and
new wireless technologies, including private corporate networks. wireless cable o MDNS amd MM DN
services, wireless local loop and wireless hagh specd data services, s expected tooresult i odditonal
potential customers for the Company's services god prosdingts

tratding too Dagarad Conversion The Company exvpeets that many cellular operators sall comvert trom
anamlog oo digital formuat in the neat several vears, and that this conversion will -csult in additional

demand Tor the Company's services and proslucts 1O curmenthy otbers prosdin e amd orvnes tooopenitaons
s sl vinineadby alb beernee oot abiparaal oy linmedeses

of wireless systems utehzing both esestong analise e bl

Offer and Develop New Types of Services and Producs

The Company is secking new business by ollenng or developing new tvpes ol serviees and proshscis
ncluding the Tollowing

Proveam Management Seevices. Progeam panagpement anvolves the pros irement gk i et
o turnkes bases, o o page of seevices amd prodoc s relatige toadeplovment o expransion of wireless
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networks, including systems integration. site aeguisilion, sie cngmeenng, procurement munagement,
constraction management, installation and commpaaoming, and customer rainimg, I hese management
services are often pachaged with the Company o wahtional BE and network cipgineening scivices,
software tools and tield measurement and analysis cquipnient. To provide program managenient, Lo
hias aflilinted with commercial real estate firms (for i acguisition ), architectural enginecnng hirms and
contracting and construction firms. The Company belieses thist an inereasing number of wireless system
operators are attracted o this approach. and that program management will merease revenues lrom RF
engineering services in addition to providing revenues from new services

Phase 4 Svstem Efficiency Services amd Producs. The Company believes that wireless network
operators will experience greater price competition and will place greater cmpliisis on contuming costs
and system efliciency. The Company is developing new RE network engineening services und products to
increase system ellicienes and manage costs in the multiple-operator environment expected to develop in
the neat lew vears,

Establish Strategic Relationships with Carriers and Equipnient Vendors

The Company has entered into strategic relationships with new wireless carniers and major equipment
vendurs as i mieans of obtimng new business opportumties For example, LOC has helped apphicants sceking
licenses in formal foreign government license grant processes LCCs mvolvement in suceesstul livense tenders
has generally led 1o contracts with winning applicants as they implement new systems The Company has
provided financing aggregating S11.S million, to NextWave Telcom and DR, the 1w top bidders in the
recently-concluded C-band auctions for broadband PCS livenses: See Note 19 10 the Consolidated Financial
Statements. The Company intends to pursue addinonal relanonslips, including hiancing and anvestment
arrangements, using proceeds from the Offening, as o means of obtmmg new busimess Fhe € ompany also his
established working relutionships with two major telecommumeations equipment vendors, pursuant 1o which
the Company provides services and products on a subcontract hasis. The Company intends 1o pursue similar
relationships with other equipment vendors,

Pursue Strategic Acyuisitions

The Company intends o pursue acquisitions of companies that have developed. or are developing,
complementan products and services, particulirly systems efhiaency products, that could be bundled with the
Company's services or that the Company wonld othersise develop over the nest few sears 1.CC helieves that
such acquisitions will move LOC ahead more guckly o the desvelopment of products or the reeruiting of
technical sl

Industry Background
herview

Wireless telecommunications networks use o vanets of radio Trequencies o transmit soice and data
Wireless telecommunications networks mclude two-way tadio applications, such s cellular, wide band and
marrow band PCS and ESMR networks, and one=was rdio apphcations. such as pagimg services, Fuch
apphcation operates swithin o distinet radio frequency block Althouph cellular represents the Largest segment
of the wireless commumcitions industry, other wireless technologies are expected o prow sipmtcantly

Types of Wireless Communications

Cellutar Demand for commercial cellular services has grown drannatically since its introduction in the
carly IR0 Acoording to the € clinlar Telecommumenons Tndustry Association (°C TIAT ), 1n the LIS
alone, service tevenmes bove prown bom SO0 il o PSS tover 19 Bl i 19005 and the number ol
cellular users 1 the UUS. prew frome HO000 at the end of TU8S ooser S nmlhon ot December 1995, 4
compound annual growth rate of 37.2%. According 1o Mobule Commustcations, the number ol cellular users in
Western Furape grew from 270,000 in 1985 10 226 mullion an 1995 (4 compound annual growth rate ol
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The cellular industry is well establsred o0 the deseloped world Cellular is grosing rapidls in developing
countries bevause of the generally prwwr we0 7 the existing phone service, the unsatisied demand for basic
telephone service and the mcreasing denind trom mobile users who want the convenience of cellular. In some
countries, the cellular network provides siemiticantly improved access 1o the Iocal and international wirchine
telephone network compared 1o existing wirchine telephone service Acconding to the US Departinent ol
Commerce, at the end of 1995 there were approsimatels 87 aulhon cellular subsenbers worldwude

POS Ao 1993, the FCC allocated o portion of the radio spectrum for the provision of o new wireless
communiciations service, commonh known s PCS In the US, POS ditfers trom traditional cellular service
principally an that PCS sastems will operate at o hagher frequency tange and employ different digital
technologies. POS i expected to olfer greater teature Tunctionality resulting i lower cost service options,
lighter hundsets with longer hattery lives and new and enhanced service offenngs such as the provision of all
services to one mobile number, mediume-speed data transmissions to and from portiable computers, advanced
paging services and  fucsimile  services. Boononne and  Management  Consultants International, Ing
("EMCI™) estimates that, of the approximatels 71 million wireless subsenbers expected by the vear 20000 in
the LLS., 20 million, or 28%., will be PPCS users Dwenses toooperate POS networks were awarded in the United
States through auctions conducted dunng 1995 ithe A= and B-blocks, which mvolved heenses for Lirge areas
known as MTAs) and are expected to be granted dunng 199 (the € -block, which imvaelved heenses for
smaller metropolitan and rural areas known as BTAs). According to the FOC over $179 hillion has been
spent or committed o acquire new PCS hicenses (for MTAs and BT As) inothe US over the past two vears,
and each of the hicensed arcas must be built out over the e sears from the respedtive hicense grant dates.

ESMR  Enhanced Specialized Maobile Radio s o mobile commumnication service that relies on speciahized
mobile radio frequencies that have been histoncally imited 1o tooswany voice commumcations in simall local
networks (such as for taxa or messenger dispatch). As a result of advances i digital technology, ESMR
operators have begun to design and deploy digital mahile networks that imcrease the frequency capacity of
ESMR systems oo evel that may be competitive with that of cellular systems. A himited number of ESMR
aperiators have recently begun offening short messaging, data servaces and interconnected voice telephony
services on a limited basis. Companies such as Nextel Communications (i the US ), Clearnet Communica-
tions (1in Canada) ond Tricom (in Mexico) have acquired heenses for ESME tswo-way radio channels in therr
respective operating arcas and are begmmng 1o otler wireless vorce semvives over their networks

Pagime Paging s a method ol wireless wlecommunications that uses an assigned radio frequency 1o
contact o paging subscriber amywhere within o senvice area Pach paging subseniber s assigned a0 distinet
telephone number which i caller dials 1o activate o subsenbers pager (4 pockel-size radio carnied by the
subscniber). The radio signal causes the pager to ennt o beep or vibrate and to provide the subscnber with
information from the caller in the form of & voce. time, numernic or alphanamene message. EMOT estimates
that he number of pagers inoservice in the UUS mercased at a compound annual growth rate of approximatels
26.5% o approsimately 273 nulhion units Trom 1984 100 199 and that the total number of paging devices in
use worldwide by the vear 1999 will exceed 130 nulhon

Other Wireless cable (EMBPS. MMDS ) soreless Tocal Foopy G ssstem that ehinnates the need lor .owire
loop connecting users Lo the public switched telephone network ) and wireless high speed duta services
represent other arcas of the swireless commumications industry bemng deseloped by operatorsin the LLS and

abroud.

Wireless Techmologivs

Maost cellubar and other services currently transmnt voice and data signals over analog-hased systems,
which use one continuous electronic signal that vares in amplitude or frequency over a single rudio channel
Digital systems, on the other hand, convert soice or diata signals inte o stream of digits that s compressed
before transmussion, enabling a single radio channel o carny muluple simultaneaus signal trinsmissions. This
enhanced capacity, along with enhancements in digital protocols (discussed below i allows digital-based
wireless technologies to offer new and enhanced services, such as greater call privacy and single number (or
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“find me™) service, and more data transmission features. such as “mobile office” applications (including
facsimile, electronic mal and connecting notebook ¢ — 7. @ with computer/data networks ).

Digital signal transmission is accomplished through the use of frequency management technologies, or
“protocols.” Two common protocols used in cellular and other networks “manage” the radio channel either by
dividing it into distinct time slots (2 method known as Time Division Multiple Access, or “TDMA™) or by
assigning specific coding instructions to each packet of digitized data that comprises a signal (a method known
as Code Division Multiple Access. or “CDMA™). In the U.S., the FCC has intentionally avorded mandating a
universal digital signaling protocol, and three principal digital signal protocols (which are incompatible with
cach other) are currently being used in the U.S. for PCS nctworks: GSM, CDMA and 15-136. European
Union countries generally have agreed to adopt GSM as a commen standard protocol for cellular and PCS
transmission and approximately 60 countries. including virtually all countries in Western Europe, have issued
or propose 1o issue GSM 900 MH~ licenses. The universal GSM standard is designed 10 allow subscribers to
roam throughout Europe and wherever else GSM technology has been adopted. Other wircless technologies
are also presently in use for a variety of different types of transmission. The Company has expertise in all these
technologies.

Existing anulog cellular networks are gradually converting to digital technology. This conversion has
occurred in many of the largest cellular service arcas. such as Los Angeles, New York and Chicago, due n
part to capacily constraints. As carriers reach limited capacity levels, certain calls may be unable to be
completed, especiully during peak hours. The conversion from analog to digital technology is expected to be an
industry-wide process in the US. that will take several years. PCS providers, which do not have the cxisting
analog-based plant and cquipment, are expected to move directly to digital technology

Operation af Two-Way Wireless Systems

Two-way wireless service areas are divided into multiple regions called “cells,” each of which contains 3
hase station consisting of a low-power transmitter, i receiver and signaling equipment. The cells are typically
configured on u grid pattern, although terrun factors (including natural and man-made obstructions ) and
signal coverage patterns may result in irregularly shaped cells and overlaps or gaps in coverage Cellular
system cells generally have a radius ranging from two miles to 25 miles. PCS system cells are expected to have
a radius ranging from one-quarter mile to 12 miles, depending on the PCS technology being used and the
terrain. Since cach cell site requires engineering services, growth in the number of cell sites is one of the key
drivers of demand for the Company's products and services. The base station in each cell s connected by
microv ave, liber optic cable or telephone wires 1o switch, which uses computers and specially developed
software to control the operation of the wireless telephone system for 1ts entire service arca The switch
controls the transfer of calls from cells within the system and connects calls to the local landline telephone
systemn or to g long distance telephone cairrier

Wireless transmission requires a certain signal strength for the parties to hear each other or lor data to he
r-ceived. The signal strength of a transmission between handset and a base station declines as the handsct
moves away from the base station, so the switch and the basc stations monitor the signal strength of calls in
progress. When the signal strength of a call declines to 4 predetermined level, the switch may “hand ofl™ the
call to another base station that can establish o stronger signal with the handset. Hand-ofl 10 an adjacent
system must be effected through an appropriate techmcal interface when a handset lea ¢s the service arca of
the wircless service provider. The quality of wireless transmission depends in purt on signal strength.
limitations imposed by the terrain and interference from other uses of radio signale Transmission quality 18
measured in the ficld at various locations so that adjustments can be made 10 enhance quality

ach wireless network s planned and Lud out to meet a certan level of subsenber density and trathic
demand and to provide a certain geographic coverage. Each transimission over the wircless network requires 4
certain amount of radio frequency, so a system’s capacity is limited by the amount of frequency that i
available. The same frequency can be reused by cach separate transmitter, subject to certain interference
limitations. The design of each wireless system involves placement of transmission equipment in locations that
will make optimal use of availuble frequency based upon projected subscniber usage patterns, suhject o
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avatlabality of such locations and ability 10 use them [or wireless transimssions under apphicable soning
requirements.

After a wireless system has been installed, the system's capacity can be increased in vanous ways, by
(1) adding available frequency capacity to cells as required, if such capacity is available, (11) using dircctional
antennae (o divide a cell into discrete multiple sectors or coverage arcas, thereby reducing the required
distance between cells using the same frequency, or (i) “cell sphtting” (e, dividing a single cell into a
number of smaller cells served by lower-power transmitters, thereby increasing the ability to reuse radio
frequencies and ncreasing the number of calls that can be handled in a given area). Additional sulutions are
being designed to increase network capacity and coverage, including (i) the introduction of microcells, which
can be pluced very close together to increase frequency reuse and the total capacity of the cellular network and
which ¢an be placed within buildings, train stations and other structures to provide coverage where none was
available before and (1) the introduction of digital technologies, which increase the number of conversations
which can be transported on a single radio carrier from two to potentially more than ten times, depending on
the type of digital technology deployed.

Engincering Services and Products for the Wireless Industry

The planning, geographic layout, build out and operation of a wireless network requires significant RF
engincering work. The RF engineer must design the wireless network to meet the operator’s requirements for
transmission over the wireless network, which requirements are based upon a projected level of subscnber
density and traflic demand und the coverage area specified by the operator’s license or cost-benelit decisions.
In addition to mecting basic transmission requirements, the RE network design must make optuimal use of
available radio frequency and result in the highest possible signal quality for the greatest portion of projected
subscriber usage within existing constraints, These constriunts may be imposed by cosl parameters, terrain,
liitations e the hicense, mterference with other operators, avialability of cells, applicable zoning require-
ments and other factors. The complexity of network design and large number of vanables requires the RF
engineer to rely on advanced technology including specially-developed software design touls. As the design s
implemented and the network is built out, the system’s performance must be tested in the ficld with field
measurement and analysis equipment so that optimization adjustments can be made.

Set forth below is a description of the life cycle of o typical wireless system:

Phase | ........... ciesesreneseeieae pursuit of the licenses necessary to build and vperate
the system
REEE oy ia s s b o s AN AR . build-out of the sys
Pl 4 build-out of th lem
Phase 3. .. i e e optimigation and enhancement of the system to meel

the requirements of an increasing subscriber base and
to provide increased quality and coverage

Phuase 4 . .. achievement of greater efficiencies in providing service
in order to compete in areas where there are muluple
syslem operators

Phase 1 In Phase |, the pursuit of the licenses necessary to build and operate the systern. a ro-gh
engincenng design s often required to determine construction costs and revenue generating bility of the
system,

hl

Phase 2 A substantial amount of engincenng services are required for Phase 2, the actual design and
butld-out of the wireless system. Detailed site location designs are prepared. interference to or from co-located
antennae 1s cheched, site performance is measured after completing construction and, finally, the site is
optimized 1o work with neighbonng sites. Wireless network operators (even the few which have sizable
internal engineering stalls) typically rely on outside RE engineering companies, such as LOC, for Phawe 2
Depending on the size of the system, this phase can involve from four RF engineers for o typical small system,
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to 15 RF cogineers Tor o tvpacal mediin-sized SV = I PR PR PATTTN L RPN T fur 8 nelioneide deploviment
Call of whom reguire software desien tools ) over a period of 12 1o 04 months LCC believes that the number of
KL engineers is hmted ( the Company extimntes that then o onl apprenimiatels 20000 BE enpincers in the
LS.

Phaswe 3 As the number of subscribers handled by the wireless system increises, the system enlers
Phase 3. in which RF engincering services are necessary 1o expand the system by adding cell sies ur using
other techniques 1o increase system coverage and capacity. The system must also be optimized to meet the
increased subseriber usage from the new cell cites and 1o provide increased quality and coverage In network
expansions. the operator typically continues to rely on the RE engineenng company, such as LCC, o design
the expansion and make optimization adjustments to the existing system. Although the network software and
system databases included therein are already in place from the design phase. the software heense obtuined
from the RE engincening company generally only allows the operator to use the software. Since the cost of
obtaiming replacement software and generating a separate datubase through o new provider of RE engincenng
services 1s substantial, the orginal RE engincering firm has o signiicant competitive advantage in tollow-on
work with existing customers. Since each new cell site requires additional RF engineering, the increase in cell
sites is o key driver of the demand for RF engineering services and products.

Phase 4 Eventually tne system will enter Phase 4, in which the operator must achieve greater elliciencies
in service provision in order o compete in areas where there are multiple system operators In various
European countrics and Australia, certain systems have recently entered Phase 4 In the US. vince cellular
service arose in 4 duopoly environment. it is only with the construction of new PCS systems that wireless
networks will reach Phase 4

Services and Products
Background

In the carly 1980's, when the FCC began 10 issue licenses for cellular systems, wireless system design was
an unsophisticated process. Since minimal data had been collected on system performance and limited
engincering had heen done, LCC (following ity formation in 1983) worked 1o develop a standard method of
applying design engincering principles to wireless system design. The method included the development of
software to accelerate and automate the design process, and use of such software with digitized system
coverage maps. enabling the engineer 1o measure the effect of changes 10 vanous sysiem paramelers or use of
differemt locations for cell sites. Over time, LOCC gathered significant amounts of data on vanous system
configurations, improving the ability of its engincering models 1o predict system coverage. 1.CC alse developed
a large stafl of RF engineers eaperienced in conducting the design analysis. Moreover, because the hield
measurement and analysis equipment required for venfication and measurcment of wireless system perform-
ance in the field was generally unsophisticated. LCC created its own field measurement and analysis
cquipment Originally, RF engincering focused principally on the cellular industry Although the services
provaded by various wireless technologies iy be sinnbar, the engimeening reguirements ol each svatem are
different. As new wireless teehnologies were introduced, the Company developed engineenng solutions for the
different Torms of wireless transmissions, and modified its field measurement and analysis equipment and
software products to function with differing wireless technologies




Engincering Services

LCC provides a variety of RF engincenng services over three phases of the hte ovele of o wircless
telecommunications system, and intends to proc = such services over the Tourth phase s el lorw s

Phase | Services. LCC engineers help prepare apphications for network system opetators seehing hicenses
in formal government license grant provesses. LCC also hus assisted foreign governments in prepanng
Requests for Proposals (“RFPs™) and analy/zing respunses thereto, Phase | servces include the following

 preparation of the technical response to g government tender
prebmunany design
- COVErage parameters
- propagalion maps
- technical requirements
= advice on strategic issues relating 1o lwense tender responses
» preparation of REPs and analysis of responses
refinement of system objectives and translation into techmcal requirenments
evaluation of responses on techmcal, cost and regulatony compliance grounds

The Company has assisted in preparing winning applications in several capprosimately cight) hicense tender
processes worldwide, including the second nationwide cellulur hicense m Grermany and the hrst cellular heense
in Bombay, India. LOCCS involvement in successtul tenders o generally led 1o follow -on contracts with
winning applicants as they implement new systems

Phase 2 Services Services in Phase 2, which constitute the largest number of billed engineering hours for
the Company. include some or all of the following

o analysis of customer expectations for network coverage. capaciy and wther requirements

« development of necessary databases for network desipn, including digitized mups of terrwn and
buildings

« use of software 100ls to prepare network design, including analysis of interference and other techme al
factors affecuing coverage, capacity and pertormance

o Cdentibication and rank ol desirable cell sites

« preparation of regulatory filings (FCC, Federal Aviation Administration and others) required for
system deployment

« assistanee with systems deployment
« measurcment of network performance
« optimization of system

Phase 3 Services. LOC's services are used by existing system operators 1o plin csstem expansions to
accommaodate subscriber growth (the Company estimates that operatorns ol witeless actworks operating al
capactty requore o new cell site for approvmately cach addimonal 1,500 subscribers ), incorporate improve-
mients in technology, improve system performance and achieve eflicient use of avilable radio spectrum LOC
also assists in capacity expansion planning and technology changeovers. such as conversion from analog to
digital technology. In Phase § the Company provides somie or all ol the tollowang

e glentitication of additional cell sites

 integration of new cell sites with existing cell sites

L




= measurement of network performance
* optimization of system
* technology migration analysis and implementation

Phase 4 Services. Although to date the Company has not offered any services or products for Phase 4. the
Company anticipates that, as wircless systems muture and as multiple service providens offer competing
services in the sume service area, network operators will require additional enginecnng services focusing on the
achievement of cost suvings and quality enhancements within the existing coverage arci. These services may
include the following:

= system analysis and network management, mcluding redistnbution o climination of vell sites
= cost nunagenient

» measurement of network performance

+ technology and network upgrades

The Company is currently working with several existing customers to further define the types of services that
such customers will require duning Phase 4. although there can be no assurance that the Company will provide
any such services.

The Company performs engineering services using approximately 370 RE engineers (as of June 30,
1996). Most of such engincers are based in Arlington, Virginia, but spend sigmificant penods Capproximately
one to nine months per year) at customer sites. L.OCC 15 one of the world’s Largest independent providers of RE
engincering and wireless network design services. The Compuany believes that its Lurge number of RE engincers
enables it to respond quickly to customers who may require the Company to stafl a major project on i timely
basis. In addition, the Company belicves that the wide-ranging expenience of its RE engineers, including
exposure to and participation in the stapdards-setting process for new digital technologies. helps the Company
understand the changing marketplace for wireless communications and lor engineenng semvaces and products
to support the wireless industry. Since o large number of s RE engineers work on customer sites. the
Company is able to develop an understanding of many of the 1ssues of importance to ity customers and uses
this information in planning. The Company also belicves that the vanous nationalities of ity RE cngincers
provides LCC with an understanding of different practices in business and wireless telephony in many
countries around the world that will assist the Company in continuing 1o pursuc international opportunities
See “Risk Factors — Dependence on Professional Stafl.”

LCC provides engineering services on a contract basis, usually in a custormized plan for each client. The
Company generally charges for engincening services on i ime and muterials bass, although Phase 1 services
or other projects of shon duration may involve o tined price or success fee The Company's revenues also
include reimbursement for expenses, including the living expenses ol engineers on custaimier sites {approx-
mately 15% of revenues from engineening services for 1995). Revenues from engincenng services represents
the largest portion of LCC's revenues, representing approximately 56 3% of revenues for 1995

Sofrware Tools

LCC's software tools are used by LCC's engincers and by customers 1o design wireless networks,
optimize the performance of an existing network, adapt networks to demand growth “ad environmental
changes and migrate networks to new technologies. Software revenue represented approximately 18.5% of
revenues for 1995, Approximately onc-third of LOC s revenues from sofiware tools i penerated by 100 s use
of the wols (which are typrecally charged to customers sepanitely Tron epgimeenng servives) i conjunciion
with engineerning service projects, particularly large build-outs or enhancements dunng Phase 2 o Phase 3 As
these software tools are used by LCC's engineers, a datubuse for the customer network s generated based
upon the actual design. The software and databasc arc used by the customer pursuant to a hcense following
implementation of the network, become the foundation of the customer’s design environment and record of
network design. and are cnitical 1o subsequent cxpansion or enhancement of the system The other
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approximately two-thirds of LCC’s software revenues s generated by licensing of the soltware to customers.
which use the tools in network design and generate their own design specific databases

The Company’s software offerings include:

ANET™. ... ... e DOS-based software for network design. Allows users 1o locate,
move and configure cell sites on computer screens,  fun
propagation analyses, change frequency or power settings, analyze
cell hand-ofTs, conduct interference analysis, manipulate other
variables and run analysis of system parameters under varying
conditions. Accepts input from the Company’s ficld measurement
products,

CellCAD™ o UNIX-based software for network design with same functionaliny
as ANET™ plus microcell and CDMA design capabilin

CellSIGHT* e Allows uwser to generate a series of customized spreadshect
programs to organize and display statistics and other data, o
generate and store reports, and to hiter data and information into a
dutabase. Interfaces with ANET™ and CellCAD?® products

Design Cheek™. ... ....... Combines features of CellCAD® and CellSIGHT®

CellManager™. . ...covvsnrs An information management and automated work-flow processing
toal designed for wireless system deplovment, including separate
modules for (1) RIF planning, site positioning and site acquisition,
{11) construction preparation, (i) management ol construction
and equipment delivery timetables, (iv) mansgement of network
integration and acceptance leshing, and (v) management of
purchasing and human resources (The Company did not develop
CellManager ™, but has obtained exclusive perpetual distnbution
nghts and sofiware development and enhancement nghts for
CellManager in North, Central and South Amenica, and non-
exclusive distribution nghts in the remainder of the world )

Revenue from ANET™ and CellCAD® represented approsimately 90% o soltware revenues for 1995

Another component of the Company's software offerings is its database services  Ditabases are
maintained for virtually all of the U.S. and many other pants of the world and include data useful in desigmng
and implementing wireless networks, including data regarding termun, building heghts, land-use. highways
and secondany roads, traflic volume, political boundaries, demographics and other parameters. Customers use
a combination of these data sources in designing their wireless networks, The Company believes that as the
need for more efficient system design becomes more important in the wircless industry, databases with precise
information will hecome more important

The Company provides its software 1ools 1o customers under license agreements that call tor livense fees
on a per user basis or, under certain limited circumstances. on a per cell site basis. As of Deember 31, 1995,
the Company had software license agreements in effect with over 70 customers Typically, customers license
the software for between one to five years, with the right to annual renewals thereafter In some cases, the
Company will grant a perpetual license to software for a hixed fee payable at the commencement of the
licenses The number of work stations licensed by LOC s current customers range up to 150, with an average
of 14, LUC generally warrants that the software will perform substanually in the manner specified i ts
documentation. Many customers purchase maintenance support following expiration of the warranty period as
well as contract for installation and training services
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Field Measurcment and Analysis Produce

LOCs ield measurement and analysis products are used by both by LOCCs engineers and by customiers
in connection with system design and build out and the sunntenance and improvement ol eperational systems
Revenues from sales and rentals of field measurement and analysis products represented approvimately 2024
of revenues for 1995, LOC's revenues from ticld measurement and analysis products are gencerated from sales
or monthly rentals to customers and associated nuntensnee and upgrade fees

The Company’s ficld measurement and analvsis products hines are as follows

EXP-2001* . Maodular vehicle mounted measurement system used o measure
RF svstem parametees for fichd diagnostics. troubleshoating and
RE amabvsis Dinked o Global Posinoming Sastom reweners,
permitimg wlentibication of clanges i sstom perlotinance hased
on time and locatwon Information captured imto Liptop computer
tor subsequent anmalysis

RSAT-2000° o Performs the same functions as EXP-20011 but alwo provides
real-time data for on-aie troubleshooting
MSAT-2000 . . Performs similar Tunctions as the EXP-2001" and RSAT-2000*

but is lightweight and portable tor use iside buldings

PENCAT™ . Five pound pen-based collection and analysis tool used with the
MSAT-2000 tor real-time display and post-processing amilyais,

TX-1300™ : Continuous wave test transpotter used to simubate cell sites from
which test transtmssns are conticd, allossang calishaticen !
ll,l'll" teal o v oy

Ll oo Analysis toal used to micasure the yualits of the “uplink™ from the
wireless network to the Public Switched Telephone Metwark

Each of the EXP-2001% RSAT-2000" and MSAT-20007 e desipned for ise inowareless systems
employing any of the major access technologies (cellulur, PCS, ESMR. erc ) and man be utilized by network
operators 10 measure the performance of other wireless systems These three products represented appros-
mately 83% of ficld measurement and analyvsis products revenues Tor 1995 To support the RSAT-2000%,
EXP-20001" and LL-2000" products, LOCC offers o DOS-hosed sottware pachage called Cellular Measure-
ment Analvst and i corresponding UNIX-hased product called CellQUE ST which proside comprehensive
data analysis funciions for coverage, interference, calls-n-progress amd call bty These programs angamize,
edit and anahvze RF and navigation data for both digaeal amd analog mcasurements Thes pronide detasled
reports, multi-colored graphs and high resolution on-screen graphin displays which can be pencrated on g
FLaptop computer for immediate held analysis

The Company helieves that in the Tuture, customers will eapect hield measurement and analysis pristucts
from one company 10 be companble with software design prodducts from other companies, so that racasure-
ments taken from held measurement and analvsis products can be analveed using the software 1OC 18
designing a series of products consistent with this objective. Currently, wircless operators must separately
analyze the coverage of their competitors” systems. The Company intends to deselop Pha o products that
can simultancously analvze svstem quality of several different competing technobsgies 1OC tends o otter
new products that will allow data from several different systenrs m one geopraphic arca o be collected and
amalyred simultancoush

Fhe Company provides its field measurement and analssis products 1o customens primanly through sales
and 1o a lesser extent through long-term leases and monthly rentals OO penerally warrants that the held
measurement and analysis products will perform substantially i the manner speaitied i therr dosumentation
for a period of 12 months following delivery thercol. The Company offers vanus extended monmtenance and
SUPPOITE Progrims T Cuslonmers
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Program Managemenr Services

Progeom mamagement involves the crocurement and oamagemcnt. on turnkey buisis, ol o tanpe ol
services and products relitimg to deploy ient or expansion of wireless networks, mcluding ssstems integration,
sile avguisilion, site engineenng, procutement manageient, construction nEnagement, wistallation and
commissioning, and customer taining servces  These muanagement services are often pachaged with the
Company's traditional RF and network engineering services, software tools and held meisurement and
analysis equipment. To provide program sonagement, FCC has athilated wath commercral real estate tirms
{tor site avguisiion ), architectural engmecnng hrms amd contracting and construction hrims The Company
believes that an increasing number of wircless svstem operators are attracted o this approach, and tha
program management will increase revenues from RE engineering services in addition 1o providing revenues
from new services. Fees from program management services, which were commenced in 1995, represented
approximately 3% of revenues for 1995

LCC offers its customers a “une stop shopping” approach 1o Phase 1 svstem builld-out and Phase 0
netwark expansions by packaging services together i i customized plan tor each client. LOC provides these
services on i contract basis, in Most cases on a tme and matenais basis but occasionally on an overall cost per
cell site.

In connection with its program mamagement services, the Company uses and licenses a software toul
called CellManager™, which can help nctwork system operators manage theat deplovment and construction
activities cost effectively, as discussed in more detnl in “Software Tools™ above

Customers and Backlog

Cusiomers

The Company has provided services and products 1o seven of the ten Largest US. celluliar system
operators; large international cellular operators, including Bratish Telecom, Prance Telecom, Muannesmann
and Korea Mobile Telecom; companies butlding or proposing to build PCS systems, including AT&T Wireless
Services, Pacific Bell Mobile Services, NeatWave Telecom and DCR, operators of ESMR systems. including
Nextel Communications, and operators of twosway messaging sistems. Many ol the Company™s major
customers have entered into partnerships with international wircless operatons, which has enabled the
Company 1o receive significant new business from such intermational wireless operators. The Company also
has established working relationships with twe mgor telecommumestnms cquipment sendors, pursiant to
which the Company provides services and products on g subcontract basis

In 1995, Nextel Communications accounted for approsimately 145 of LCCS revenue and was the only
cus'omer accounting for 10% or more ol the Company's revenues. The Company has an apreement with
Neatel Communications pursuant to which Nestel Commumnications s commiatted to pas o nmnimiugn amount
until June 2000 for the purchase of RE cngmec g services amd ield imeasurement and analvss products and
1o hicense software products and obtain related muntenance and other services i comnection with the design
and operation of its digital mobile telephone svstems ain North Amenca, Puerto Rico and the URS Yingim
Islands.

The Company's existing amd tarpeted costomier Bose mcludes operators of all torims ol wireless
communicalions services, operating a vaniety of different network platforms and access technologies in diverse
geographic markets. LOCC's experience includes the followang projects

» LCC has designed analog cellular systems throughout the U S L ncluding se stantially all of the Lirgest
MS A, an well s an several other countres

o LOC hus designed TACUS/ETACS analog cellular systems i the United kingdom and Spain

» In the US.. the Company is assisting its cellular customers m anplementing the emerging North
American digital cellular standards (10, TDMA, CDMA and others)
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= Fhe Company has designed. o i cantenth desypming, GisAL dipal cellubar networks i the LS.

Gy, Poange, Tals, Spam, Porugal, Sakvsia and other matwins

o The Company 1s supporting the design and implementation of | SAMKE svatenis throughout the U S and
i Brasl Canada, Mexico and Cluna

= Inothe S the Company s suppottmge sarmow band POS chenis with INFEENION " and REFLEX T

sl

Backlog

The Company has entered into long-term contracts with customers for the provision ol the Company
services and products. As of March 31, 1996, the Company had o total backlog of SEROS nullion, consiating of
Sty million relating to engineering services. $26.0 million relating 1o soltware heenses. SL6 milhon for tield
measurement amd analysis products and S845 pullon reliting o program munagemen services Ihe
Company includes in its backlog only comnntied tees or purchuase prices specilicd i contracts which e
been executed by the Compans o the extent that the Company contemplates recogmtion ol the related
revenue. Phe Company believes that ity substantl backlog s relatively umgue i the industry, and s
attrhatable prncipally to contracts which were entered into in July 1995 and in the first half of 1996, ( The
Company did not track 1ts backlog prior (o 1996, since prior to receipt of such contracts the Large magonty of
Backlog consisted of annual software license Tees. The Company believes that its backlog s of Muarch 31, 1995
in areas other than soltware licenses wis substuntially Tess than that for Nuarch 3, 199000

The principal portion of the Company’™s present backlog anse from contracts with Neatel Communica-
tions, NestWarve Telecom and DCR, These contracts represent approximately SHoo nullion (or 81150 of
the overall backlog. In addition, they represented approvimitely $59.1 milhon tor 89000, S6S millon (or
25.7% ), and SO0 million (or 94.7'% ), respectively, of the portions of the total backlog reliating to engmeernng
services, soltware licenses and program numsgement services. NeaWave Telecom and DCR have flexbility
within tve-vear periods regarding the timimg of ordenng and min of services and pridducts o be purchused
from the Company. The orders under such contracts are also subject to uncertainties relating 1o POS network
deployment generally and to matters that may atlect the businesses and imancial resources ol such custinmerns
Since the Company’s backlog is subject to sipmibicant tming ancertaintics, the Company cannot aveurately
predict the portion of the backlog that will be hilled within the current year. but expects that it will not till
least ST S million of ats overall backlog in 1996 See “Rish Fuactors - Changes Adversely Impacting
Demand for the Company’s Praducts and Services — Delass in Deploament of POS Networks,™ “Risk
Factors — Risks Associated with Strategic Relationships and Strategic Fianang™ and Note 19 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements, There can be no sssurance that the contracts mcluded i the hacklop will
actually ;enerate the specihied revenues or that the avtial revenues will be penerated within any particulas
perid . See “Kisk lactors Sigmbicant octwatoms e Quarterly Results, Uncertainties Relating to

Backiog

Sales and Muarketing

Fhe Compuany markets its services and products oooperatons ol wireless telecommuniciatiors neiworks i
SNorth Amenca, Dorope. Asen the Muddle EFast and Latin Amenca through its 23 member direct sales force
Based at its headguarters in Arkington, Vigginia. The members of the sales lorce are compensated hased on
Lactors such as revenues generited compared to revenues forecasted. recenvables colleets d and the blend of
products and services sold. The Company abso utilizes independent distrbuton and saies agents to supplement
its direet sales Torce outside the 1S, where business practices or customs mahke it most effective to proceed
through local companies. The Company utilizes the oflices of ity German subsidian 1o supplement it
Luropean sales etforts and intends to establish regional sales otlices i Brazal and korea

he Compamy’s RE engineers and other technical professional statl support the ¢llorts of the sales losee
particularly an connection with the tarketing ol engincenng servces aml soltware products U ustomcrs
peneelly e enpineers mvolved i therr procurement decnsions, and the Company’s engineers wark closels
with the costomer’s engmeers to help them understand the Company s services and prodducts and theer
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advanbapes compated B those ol the vennpetitpm Mdibitiaial business frome existing dostomers i pul.\utti
through the oot elorts of both the sales Torce mwembser proonarily responsihle lor sale (who mamtors the
customer’s satishiction as work progresses and makes periodic contact with the customer tollowing completion
ol work ) and ol the Cngineers and other techmical stadl whio have du\c'lnpcd a relanonshap and worked closels
with the customer’s engineers, and understand the costomens” needs. This combimation gives the Compans an
advantage in pursuing the follow-on business,

The Company penerates sales leads for new customers through referrads from exsting customers
(including reterrals to mternational wireless operators with which such customers Tuave entered o
partnership arcangements ) and other industry suppliers, its reputation in the industry. contacts with brdders for
new wireless lweenses and others in the industry and other sources. which include advertiming, use ol
explanatony hierature and publications and participation in conferences and trade shows The Company
uttlizes vanous strtegies toaattract business from new costomers, parbcularly vanous arvangements i s hich
Phase | services are provided for a reduced fee or with . success-based contingent arrangement, coupled with
a commutment from. or understanding with. the customer to retain the Company in connection with Phase 0
services and products should the customer be awarded the apphicable licenses. Recently the Company has
miade twon sipmihicant strdepic investments in custimmers i exchange for Lupe contracts, and expects 1o
continue this strategy in the Tuture. See "Hisk Tactors Hisks Associated with Stratepie Relationships,
Vendor Financing, and Acquisitions” and Note 19 1o the Consohdated Financial Statements

In addition to obtiinng business directly from wircless network openntors, the Company s also
established working relationships with two magor telecommunications equipment vendors, purseant to which
the Company provides RF engincenng services and related products, on g subcontract basis. The Compuany s
scching to estublish additional relationships with telecommunications equipment venduors

Purchases of the Company™s services of products by customers often entails an extended decision-making
process for the customer because of the substantial costs and strategic implicutions associted with selecting
the Company’s services and products. Sentor management of the customer s often imvalved in this process,
given the importance of the decision as well as the risks Liced by the customer it the Company’s services and
products do not meet the customer’s particular needs Theretore, Lirge procurements of LECs services and
products mvolve lengthy selling eyeles, often as long s nine manths, See “Risk Factors - Dependence on
sSprmticant Customiers and Large Contracts” and = Lengthy Sales Caele ™

Rescarch and Development

The € ompany intends to continue developimg new senvices and products and enlance existing ones to
nuaintain s position as o leader in RE engincening and wireless network design. The Company is presently
developing o number of new products, mcluding sottware tools and upgeades of ield measurcment and analysis
products. The Company s research and development cilorts are fovused on i is existing products easier
o use, adding Tunctionality, making the products companble with dilerent weehnologies and enabling the
products to interface with other products offered by the Company or other parties, The Company s an the
process of establishing a team of RF engineers. other technical persannel. nanagement vonsultants and other
spectalints who have been asked to develop services and products specitically for use in connection with
Phave 4. The Company believes that it expenicnce i providing o cange o engineenng amnd swareless netaork
services gives il an advantage in developing products for use by engineers providing wireless noiwark design
services. See “Risk Factors — Rapid Technological Chunges ™

AManulactoring and Product Assembly

Ihe Company assembles eld measurement and analvsas products by obtommg standard parts and
components obtined from a vanety of computer and electrome vendors and specially: conbigunng these
components 1o produce the hield measurement and analysis products, 1 also engages third party contractons o
assemhle certim of these products based on the Company's design specilications. The proprictary aspects o
the € argany s svslenmis e |1r|n|_u’|l_\ i the |l|u-|||“ 1 dc\pp", the soltw.are 'plu!.ll'l'd with the cyuipment amil the
spevihiy -l}"'j‘ll\-'.l-ll"l'l'\ l.!l.'\"l:tlil?ﬂl'l:ﬂl l'l:\ll.'ncl.l Tor the customer | guapiaent assermhly Lesting Al ||II.I1I|\ ol
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are performed by the Company at its Arlington, Viegine Geality. The Company currently has siv employees
conducting manufacturimg and product assembly and ten employees involved in supporting activities,
including quality control, inventory control, shappinge and recomimg and purchasing. Certain components used
in the Company’s products are presently available o 1 aed sources. To date, the Company generally has
been able o obtain supplies of these components in o @0 w manner from these sources. The Company began
the development and assembly of its own fiehd measarenient and analysis products in carly 1992 and took over
performance of the bulk of its development and assembly i 1994, The Company expenenced i stagnant
demand for its field measurement and analysis products during 1994 (reflected in revenues from tield
measurement and analysis products for 1995) when ot devoted ity resources 1o enhancing its own held
measurement and analysis produet development capabibties rather than developing new products

Competition

The current market for wireless network design services, related software tools and held measurement
and analvsis equipment and program ninagement services s highly compeniive. Many companies ofler such
services and products. and the Company belieses that the number of other independent tirms providing
combination of these services and products 1o wireless network operators throughout the world s increasing.

Engincering Servie, s

LOCCs competition in the provision of RE engincenng services consists of (1) companies such as Mobile
Systems International, Inc., Moffett, Larson & Johnson P.C.and Comsearch, Ine which provide o full range
of RF engincering services (as well as related software ), (n) companies that provide only i portion of the
engineering services, which generally act as a supplement to a wireless operator’s in-house enginecnng statl,
(i) telecommunications equipment vendors, which provide RE engineening services through subcontractors
as part of Lirger turakey projects, and (v) the mternal stals of wireless network operators The Company
believes that it is able 1o compete effectively against its competitors based upon its leadenship position, pricing.
reputation, experience. ability to provide its customers “one-stop-shopping,” atihity 1o deploy guickly o large
number of RF engincers to a project. its databases for many geographic areas. its technological tools, and 11s
relationships with major wireless operators, In particular. the Company believes that its existing customer base
gives it signiticant advantage in obtaming additional business for s existing and new products and services

Software Tools

LOCCs competition for the provision of software tooks consists of (1) the companies that provide the full
range of RE engineening services along with related software, particularhy Mobile Syatems Imtermational, Ing
and Comsearc v, Ine. which compete vigorously with the Company in this area, (1) o himited number ol
companies that have developed software tools but generally do not provide engineening services and (i) the
internal stalTs of wireless network operators. The Company believes that its experience in providing a range of
engincering and network services gives 1t oan advantage i developimg soltware 1ooly Tor use by engineers
providing network design services. particularly because of the expenience it receves as i result of the use of the
products by its own engincers The Company helieves that competiton depends on such factors s
functionality, price product performance and reputation. The most suceesstul of the Company’s competitons in
this area have been European companies, and LCC has been enhancing the functionality of it software tools
in the GSM area to compete more effectively for Furopean customers In pursuing internationa’ business the
Company has been fenible with the terms of s software licenses i markets where standiare hoense terms
dutfer trom those used in the LS

Field Measurement and Analysis Equipment

The Company’s competition for the provision of tichd measurement and analysis products consist of
(0 full service compames amnd cquipmient vendoes, pari abarhy these spes abizing i tield measurement ansld
analvsis prosducts, procpally Sateco Corporation and Contaree, Tac amd ot small andependent en-
treprencunial companies As s the case with ats software toals, the Compans believes that ils eapenence in
providing a range of engincenng and network services pives it an advantage in developang held measurement
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and analysis tools for use by engimeens prosading e aorh desiga senvces, particularhy because of the feedbuch
i receives s o result of the use of the products by s own enpincers Lhie Company believes that competinon
depends on such Factors as functionalis, poce product perforimance. reputation and compatibility with
software tools. LOC is desigming o senes of products oo make OGS held mcasurement and antaly s timils
compatible with software products from other companies

Program Management Services

Compettion tor the proviston of program management senvices i lighly tragmented consisting ol
(1) eqgupment vendors thut provide  program  management servives as pun ol Larger turnhey  projects,
(ii) compunies with experience in project management in other industries, (i) the iternal statls of wireless
network vperators and (v ) small Giems that locus on g hmited number of the entire range of activities involved
i wireless network deplovment and expansion. The Campany beheves that compention depemds on such
factors as reputation, the abilitn 1o perlorm on schedule and within the customer’s hudget and guahiny
expectations. and that its ability to have personnel specitically to address the requirements of wireless network
operations will enable it 10 compete effectiveds i this area

Ihere van be o assirance that competitive Lactors swill not have an advernse eflect on the Company’s
business See “Risk Factors — Risks from Compention.”

Software Protection and Technology Dicenses

The Company regands its soltware as propretany and has implementad protectine mcasires both ot a
legal and o proactical nature to ensure that the seltware retams that status The € ompans denves protection lor
its software by heensing only the object code to customers and heeping the source code conhidential Like
mans other companies that license soltware, the Company does not Tave patent protection for its soltware. It
theretore rehies upon the copyright Livs to protect against unauthonzed copying of the obect code ol ars
softwre, and upon copyright and trade secret Liws for the protection ot the source code of ity sottware. Despite
this protedtion. campetiton could copy certaan aspects ol the Compuany '~ software tools or held measurement
and analvss products, or abuan mformation which the Company regards as trade seorets In addinen, the
Company enters inte conidentidiny agreements with s emplovees. distnbutors, and customers. and himits
access teand distnibution of s softwaire, documentation, and other propnctan intosmation. There can be no
assurance 1ht the steps tihen by the Company o protect its propoetan mghts will be adeguate 1o deter
misappropreiton of s technolopy. Lurther, there can be oo assurance that any patent issued to the Company
or the copaophts registered by the Company can be successtully detended Inoany event. the € ompans
belicves that Lactors such as technolsgical innosation and expertise amd market respansivencess are more
mmportant than the legal protections desenbed above

F mplosees

As of June 300 1996, LCC ¢emplosed 674 Jull-time emplovees The Company behieves that relations with
its emiphnees are good. None of ity emplosees i part o any collective bargaming unit. The Company believes
that 1ts tuture growth and success will depend upon s abihity to attract and retaon shalled and motivated
personnel See TRisk Tactors  Dependence on key Personncl, Management of Gomth

Facilities

The Company leases approsiniatels 144000 square teet of olfice space in Aehington, Vi The
Company recenth exervsedl an earls ternimation option swith respect © gonintels SSOEE square feel ol
such othice space and antends o exercrse sibar aptions with respect tooan addimmomal 6 A0 square lect of
spave I connection with such ternination, the Company bas imcurred and waill imcur one-hine termination
conts totalbing $1 4 million The Company recentls entered into o lease swithoan annual rent beginning .t
approvimatehy S2.95 1000 Tor approvimadely 155,339 sgquare feet of oflice space Mol can. Mirginna for
occupancs duning the fiest gquarter of 197 The term of this ledse v ten searss swoath twa iveosear renewal
aptions  Dhe Comipomy alses entered anto o lease witli an annnskal rent begmmmg an approsimatels ST 7O for
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e i il can, Virginia for avcupaney dunng 1997 The term ol

approvimately 10,245 syquiare
} oo vear renewal options. The Compam heliesves that its new facilinn
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s will be
.idfqli.lt;‘ vy iis pecds for the foresceable luture

1egal Proceedings

The Company is party 10 vanous lepal proveeding and claims incrdental 1o ats business The Company

does not believe that these matters will have o matenal adverse effect on the Company
MANAGEMENT
Directors and Executive Officers

The following table scts forth the names, ages and pnncipal positions o the micmbers ol the Company’
Board of Directors and the executive officers of the Company

LY

Fasitions

Name Agr

Dr. Rajendra Singh o4l Charperson of the Board of Directon

Neera Singh I g 37 Director

Mark I bno.oaan . cee 0 Director

Arno A. Penzias .. . i 61 Director

Piyush Sodha : or e o b 37 President, Chief Exccutive Otlicer and Director

1. Michael Bonin o — I Vice President, Hardware

Kathryn M. Condello e iiaia.. 4D Viee President, Program Muanagement

Peter A. Deliso . .. ... .... 3% Vige President, Corporate AtEurs, General Counsel and
Secretary

Rachard Hozik ; 45 Semor Vice President, Treasurer and Chiet Financial
Otlicer

Frank F. Navarrete ;i 51 Vice President, Sales and Marketing

Donald K. Rose ; ; oy .41 Senior Vice President, Soltware

Gerard L. Vincemt ... ... 42 Senor Vive President, Engineenng

The Company expects that, following the Oftening, one additional person will be elected 1w the Board ot
Directors, who will not be an officer, employee or stockholder of the Company orany ol 1y atliliates

All aflicers of the Company are elected to serve in such capacitics until the next annual meeting of the
Board of Directors and until their successors are duly elected and qualitied Relerences below to the Company
also include its predecessors, the Founder Corporation and the Linmited Laabihiny Company, which succeeded
to the business of the Founder Corporation in Junuary 1994

Dr Rajendra Singh Dr. Rajendra Singh is the Chairperson of the Board of the Directons and co-lounder
of LCC. Dr. Singh was President of the Company from its formation an 18 Eunul September 1994, and was
Chiel Exccutive Officer from January 1994 until Januars 1995, and Treasurer from Junuary 1994 untl
January 1996. Dr. Cingh is also Chairman of the Members Committee ol Telcom Ventures and RE Investors
Dr. Singh also established, developed and directed APPEXN Inc. a hilling services hrm which was sold 1o
Electronic Data Syatems Corporation in October 1990, Dr. Singh s marned 1o Neera Singh, Inrector and
until immediately prior to the Offering. an exccutive ofticer of LCC Dy Singhos also w prncipal owner o the
I'ounder Corporation. See “Principal and Selling Stockholden

Neera Singh Neera Singh s a co-founder of LOCC and has been a Director of the Company <nce 1t
inception. Ms. Singh has served as Vice President of the Company from its formation in P95 3 1o Cctober 1991
and Executive Viee President from January 1994 until immediately prior to the Otlenng Ms Singh alsa Tas
served as Co-Chairperson of the Company from January 1995 unul immediitely prior to the Offenng
Ms. Singh is a4 member of the Members Committee ol Teloom NVentures, Nso Singh s marnied o
Dr. Rajendra Singh, a Director and former executive oflicer of 1.C( Ms Singhos also a principal owner ol the
Founder Corporation. Sce “Prncipal and Selling Stockholders.™
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Mark DD Ein Mark D. Ein has served as a Director of the Company since January 1994 Mr Binas o
Vice President of The Carlvle Group, a private iwestiment hirm and an afliliate of the Carlvle Invesiors.
Mr. Banos currently a director of Telcom Ventures. RF Investors, HighwayMaster Communications, Inc. a
wireless provider to the transportation industry, and vanous private companies. Mr. Fin worked for Brentwood
Associales, 4 private equity investment firm, from 1989 1o 1990, and for Goldman, Sachs & Co from 1986 1o
1989

Arno A Penzigs. Amno A, Penzias has been a Director of LCC since July 1996 Dr. Pensias currently 1s
Vice President and Chiel Scientist of Lucent Technologies, Bell Labs Innovations. From 1995 unul 1996,
D Penzias was Vice President and Chiel Scientist of AT&T Bell Laboratonies. From 1951 through 1995, he
was Vice President. Research of AT&T Bell Laboratories As a scientist, Dr. Penzias s best known for his
contributions 1o astrophysics, which camed him the Nobel Prize for Physics in 1978 D Penzias also s
currently a4 member of the Boards of Directors of Duracell International Inc., a manufacturer of hattenies, und
Arthur D. Little, Inc., a consulting company.

Pivish Sodha Pivush Sodha has been Chief Exccutive Otlicer of LOC since January 1995 and has been
President of the Company since September 1994, Fram October 1990 through September 1994 he was Chief
Operating Officer of the Company. Mr. Sodha has been a Director since Junuary 1994 Prior to joiming LCC,
Mr. Sodha was Director, Product Line Management in the cellular systems division of Northern Telecom Lid.
from 19857 10 1990, From 1985 to 1987 he was a consultant in the telecommunications practice at Booz,
Allen & Humilton, ard prior thereto he was Senior Associate Engineer at International Business Machines
Corporation.

J Michael Bomn. J. Michael Bonin has been Vice President, Huardware Products, of LCC since
July 1993, From 1989 until 1993 he was Director of Hardware Products for LCC. Prior 1o joiming LCC in
1989, Mr. Bonin was Vice President and General Manager of T-Line Services, Inc.. a digital microwave
communications firm in San Francisco, California. Prior thereto, from 1955 1o 1987, Mr Bomin was principal
and founder of o start-up manufacturing division for an anternational optical Luser company in Irvine,
Calitorma,

Kathrivn M Condello. Kathryn M. Condello has been Vice President, Program Munagement, for LCC
since October 1994, From March 1993 until October 1994, Ms. Condello was Director of Network Services of
MC1 Communications Wireless Group. From March 1990 unul March 1993, Ms. Condello was Director,
Business Development for Network Building & Consulting, a network development firm specializing in the
acquisition, construction and deployment of wireless networks. From March 1987 unul July 1988,
Ms, Condello was Director of Business Planning for Cellular One/Washington-Balumore

Peter A Deliso. Peter A. Deliso has been LCC's General Counsel since Tune 1994 and Vice President,
Corporate AlTai s, and Secretary since January 1996, From late 1989 until Lanuary 1994, Mr Deliso served as
Corporate Counsel for Mobile Telecommunication Technologies Corp. (“Mtel™) and its vanous domestic and
international subsidianies. Prior to his employment with Mtel, Mr. Deliso was with the law firm of Garvey,
Schubert & Barer specializing in international, corporate and secunties Law,

Richard Hozik Richard Hozik has been Sentor Vice President and Chiel Financiad Otheer of the
Company since November 1995 and Treasurer since January 1996, From October 1992 to October 1995,
Mr. Honk was employed by the J.E. Robert Companies, a privately held real estate investment and
management company, where he held the position of Senior Vice President and Chicf Financial Of'icer. From
Apnl 1992 10 September 1992, Mr. Hozik was the Managing Partner of Hozik & Associates, o management
consulting firm. From March 1982 1o March 1992, Mr. Hoak was with GRCO Tnternatonal, e (formerly
Flow General Inc.) (“GRC™), a publicly traded international technology-hased products und services
company, where he served as Vice President, Treasurer and Chiel Financial Otlicer of GRC and President and
Chief Exccutive Officer of its Biomedical Group. From 1973 to 1982, Mr. Hozik was with the international

public accounting firm of Arthur Andersen LLP.

Frank F Navarrete. Frank F. Navarrete has been Vice President, Sales and Murketing, of LOC since
October 1994 and was Director, Business Development of Telcom Ventures from Apnl 1994 10 October 1994
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From 1992 1o 1994, he was Vice President Mevico-€ entral America for Motorola From 195K to 1992, he was
Director Domestic Infrastructure Support-Motorola 1 rom 1956 10 1988, he was OFS Manager for the North
Fant € vrador Motorala Mre Noavarrete was Mooy Posgram h‘-lll-‘-}rl'lll'-'lﬂ Mot st Corpdor-Maotarala

Donadd & Rose Donald R, Rose has been the Semor Vice President, Software of LOC since August
199 From October 190 until August 1996, Mr. Rose was Senior Vice President, Engineening ol the
Company, and trom 1988 until October 1990, he was Vice President, Engincening of the Company Belore
joining the Company, Mr. Rose was Senior Project Engineer of Los Angeles Cellular Telephone Cooand a
Scnior Engincer of Moflet, Larson & Johnson, P.C.. & telecommunications consulting lirm

Gierard I Vincent. Gerard L. Vincent has been Scnior Vice President, Engineening of LOC since August
1996. From January 1995 10 August 1996, Mr. Vincent was Vice President, Engincening of the Company, and
from December 1993 to Januany 1995, he was Director of Engineering of the Company. Prior to joining LCC,
Mr. Vincent was Director, Department of Cellular | npincenng of France Telecom. from December 1989 1o
December 1991

Committees of the Board of Directors

The Company’s Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee and a Compensation and Stock
Option Commitice and has appointed Messrs. Ein and Penzias as the members of these comnitiees.
Following the Offering. the Audit Committee will examine and consider matters relating to the tinancial
atfairs of the Comvpany, including reviewing the Company’s annual financial statements, the scope of the
independent annual sudit and internal audits and the independent uccountant’s letier 10 management
concerming the etfectiveness of the Company’s internal financial and accounting controls, The Compensation
and Stock Option Commuttee will consider and make recommendations 1o the Compuany’s Board of Directors
with respect to programs for human resource development and management organization and succession,
approve changes in senior executive compensation, consider and make recommendations to the Company’s
Board of Directors with respect to compensation matters and policies and employee henefit and incentive
plans and administer the Company’s stock option plans and ERISA plins, grant stock options under such
stock aption plans and exercise all other authonity granted ot o admnister such stock option and ERISA
phins

Indemnification of Directors and Officers

Section 145 of the Delaware General Corporation Law (the " Delaware Law™) empowers a corporation o
indemnify its directors and oflicers and 1o purchase insurance with respeet 1o lability arising out of their
capadity or status as directors and othicers provided that this provision shall not eliminate or lunit the labiliy
of & director (i) Tor any breach of the director’s duty of lovaly to the corporation or 1s stockholders. (i) for
acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve imentional misconduct or a hnowing violstion of Law,
(ini) arising snder Section 174 of the Delaware Law, or (i) for any transaction from which the director
denved an improper personal beneht. The Delaware Law provides further that the indemmification permitied
thereunder shall not be deemed exclusive of any other nghts to which the directors and otlicers may be
entitled under the corporation’s bylaws, any agreement. vole of stockholders or otherwise. The Company’s
Certificate of Incorporation eliminates the personal liability of directors o the fullest extent permitted by
Section 102(b) (71 of the Delaware Law and provides that to the fullest extent permitted by Law, the
Corporation shall Tully indemnify any person who was or is o party of 1s threatened to be mude @ pariy 1oany
threatened. pending or completed action, sunt or proveeding (whether el cnnunal. adramistrative o
imvestigative ) by reason of the fact that such persan is or was a director or officer of the Corproration, of is of
was serving al the request of the Carporation as a director or oflicer of another corporation, rartnership, joim
venture, trust, emplosee benefit plan or other enterprise, against expenses (incluuing attorness” fees),
judgnments, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by such person in
connection with such action, suit or proceeding

The Company intends to enter into separate indemnification agreements with cach of ity directons and
exccutive oflicers pursuant o which the Company shall agree. among other things, amd subject 10 certiin
limited exceptions: (1) to indemnify them 1o the fullest extent permitted by law agannst any hahilites and
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expenses (including attorneys’ fees) reasonably incurred i connection with any threatened. pending or
completed uction or other proceeding arising from the fact that they are cach in an Indemmitiable Capacity or
because of anything done or not done by each of them in such Indemmfiahle Capacity, und {1} 1o advance
funds 1o cover any such expenses no later than thirty days ater demand. An Indemnifiable Capacity s detined
as the fact that the person is or was a director or executive oflicer of the Company, or, while a director or
exccutive officer of the Company. is or was serving at the request of the Company as a director, officer,
partner, venturer, proprictor, trustee, employee, agent or similar functionary of another corporation. purtner-
ship. joint venture, sole proprictorship, trust, nonprofit entity. employee benefit plan or other enterprise.

The effect of the foregoing is 1o require the Company 1o indemnify the officers and directors of the
Company for any cham ansmg against such persons in their oflicil capacities if such person acted in good
faith and in a manner that he or she reasonably believed 1o be i or not opposed to the hest interests of the
Company. and, with respect to any criminal action or proceeding. had no reasonable cause 1o believe his or her
conduct was unlawful,

Insofar as indemnitication tor Labilities ansing under the Securities Act may be permitted to directors,
officers or persons controlling the Company pursuant 1o the foregoing provisions, the Company has been
informed that in the opinion of the Commission, such indemnitication is against public policy as expressed in
the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable,

At present, there is no pending ligation or proceeding involving any director, oflicer, employee or agent
as to which indemnification will be required or permitted under the Certificate of Incorporation. The
Company is not aware of any threatened hitigation or proceeding that may result in a clam for such
indemnification.

Executive Compensation
Summary Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the compensation awarded to, carned by, or paid to the Chiel Exccutive
Ofticer of the Company and each of the Company’s four most highly compensated exccutive officers whose
salary and bonus exceeded $100.000 during the fiscal year ended December 31, 1995 {collectively, the
“Named Oftficers™):

Ann!nl_('upf_rl_\_u_tmlhl

Name and Fiscal Al Other
Principal Position Year Salan Honusid) Compensation(5)
Dr. Rajendra Singh R — 12) — () - 2]
Chanrpersoni iy
Piyush Sodha .. .. ... .. IR K21 LMD L TR Y] -
President and Chiel Excecutive Ollicerin
Neera Singh 1995 S360.000 g £5.000
Co-Chairperson and Executive Vice
Presidenty 3y
Donald R. Rose ......... - 1995 STILOOD  S1.501.000 $5.000
Senior Vice President. Engincerning
1 Machae! Bonm 1995 S130,000  § 55000 $2.000
Vice President, ardware
George H. Sampson U5 SI23000 §  Sdann S 2000

Sentor Vice President, Soltwarei 7

(1) D Ragendrn Smph was the Clarperson of the Board of Directors and Chiel Executive Officer of the
Company until Junuary 3. 1995 and he curenthy holds the position of Chinrperson ol the Board of
Directors. Mr. Pivush Sodha was the President und Chiet Executive Ofticer of the Company duning most
ol 1995
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(2) Dr. Singh received no compensation from the Company for services rendered 1o the Company dunng the
three days of hiscal year 1995 duning which he was employed by the Company as its Chiefl Executive
Olheer.

(3) Effective upon the Offering, Ms. Singh will no longer be an officer of the Company and will no longer
receive compensation as an employee of the Company,

(4) Includes annual distributions in 1995 under the LLC Membership Plan of approximately $140,000 10
Mr Sodha, S143K.000 to Mr. Rose (of which S1.100,000 was deferred in 1995 from o previous year's
distribution), $5.000 to Mr. Bonin and $39,000 to Mr. Sampson. Upon conversion of the LLC
Membership Plan in connection with the Offering, such distributions will no longer he made. Sce
“Certain Transactions — Conversion of Interests Under LLC Option Plan and LLC Membership Plan
inta Stock Options.”

(5) Includes payments by the Company for life insurance (in all cases less than $500 per individual) and
contributions to the Company’s 401 (k) Plan,

(6) All amounts are rounded 1o the nearest $1,000. The amount of perguisites and other personal benehts,
securities or other property has been omitted because the applicable amount of such compensation 1s less
than S50.000 or 10% of the total annual salary and bonus reported for each Named Oflicer

(7) As of August 15, 1996, Mr. Sampson is no longer un employee of the Company.

Option Granrs

No options were granted to the Named Oflicers during the period presented. Options will be granted to
certain Named Officers and other executive officers as described below under “Management — Stock Plans.™

Employment Agreements

The Company entered into an offer letter with Mr. Pivush Sodha when he was hired on October 1, 1990,
The letter provides for continued employment until ternunated at will by enther party with minety days” prior
written notice. Mr. Sodha has indicated an intention to terminate this employment letter (but not his
emplovment ). None of the Company's executive officers has an employment agreement with the Company
other than agreements terminable at will,

Agreement with Director

The Company hus entered into an agreement with one of its directors, Arno Penzuas, pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to compensate Mr. Penzias for his services as a director as follows: (1) an annual fee
of $20,000, (41) a fee of $1,000 for each meeting of the Board of Directors he attends, (1) an annual fee of
S2.000 for cach Committee on which he serves (he presently serves on the Audit Committee and the
Compensation and Stock Option Commattee) and (iv) an annual fee of $3,000 for any committee which he
chairs (ut present he does not serve as chairman of any commuttees). In addition, the Company has agreed 10
grant Mr. Penzias options under the Directors Plan. Such options are subject to vesting over o three year
peniod and to the other terms and conditions of the Directors Plan

Stock Plans
1996 Employee Stock Option Plan

I'he Employee Plan provides for the grant of options that are intended to qualify s “incentive stock
options” under Section 422 of the Code, 1o employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, as well as the
prant of pon-qualifying options o employees and any other dividuals whose participaton i the Emplovee
PLan as determined to be in the best interests of the Company. The Lmplovee Plan authonzes the issuance ol
up to 3.224.000 shares of Class A Common Stock pursuant to options granted under the Employee Plan
{subject to anti-dilution adjustments in the event of a stock split, recapitalization or similar transaction). The
Compensation and Stock Option Committee of the Board of Directors will administer the Employee Plan and
will grant options o purchase Class A Commaon Stock
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I'he option exercise price forincentne stock options granted under the Emplovee Plan may not be fess

than 1005 of the fair market value of the Class A Common Stock on the dute of pramt of the aptisn (or T1r,
in the case of an incentive stock option granted to an optionee beneticrally owmng more than 105 of the
outstanding Class A Common Stock ) The ophion exercise price tor non-incenine stock aptions eranted under
the Employee Plan may not be less than par value of the Class A Common Stock un the dute of grant of the
option. The maximum option term is 10 years (or five vears i the case of an mcentive stock option granted to
an optionee beneficially owning more than 105 of the outstanding Class A Commaon Stock b Options may be
excreised at any tume after grant, except as otherwise provided in the particular option agrecment. There s
also i $100.000 limit on the vilue of Cliss A Commuon Stock (determined at the ime of grant) vovered by
incentive stock options that first becomie cvercisable by an optionce in any year The maximum number of
shares of Class A Common Stock subiect 1o options that can be awarded under the Emplovee Plan to any
persan is 1,000,000 shares.

Pasment for shares purchased under the Fmplosee Plan may be muade either in cash oral permmtted n

the particular option agrecment, by exchangmg shares of Class A Common Stoch with o Lonr market value
equal to the option exercise prive and cush for any ditference. Options oy, it permitted by the particular
uption agreement, be exercised by directing that certlicates for the shures purchased be delivered 1o a heensed
hroker as agent for the optionee, provided that the broker tenders to the Company cash or cash equivalents
equal to the option exercise price plus the amount of any taxes that the Company may be reguired 1o withhold
in connection with the exercise of the option

Options granted under the Employvee Plan are not transferable fother than by will or the Laws of descent
and distribution) and may be exercised onlv by the optionce during s or her litetme. 11 any aplionee’s
emplovment with the Company terminates by 1eason of death or permanent and total disability o the optionee
dies within 30 days after a termnation other than for cause for within 180 dass alter o termination ol
emplosment due to disability), the optionce’s aptions, whether or not then exercisable. may be excrvised
within 180 days after such death or disability unless otherwise provided m the option agrecient thut not Liter
than the date the option would otherwise expire). I the optionee’s emplosment termunates forany redsen
other than cause, death or disability. options held by such optionee will fermnate ) days after such
termination unless otherwise provided in the eption agreement ar approved by the Compensation and Stock
Option Comnuttee (but not later than the date the option would otherwise expire). 1 the optionee’s
crplovment terminates for cause, options held by such optionee will terminate on such termination unless
otherwise provided in the option agreement or approved by the Compensation and Stock Option Cominitice
(but not later than the date the option would ptherwise expired 11 the optionee i not an cmplovee, the
Compensation and Stock Option Commnttee will provide an the option agreement when the option will
terminate,

Ihe Board of Directors may amend the Emplosee PLin with respect o shares of L Liss A Cominon Stovh
4s 10 shich options have not heen granted. However, the Compam’s stochholders must approve any
amendment that would (i matenally change the reguirements as 1o cligitulity 10 receive options,
(i) materially increase the benehits aceruing o participants who are considered “insiders”™ for purposes ol
Rule 1oh-1 of the Securities and Eachange Act of 1934, or (i) increase the number of shares that s be
sold pursuant o options granted under the Frplovee Plan (escept for adjustments wpon changes n
capitalization).

It s anticipated that, in connection with the Oftenng. aptions 1o purchiise approsim ately SUOKE shares

of Class A Common Stock at the Offenng pave will be granted 1o approsimuatel, J03 ciplisces. Options
granted will vest with respect 1o one-third of the shares subjeet o the options on cach ot the liest thiee
anniversaries of the date of grant. The options will expire no Later than the tenth annveran ol the date o
prant,

It is abso anticipated that, i connection with the Ofenmg. opticns o purchase approxmnately up 1o an
appregate of 2160000 shares of Clss A Commun Stoch will be pssued to certinn cmplosees of the Company
and three mdividuals emploved by Telcom Ventures These options will replace options pranted by the
Linnted Lishility Company under the LLC Option Plan adopted in March 1996 and phantom membership
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awards under the LLC Membership Plan adopied i 19940 The excrcise price Tor aphions replacing options
under the LLC Option Plan is intended 1o be equn alent to the exervse prove of the aptions pranted under the
LUEC Opton Plan (8970 10 $1200 per share, or approsamately 617 1o 80 ol the Oflernng pnce ) and s
intended 1o be tor equivalent equity percentage ownership. The number of options and oplion exercise prices
for options replacing phantom membership interests previoushy granted under the 11O Membership Plan will
be 1,343,150 and 25% of the initial offerimg price of the Clss A Common Stock (S0 per share ) which was
calculated under a conversion Tormula intended 1o prontun comparable value with phuntom membership
awards under the LLC Membership Plan. See “Certaon Transactions — Conversion of Interests under LLC
Option Plan and LLC Membership Plan into Stock Options ™

1946 Directors Stoch Option Plan

The Company’s 1996 Directors Stock Oprion PLin tthe “Directons Plan™) provides for the “formula”
grant of options that are not mtended to gualily as “mcentive stock options™ under Section 422 of the Code 1o
e Ragendra Simgh. Neera Singh and directors of the Company who are not othcers or employees of the
Company or any subsidiany of the Company (each an “Elgible Director”™). The Directors Plan authonzes the
issuance of up to 60,000 shares of Class A Common Stock and 250,000 shares of CLiss B Conmmon Stock (for
directurs eligible to hold Cliss B Common Stock, such as De Ragendri Singh and Neera Singh ), pursuant to
options granted under the Directors Plan (subject to anti-dilution adjustments in the event of i stock sphit,
recapitalization or stmabar transaction ), The option exercise price for options granted under the Directors Plan
will be 1007 of the Gur musrket value of the shares of Commaon Stock on the date of grant o the option. Under
the Directors Plan, each Eligible Director who is not eligible 10 hold shares of Class B Commuon Stock (such
as Mark Ein and Arno Pensias) will be granted an imitial option 1o purchase 10,000 shares of Class A
Common Stock in connection with the Offering or on Liter commencement of service Lach Eligible Director
who s eligible 1o hold shares of Class B Common Stock and wha is a director as of the ime of the Offering
{Dr. Rajendra Singh and Neera Singh) will be granted an il option to purchase 35,000 shares of lass B
Commuon Stock in connection with the Offering, and un additional option to purchase 22,500 shares of Class B
Common Stock as of each of the next four annual meetings of the stockholders of the Company if the Ehgible
Director continues to be an Eligible Director, Options granted with respect to Class A Common Stock will
become immediately exercisable with respect to directors who were directors of the Company prior to July |,
1996 ( Mark Ein) and will become exercisable with respect 1o one-third of the shares of Class A Common
Stock that are subject to the options on cach of the hirst three anmversanes of the date of grant subject to
aceeleration of vesting on a change of control (as detined i the Directors Plan ) with respect to directons who
become directors of the Company after Tuly 1, 1996 ( Ao Penziis ). Such options will expire no later than
the tenth anniversary of the date of grant. Options granted with respect 1o Class B Common Stock will
hecome exercisable immediately following the date of grant, and will expire no Liter than the titth anmversan
of the date of gran

Pavment for shares purchased under the Directins PLin mn be made either i cash or by exchanging
Shares of Cliss A Common Stock with o fr market vilue equal 1o the option exercise price and cash or
certficd check tor any ditference. Options may be exervised by directing that certiicates for the shures
purchased be delivered 1o a licensed broker as agent for the optionee, provided that the broker tenders 1o the
Company cish or cash equivalents equal 1o the option exervise prive plus the amount ol any tases the the
Company may be required to swathhold in connection with the escraise ol the oplion

Options pranted under the Directors Plan are not transterable fother than by will or the laws o descent
and distnbution) and may be exercised only by the optionee dunng his or her Tiletme 18 s GpIonee s
service as o director with the Company terminates by reason of death o permancent and total disabiling the
aptionee’s options, whether or not then exercisable, may be exerased within 120 vy atter such death or
disability (bt not Liter than the date the option woulld otherwise expired T the oplionee’s serviee as director
permimates for any reason other than death or disabibity, options held by such optionee will ternnnate 60 days
shier such ternnmation Chat not Liter than the date the option would othemise expire)

The Board of Directors may amend the Directors Plan with respect o shares of Contmon Stock as o
which options have not been granted but no more than once i .siv month petd other than te comport with
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changes m apphicable Federal luws, However, the € omipany’s stockholders must approve any amendment that
would (1) change the requirements as to eligibility 10 recene options, (1) matenally increase the henehits
accruing o partiapants under the Directors Plin, o () materilly increase the number of shares ol
Common Stoch that may be sold punsuant 1o options granted under the Directors Plan (except dor
adjustments upon changes i capitadization )

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Under the Compam™s Emplovee Stoch Purchase Plan, 360,000 shares of Class A Common Stk are
available for purchuse by eligible employees of the € ampany (subject to anti-dilution adjustments in the event
of a stock split, recapitalization or similar transaction ). The Employee Stock Purchase Plan permits chpible
employees to elect to have 4 portion of their pay deducted by the Company 1o purchuase shares of Cliss A
Common Stock of the Company. In the event there is any increase o decrease in shares of Class A Comman
Stuck without receipt of consideration by the Company (for instance, by & recapitalization or stock sphith.,
there may be a proportionate adjustment to the number and kinds of shares that may be purchased under the
Emplovee Stock Purchase Plan. Generally, payroll deductions and other payments will be ag cumulated duning
the period specitied by the Compensation and Stoch Option Commitiee (the “Payroll Deduction Period ™)

The Emplnvee Stock Purchase Plan wall be admimisiered by the Compensation and Stock Ophon
Committee. The Compensation and Stock Option Committee will have the authonty 1o anterpret the
Emplosee Stock Purchiase PLan, to prescribe, amend and rescind rules relating 1ot and to make all other
determinations necessary or advisable in adminstening the Fmployee Stock Purchase Plan, all of which
determinations wall be finasl and binding

Any employee of the Company or any of ity subsidianies may participate in the Emplosee Stock Purchase
Plan, except the following, who are ineligible 1o participate: (1) an employee who has been cmployed by the
Company or a participating atiliate for less than siv months as of the beginning of i Pavroll Deduction Pernod:
(it} an emplovee whose customary employment s for less than tive months in any year, (1) an employee
whose vustonary employment i 20 hours of less per week, and v an emplovee who, atter exercising s or
her rights o purchase stoch under the Fmplosce Stock Purchase Pln, would own stock tincluding stock that
may be acquired under any outstanding options) representing five pereent or more of the total combined
voting power of ll classes of stock of the Company - An employee must be employed on the last day of the
Paveoll Deduction Period in order to acquire stoch under the Employee Stk Purchase Plan unless the
cmployee has retired, dicd or beeome disabled

An eligible employee may hecome a participant in the Employee Stock Purchase Plan by completing an
clection o paticipate in the Employee Stock Purchase Plan authorizing the Company to have deductions
made from pay on each pay day following enrollment i the Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The deductions
will be credited 1o the emplovee’s account under the Fmplosee Stock Purchase Plan. An employee may not
during any Pavroll Deduction Period change s or her percentage of payroll deduction tor that Payroll
Deduction Period, nor may an employee withdraw any contnbuted funds other than by terminating
participation in the Emplovee Stock Purchase Plan cas desenbed below ) A partiaipating employee who 1s nol
an exccutive oflicer subject 1o Section 16 under the Fachange Act (o “Section 16 officer™ ), may termmate
paveoll deductions or contributions Tor the renvomder of o Paveoll Deduction Penod

Raghts o purchose shares of € lss A Connmon Stock will be deemed granted to partipating ciployees
as of the tist trading day of cach Pavroll Deduction Peniod. The purchase price for cach share {the “Purchase
Price”) will be established by the Compensation and Stock Option Commttee, but will not be less than 855
of the fair market value of the shares of Cliss A Common Stock on the first or List trading day of such Payroll
Deduction Perod, whichever is lower,

No emplovee may purchase shures of Cliss A Common Stock in any year under the Employee Stock
Purchase Plan and all other “employee stock purchase plans” of the Company and any subsidiary having un
aggregate fair market value in excess of $25,(00, determined as of the first trading dite of the Pavroll
Deduction Perd
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On the last trading day of the Payroll Deduction Poosd, o participating cmplinee will be credited with
the number of whole shares of Class A Commion Stk purchased under the | mplovee Stoch Purchase Plan
dunng such perd. Shares of Class A Common Stob |!|.|l|:||.|‘-|.".l under the Lmplovee Stk Purchase Plan
will be held in the custody of un agent (the “Agent™) The Agent may hold the shares of Class A Common
Stock purchased under the Employee Stock Purchase Plin i stock certificates in nominee names amd i
commingle shares held in its custody in & single account or stock cettiicate, without wdentiication s 1o
individual employees. An employee may. howeser, instruct the Agent 1o have all or part of such shures
reissued in the employee’s own name and have the stnk certiicate delivered to the cmplosee

In the event the total number of shares of Cliss A Common Stock reserved Tor ssuance at the conclusion
of the Payroll Deduction Period is insuflicient 1 vover the number of shares o be purchased by all
participating employees during the same Payroll Deduction Period, then each participating cmployee will be
(i) credited with 4 pro rata portion of the available shares, and () refunded all mones i excess of those
required to purchase the shares credited the emplinee

A participating employee will be refunded all momes in his or her account, and his or her partiicipation in
the Employee Stock Purchase Plan will be terninated, it (1) the employee elects 1o terminate participation I
delivering a written notice to that effect to the Company, (1) the employee ceases to be cimploved by the
Company or a participating subsidiary except on account of death, disability, retirement. (i) the Bourd ol
Directors elects to terminate the Employee Stock §urchise Plan; or (iv) the emplosce ceases to be eligable 1o
participate in the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, provided. however, that o participating emplovee who s o
Section 16 officer does not have the discretion to voluntarily terminate participation in the Fmployee Stovh
Purchase Plan during a Payroll Deduction Perud 11 a0 participating emplnee termuinates emphoament on
account of death, disability or retirement, the participating employee will have the followmg alternatives:
(1) refund of all monies in his or her account. or (i1) purchase of shares of Class A Common Stock on the List
day of the Payroll Deduction Period with the amounts then accumulated in s or her account Gabsent 3 timely
election, the participating emplovee (or his or her lepal representative ) will be deemed 1o have elected o
recenve a refund): provided, however, that a participating employee whois o Section 16 ofhicer does not have
the discretion o receive o refund

Nuo participating employvee (or his or her legal representative in the case of death) mas assign his or her
rights 1o purchase shares of Class A Commun Stock under the Emplovee Stock Purchase Plan. whether
voluntarily, by operation of law or otherwise

Phe Board of Directors may, at amy time, amend the Emplovee Stoch Purchase Pl many respect,
provided. however, that without approval of the stockholders of the Company no amendment shall be e
(i) increasing the number of shares thut may be made available for purchase under the Fmplovee Stock
Purchase Plan, (ii) changing the eligibility requirements for participating i the Fmployee Stock Purchase
Plan or (s} impairing the vested nghts of participating cmplinees

1 he Board of Directors may terminate the Emplovee Stock Purchase Plan at any time and Tor any reason
or for no reason, provided that such termination shall not impair any rights of participants that have vested at
the time of termination. In any event, the Employvee Stock Purchase Plan shadl sathout further action of the
Roard of Directors, terminate at the earlier of (1) ten vears after the adoption of the Emplosee Stock Purchase
Plan In the Board of Directors and (i) such time s all shares of € Liss A Commion Stock that may be nade
avatlable for purchase under the Employee Stock Purchiase Plan have been isued

1994 Incentive Compensation Plan

The Company has adopred the 1994 Incentive Compensation Pl tihie - Corpensatie s Pl 1 mder
the Compensation Plan, the Compensation and Stock Opton Committee nes, from o o b im i sl
discretion, grant awards to those employees of the Company whose responsibilities and decisions, the
opinion of the Compensation and Stock Option Committee. affect the long-term sustaned growth and
profitability of the Company. Each incentive award entitles the recipients thereof to recenve o vash pavment on
the date specitied in the corresponding award agreement To dhate, all mcentine awands pranted e pasvable on
the third annnersany of the geant thereol. At the discretion of the Compensation il Stock Option
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Committee, participating emplosees may borrow o portion of the ot amount of ther imcentne awards i
Compensation Plin has oo teemimation date, although the Board of Directors mas, il aale discretion
termimite the Compensation Plin at any time. paosaded such termmation docs not adversels atlect the nghts
of participants with respect o asands previonsly poanted

Jitl k) Plan

The Company mambans o retirement plin cthe 300tk Plan™) antended b guality umder Sed
teons SO0 and SO0k of the Code [.|!|_||n|||gh it b it J'L'illlt.‘\ll.‘l‘ 4 determumation lever Trom the Tnternal
Revenue Service (the “TRS7) as o the tivegualitied statas thereol) The Uik Plan s a0 detinid
contribution plan that covers employees of the Company at Teast 21 years of ape, who huve heen emplosed In
the Company for at least one vear. Employees may contribute up to 13% of thew annual wages (subjedt tooan
annual hont preseribed by the Code) as pretas, salany deferral contnbutions. The Company mas, an it
diseretion. mateh emplosee contributions up to o mavimum of 3% o annual wages The Compans ~
contrihutions to the 401(k) Plan for the year ended December 81, 1995 and the six months ended Tune 3
1996 were approximately S419.000 and $225.000, respectively. As of June 30, 1996, 460 of the Compan
current emplosees were participants in the 00 (hky Plan. In 1994, the Company requested i complunae
statement pursuant to the IRS voluntary compliance resolution program with respect to the correction of an
aperational defee in the 401 (k) Plan resulung from the 4000k Plan’s recordhecpers nondienmimation tests
The IRS s currently reviewing the request.

CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS
The following is o summan of certain transactions and relationships among the Company amd 1l

associited entives, amnd among the directors, exeoutne ollicers and stockholders of the Company and i
associted entities

The Merger

In connechon with the Ofering, LOCC Tnternational will becone the corporate successor o the il
Liabality Company. Immediately prior 1o the consummation of the Oflenng. the Limited Liabaliy € ompans
will be merged with and to LCC International 1CC Tnternational will be the survvang compans i ihe
Merger, and the separate existence of the Limied Brability Company will ceases As o result of the Merper,
LOCC International will own all of the assets and pphis and be subyect 1o all of the obligations and habalies of
the Linnted Liability Company, including ander the Credit Facihiny and the achangeable Notes. Because the
Merger s itended 1o gqualify as tn=free under Section 381 of the Cade the s basis o the assets held b
LOC International after the Merger will be the same an the tan Basis of the assets held by the Tamed
Liabil y Company immediately before the Merger, and LCC Tnternational wall add tooats holding perisd to
certain assets the period for which the Limited Dubiliny Company held such assets

In connection with the Merger, 11250750 shares of Cliss B Common Stoch will be assucd 1o
KRI Tovestors, 85233 shares of Class B Common Stock will be sssued 1o the Founder Corporation anid
28411 shares of Class A Common Stock will be tssued 1o 1C Group Tmmediatels prior toc e Merger
Peleom Ventures will transfer its membership mterest an the Linnted Liabihiny Compans 1o RE Tnvestors
return for o membership interest in RE Investors of 995 (the remuming membenship mterests of 0755
0 25% will be held directhy by the Founder Corporation and TC Group, respectively ) 1 is presently mtended
that subsequent 1o the Offenmg the Toumder Corporation amd 10 Group will contribute therr shares ol
Common Stock 1o RE Tnvestors As aoresult of the Merpes, B Bivestors amd the Bond o Cogporation il
own Class B Common Stock which will represent upon consummation of the Ollenmg #4487 ol the condinel
voting power of both classes of Common Stock. See “Rosk Factors — Controd ol the Company s
RE Investors™ amd “Description of Capital Stock ™

Pursuant 1o the Merger, 1CC International wall be required toandemmity Teleom Ventures, RE Investons
the Founder Corporation, the Carlyle Tovestors and T Gronp agrainst sny Dbl Tor obilipations il
liabilities assocuited with the Limited Liability Company’s operations. 1CC International soll bear all of the
costs incurred by the Limited Liability Company and such entities, including transter taves and related fees i
vonnectom with the Merper,




Conversion of Interests under 11.C Option Plan and (1. C Membership Plan into Stock Options

T Abarch 1996, the Doted 1 aababity Compans wlopiedd the THO Option Plan Ulnder the LEO Oplion
Plan, options to purchase membership interests in the Limited Lustality Company were made avalable for
grants 10 employees at un exercise price based on the far market valuc of the Limited Liabihity Company at
the time the options were granted, as determined by the Limited Luability Company. In connection with the
Offering. the options granted under the LLC Opuon Plan (none of which have been eacrencd) will be
replaced by stock options granted under the Employee Plan which have an option exercise price equivalent to
the current exercise price of the options granted under the LLC Option Plan ($9.70 1o $12.00 per share, or
approximately 61% 1o 86% of the Offering price). 930,000 shares have been reserved under the Employee Plan
to replace options granted under the LLC Option Plan. Sce “Management — Stock Plans ™

In 1994, the Company adopted the LLC Memberstip Plan. Under the LLC Membentip Plan, the
Company has issued awards entitling the holders thereol to participate in distributable protits of the Limited
Liability Company as determined by its members” commitice. In connection with the Offening. all phantom
membership awards will be converted into options under the Employee Plan and cach participant’s night 1o
participate in distributable profits will automatically terminate. The number of options und the uption exereise
prices for options replacing phantom membership interests previously granted under the LLC Membership
Plan was calculated under a conversion formula, intended to maintain comparable value, gpenerally using 25%
of the fair market value of the shares of Class A Common Stock subject 1o the options at the time of
conversion ($4.00 per share). Approximately 1,343,150 shares have been reserved under the Employee Plan 1o
replace options granted under the 1LLC Membership Plan. See Note 13 10 the Conslulated I'inancial
Statcments

Corporate Opportunity

The Company and Telcom Ventures Group will enter into the Intercompany Agreement, effective upon
the Offering. Such agreement has been negotiated in connection with the Offering and does not necessanly
represent an arms’ length transaction due to the control of the Company by the Telcom Ventures Group
Under the Intercompany Agreement, Telcom Ventures, RE Investors, the Founder Corporition and the Singh
Family Group have agreed that, until the earlier of (1) the date on which the Telecom Ventures Giroup no
longer possesses voting control of the Company or (i1) the cecurrence of certun termination cvents specified
in the Formation Agreement among the Telcom Ventures Group, none of them will. directly or indirectly,
participste or engage, other than through the Company, m any of the Company’s traditional Business
activities, defined as (1) the provision of cellulur radio frequency engineenng and network design services 10
the wireless telecommunications industry, (i) the provision of program management services or deployment
or construction related consulting services to the wireless telecommunications industry and (i) the
manufacture, sali . license, distribution or servicing of any radio network planmng soltware tools or dnve test
field measurement and analysis equipment which are used s LOC a0 connection with 1O senvaces desenbedd
i the loregomg clauses (1) or (1), The toregoing prohibition does not apply 1o services provided to third
parties in which any member of the Telcom Ventures Group holds or is considering the acguisition of an
investment where the provision of services is incidental 1o such member’s investment or to the ownership by
any member of the Telcom Ventures Group of up 1o 3% of the outstanding securnities of anv entity as long as
no member of the Telcom Ventures Group participates in the management of such entity. Under the
Intercompany Agreement, cach of the Carlyle Investors (but not ats affiliates ) has also agreed not to invest in
any entity whose primary business is 1o compete with the Company in ats traditional business rolvities
(excluding program management) until the earlier of (1) the date on which such Carlyle Investor no longer
owns directly or indirectly, an interest an the Company or (1) the occurrence of certan ternnration events
specified in the Formation Agreement among the Telcom Ventures Group

In consideration of the foregmng agreements of the Telcom Ventures Group, the Company hus agreed
that. if any opportunity to invest in or acquire a third party the value of which could reasonably be decmed to
exceed $1 million (an “lnvestment Opportunity™) is presented to the Company that it wishes to refer o
third party, the Company must give written notice to Telcom Ventures of such Investment Opportumty,
Telcom Ventures has five business days following its receipt of the notice (o inform the Company of its desire
to pursue the Investment Opportunity. I Telecom Ventures does not wish 1o pursue the Investment
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Opportunity, or Tails to provide timely nutio: 1 (he Company of 1ts interest, the Company may reler the
Investment Opportumity o any third party.

Advances To and From Telecom Ventures and Kelated Parties

The Limited Liability Company was capitalized in January 1994 with a contnbution of $16 7 mllion
from Telcom Ventures in exchange for & 99% interest in the Limited Liability Company. Telcom Ventures'
capital contribution consisted of $6.4 mullion in the form of assets, net ol lahlities assumed, Tormerly
emploved by the Founder Corporation and afliliates in the Company’s business, which were transterred to the
Limited Liability Company at their respective carrving values, and $10.3 million in cash received by Teleam
Ventures from the Carlvle Investors. The Founder Corporation and TC Group (on hehall of the Carlyle
Investors) received 0.75% and 0.25% interests in the Limited Lushility Company

Since January 1, 1995, the Company made loans totaling $15.3 million to Teloom Ventures ata vanable
interest rate of prime plus 3.0%, escalating a1 0.25% mcrements al varnous intervals over the term of the debt
Prior to the Offering. the amount of such advances, along with sccrued interest thereon, will he dividended o
Felcom Ventures and used 1o repay the loans

tmmediately fullowing the Offering, the Company will make a loan of $3.5 million o Telcom Ventures
from proceeds of the Offering 1o assist Telcom Ventures in paving certain tves die i connection with the
MO T Note Assumption. Such loan will be repayvable over five years. with equal annual prnaipal payments over
the term of the loan Interest will acerue at the rite of LIBOR plus 1.75% and be payable annually. Such loan
will be senior mdebtedness of Telcom Ventures. Upon the sale by Telcom Ventures or any of its afliliates
(detined s each entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with. Telcom Ventures, cach
natural person that controls Telcom Ventures and each member of Telcom Ventures as of the dute of the
loan) of shares of Common Stock resulting in Telcom Ventures and such afliliates, 10 the aggregate, owning
less than 25% of the outstanding Common Stock, the Company may declare the loan to be due and payahle

During 1995, the Company converted outstanding receivables in the amount of $1.4 million owed
Corporacion Mobilcom $.A. de C.V. (d/b/a Tricom ). 4 company in which Dr Rajendra Singh and members
of his Family holds an 15.0% indirect interest and of which the Carlyle Investors own through Teleom Ventures
appronimately 4.5%, into promissory notes. The notes bear anterest at approvimately 1o 3% per annum,
payable monthly, The principal amount and all accrued interest was due in January 1996 and currently remuin
outstanding. The Company expeets payvments to be made on these notes from capital contnbutions to be made
by the sharcholders of this entity during 1996, including Dr. Singh and such members of his Lanuly

Registration Rights
1t 15 anticipated that, concurrently swith the Offening. the Company. REF Investors and MO will enter into
one or more repistration rights agreements which will relate to the Class A Common Stoch issuable upon
conversion of Class B Common Stock or in the MCI Conversion, respectivels. RE Investors and MO have or
will have certain “demand™ nghts o require the Company 1o register their Commuon Stock for sale and mas
register shares on a “piggyback™ basis in connection with most registered public offenings of secunties of the
Company. RE Investors and MCT will be entitled to registration rights that would, among other things, permit
cuch of them w submit three demand registration reguests o the Company (and one of the RE Investory’
demands miay be exercised by the Carlyle Investors following a distribution of shares of Common Stk by
t RE Investors to Carlvle). See “Description of Capital Stock - Certan Relationships Between the Founder
Corporation and the Carlyle Investors Affecting the Company © Generalls, the Conpany s reguired o uwe
“heat efforts”™ to file o repistraton sttement with the Commission withim 90 days ol receving such o iequest
G Hloweser, onee 0 vear. the Company may defer a registration reguest from RE Investors or MOT tor g penod of
p 1o 0 s 1t the Board of Directors makes a good fuith determination that it would be “senousiy
detrmmental” 1o the Company to file a registration statement within the time perod otherwise equired  The
Company will pay all expenses (other than underwriters” discounts and commissions} an conaeetion with such
registnitions

The Company mtemds 10 file o registration statement under the Securities Act with respect 1o the
LR94.000 shuares of Cammon Stock available upon exercise of options under the Emplnee Man, the Prrectans
Plan and the Employee Stock Purchase Plan.
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Carlyle Option Designee Stock Options

The Company has reserved 85,000 shares of € liss A Common Stock (subjeet 1o anti-dilution
adjustments in the event of a stock split, recapitalization or similar transaction) for issuance pursuait 10
options to be granted to the Carlyle Option Designees (the “Carlyle Option Designee Stock Options™). The
option exercise price for the Carlyle Option Designee Stock Options will be 100% of the fair market value of
the Class A Common Stock on the date of grant of the option. The applicable Carlyle Option Designees will
be granted an initial option to purchase 25,000 shares of Class A Common Stock in connection with the
Offering, and an additional option to purchase 15,000 shares of Class A Common Stock on each of the next
four anniversaries of the initial date of grant, Options granted will vest immediately. The options will expire no
later than the fifth anniversary of the date of grant.

The Exchangeable Notes

Since Junuary 1, 1995, the Company has paid MC1 approximately $2.0 million in interest under the LCC
Note. The Company presently intends to exercise its option in August 1997 to cause the Exchangeable Notes
to be exchanged for Class A Common Stock. Immediately prior to the Merger the Company intends 1o
assume the Telcom Note. See “The MCI Notes, MCI Note Assumption and MCI Conversion™ and “The

Merger.”
Future Transactions with Officers, Directors and Principal Stockholders

The Company has adopted a policy prior to the Offering pursuant to which it will not permit future loans
or other material transactions between the Company and ns officers, directors or principal stockholders, or
affiliates of any of them, for other than bona fide business purposes or on terms less fuvoruble than could
reasonably be obtained from third parties, other thun those involving the performance or renewal of existing
arrangements. unless approved by a majority (or all, if there are two or fewer) of the independent directors of
the Company who have no interest in such transaction.

Provision of Services and Products to Telcom Ventures and Parties Related Thereto

The Company provides engincering scrvices and software products 1o Telcom Ventures and vanous other
companics owned, in part, by Telcom Ventures or its members. Revenues carncd since January 1, 1995 for
such services and products were approximately $4.4 million through June 30, 1996, Trade accounts receivable
from these related parties were approximately $2.2 million a1 June 30, 1996

The Lim.ted Liability Company shares office space und office cquipment with Telcom Ventures. The
Limited Liability Company has allocated such costs between the Limited Liability Company and Telcom
Ventures on a usage hasis as 1t has deemed appropnate. Since January |, 1995, the aggregate amount of such
cost allocated to Telcom Ventures was approximately $191,000 through June 30, 1996, The amount of such
costs owed to the Company is included as part of the loans totaling $14.1 million made by the Company 1o
Telcom Ventures as of June 30, 1996 Concurrently with the Offening, the Company and Telcom Ventures
will enter into an overhead and adminstrative services agreement. Pursuant to the overhead and administra-
tive services agreement, certain management personnel and other employees of the Company will prov e
certain administrative services, principally related 10 human resource management functions and, until the
first quarter of 1997, to administration of accounts pavable and accounts receivable systems and provisions of
general office support services, to Telcom Ventures and Telcom Ventures will sublease ofhee space from the
Company. Telcom Ventures will be obligated to pay the Company o monthly fee for cuch administrative
services and oflice spuce based on a reasonable estimate of the Company ‘s cost of providing same While this
agreement is not the result of urm’s length negotuations, it 1s designed to reimburse the Company for its costs
in providing such services (including costs of personnel), and the Company believes that the teems of such
agreements are reasonable
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PRINCIPAL AND SELLING STOCKHOLDERS

The following table sets forth, (i) s of the date hereof, as adjusted 1o reflect the Merger and fn) followmg
the sale of Class A Common Stock by the Selling Stockholder, certain information with respect 1o stoch ownenhip
of (4) all persons known by the Company to be beneficial ownen of five percent o more of ity outstanding
Common Stock, (b) each of the Company’s directors and (<) all directors and executive allicen as o group
Unless otherwise indicated, each of the stockholders has sole voung aid investment poser with respeet to the
shares shown as benefically owned by them

Pre-Offering ] B Post-Offering
Amouni and Percent of Amoun! and Pevoent of
Nature of {ommon Sumber of Sature of { ummon
Same and Address Benehicial Stock Shares Heing Benchicial Stock
ul Beneticial Owner(1) Owmnceship hanstanding (Mlered Umnership Ouistanding
RF Investors(2)i4) ceea. 11,250,751 Y4 s 2SN INHD K750, T5] 2 s

¢fo 2300 Clarendon Bivd,
Arhington, Virgima 22201
Founder Corporation( 3)(4) 1,335 94 0K I SIMINK) BoKIS UKD v 6
¢/o 2300 Clarendon Blvd.
Arlington, Yirgima 22201
Rajendra Singh(3)i4)(5)(6) . .. . 11.335984 Y9 R 2,500 (K} NS YRS 629
¢/o 2300 Clarendon Blvd.
Arhington, Virginn 22201
Neera Singht ) (4)(5)16) 11,335 984 WK 2 SN NN KIS 984 hl9
¢/o 2300 Clarendon Blvd.
Arlington, Virginia 22201
Mark . Ein(6)(8) . = 10 (HN) .
/o The Carlyle Group
1001 Pennsylvania Ave., NW
Washington, DC 20004
Amo A Penstast6) ... ...
c/o Lucent Technologies/Bell Labs
T Mountam Ave
Murray Hill, NJ 07974-0636
Piyush Sedha(7)(9) . . - I%1.720 13
c/o 2300 Clarendon Bivd
Arl agton, Virgima 22201
All Darectors, and Exccutive Officers
as a Group (11 Persons)(10) . 11,395,395 1EKI 0 Wotdi] A0 td 1

* Less than 0.1%.
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(1) Unless otherwise noted, the Company belicves that all of such shares are owned of record by cach
individual named s beneficial owner and that such individual hus sole voting and dispositive power with
respect o the shares of Common Steck owned by cach of them

(2) Does not include the 85.233 shares of Class B Common Stock held by the Founder Corporation or the
28,411 shares of Class A Common Stock held by TC Group

(1) Represents all outstanding shares of the Class B Common Stock, of which 85,233 shares are held by the
Founder Corporation and the remainder of which are held by RF Investors, a subsidiary of Telcom
Ventures. Telcom Ventures is owned 753% by the Founder Corporation and 25% by the Carlyle lnvestors
The Founder Corporation is owned by the Singh Family Group. Dr. Rajendra Singh and Neera Singh
are the sole directors and executive officers of the Founder Corporation. Does not include the 28411
shares of Class A Common Stock held by TC Group

(4) The holders of the 85,233 shares of Class B Common Stock and 28411 shares of Class A Common
Stock described in note 2 above intend 1o transfer such shares 1o REF Investors lollowing the Offering

(5) The Post-Offering column includes options to acquire 70,000 shares of Class B Common Stock that will
be granted 1o Dr. Rajendra Singh and Neera Singh and which are exercisable within 60 days of the date
of the consummation of the Offering.

(6) Director.

(7) Director/ Executive Otficer.

(8) Includes options to acquire 10,000 shares of Class A Common Stock that will be granted 1o Mr. Ein and
which are exercisable within 60 days of the date of the consummation of the Offering Mr Einis a Vice
President of The Carlvle Group, an afliliate of the Carlyle Investors. M Fin disclinms heaeticial
ownership of the shares of Common Stock owned indirectly by the ( arlyle Tnvestors through s 24'%
ownership of RF Investors and its ownership of TC Group, and any shares of stock issuable upon the
exercise of Carlyle Opuion Designee Stock Options.

(9) Consists entirely of shares issuable upon the esercise of stock options that will be exercisable within
60 days of consummation of the Otfering

(10) Includes the shares held by RE Investors. the Founder Corporation and TC Group and director and
exccutive officer stock options which are exercisable within 60 days of the date hereol. but does not
include any shares of stock issuable upon exercise of Carlyle Option Designee Stack Options

As of the date of this Prospectus, there are no agreements or other arrangements or understandings
known to the Company concerning the votmge of the Commeon Stock o othemise concerming control of the

Company other than those deseribed below. See “Descnption of Capital Stock - Certam: Relationships

Between the Founder Corporation and Carlyle Investors Affecting the Company ™ There are no pre-emplive

rights applicable to the Common Stock. See “Description of Capital Stock ™

DESCRIFTION OF CAPITAL STOCK
The following summary description of the capital stock of the Company i based, i part, on the
provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation and Bslaws. The authorized capitil stock of the Company
consists of 70 million shares of Class A Common Stock, 20 million shares of Class B Coramon Stock, and
10 million shares of preferred stock, par value $0.1 per share (the “Preferred Stnk™)

Common Stock

The Company has two classes of authorized Common Stock, Cliss A Common Stock, which s being
offered hereby, and Class B Common Stock. The Class A Common Stuck has one vote per share. The Class B
Common Stock, which may be owned only by Teleom Ventures and certain of its athliates or 4 successor
thereol, has ten votes per share

Al outstandimg shares of Class A Comron Stk ©Liss B Common Stock e, and all shures of
Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock to be outstanding upon consummation of the Otfening
will be, validly issued, fully paid and nonassessable
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After the Offering and the Merger, Rl Losastors i togpeether with the Tounder € orporation ) will own all
the outstanding shares of Class B Common Sewcb shich will represent 94 4% ol the commed votng power of
both clisses of Common Stock. As i result, B Tnvestors will have the ability to elect all of the Company’s
directors and will continue to control the Company. See “"Risk Factors — Control of the Company by
RF Investors.” The Class B Common Stock. which has effective control of the Campany, is not being offered
by this Prospectus. Except as otheérwise requured b Liw, shares of liss A Common Stock and Class H
Cammon Stock vote together on all matters, including the clection ol directors,

The Compuny may not issue any Class B Common Stock at any ime after the completion of the Otfering
except pursuint to any stock option plan adopted by the Board of Directors and approved by the stockholders
and except with respect 1o stock dividends declared on Class B Common Stock. Euach outstanding share of
Class B Common Stock may, at the option of the holder thereol. ut any time, be converied into one share of
Class A Common Stock. Each share of outstanding Class B Common Stock shall convert into one share of
Class A Common Stock immediately upon transfer to any holder other than the following (an “Eligible
Class B Stockholder™): (i) Telcom Ventures, one or more subsidianes thereof or any successor to Telcom
Ventures or one or more subsidiaries thereof, (i) the Founder Corporalion of any successor therctu, or
(iii) any one or more of Dr. Rajendra Singh, Necra Singh, other members of the immediate family of
Dr. Rajendra and Neera Singh or their lineal descendants, spouses of lineal descendants or lineal descendants
of spouses, o any trusts for the benetit of any of the toregoing. If the shares of Class B Common Stock held by
the Eligible Class B Siockholders in the aggregate constituie 10% or less of the outstanding shares of Common
Stock. each share of Class B Common Stock shall immediately convert into one share of Class A Common
Stock. Each share of outstanding Class B Common Stock which is held by any Ehgible Class B Stockholder
shall immediately convert into one share of Class A Common Stock at such time as such holder is no longer
an Eligible Class B Stockholder.

Holders of Common Stock will have no cumulative voting rights and no preemptive, subscription, or
sinking fund rights. Subject to preferences that may he applicable 1o any then vutstanding Preferred Stock,
holders of Common Stock will be entitled 1o receve ratably such dividends as may he declared by the Board
of Directors out of funds legally available therefor. See "Dividend Policy.” In the event of a liqudation,
dissolution or winding up of the Company, holders of Common Stock will be entitled 10 share ratably in all
assets remaining after payment of libilities and the liquidation preference of any then outstanding Preferred

Stock

Preferred Stock

The Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the Board of Directors to issue, from time to time and without
further stockholder action, one or more series of Preferred Stock, and to fis the relative rights and preferences
of the shares, including voting powers, dividend nghts, liquidition preferences, redempuion nghts and
conversion pr dileges. The issuance of Preferred Stock nin have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing
a change in control of the Company without further action by the stockholders. Preferred Stock issued with
voting. conversion or redemption rights may adversely affect the voting power of the holders of Common
Stock, and could discourage any attempt to obtain control ol the Company. As of the date of this Prospectus,
the Board of Directors has not authorized any series of Preteried Stock, and there are presently no agreements
or understandings for the issuance of any shares of Prefered Stoch

Certain Relationships Between the Founder Corporation and Carlyle Investors Affecting the { ompany

The RF Investors and Telcom Ventures limited lability company agrecments provide that . for as long as
the Carlyle Investors collectively own at least 8% ol the total membership interests ¢ Telcom Ventures,
Telcom Ventures shall vote any and all shares of the Company held by it, and shall cause RF Investors to vote
any and all shares held by it, from time to time. (i) to elect as directors of the Company two persons
recommended by the Carlyle Investors and (ii) not take any of the following actions without the consent of
the Carlyle Investors: (a) approve any amendment to the Certiicate of Incorporation or the Bylaws of the
Company; (b) approve the incurrence by the Company of amy debt (or the granting of secunty relating to the
incurrence of debt) if as a result of such incurrence, the debt to cquity ratio of the Company exceeds 6.1, o1l

il




Aas 4 result of such debt incurrence. the total outstanding dibt of the Company exceeds $50 million plus or
manus, s the case may be, the camubiative net income or net hwses of the Company after January 1994;
te b approve v e alhibatesd party teamsaclions meocseom ol BTA00000 ur ol mekdifications o existing
transachions, subject o certain himited exceptions, (d) approse appantment of independent acvountants of the
Company other than one of the “big six™ accounting hrws, or (e) approve certan ¢vents relating w
bankruptey or msolvency of the Compuany

The RE Investors and Telcom Ventures limited hability company agreements provide tor vanous nghts of
the Carlvle Investors to cause the distnbution to the Carhle Investors of Common Stock held by RF
Investors. Following the third anniversary of the closing of the Offering, the Carlyle Investors will huve the
right to cause the distribution to the Carlyle Investors (by RF Investors and then Telcom Ventures), of up to
the Carlvle Investors” andirect proportionate interest in the shares of Common Stock then held by RF
Investors which is 1 excess of 105 of the Common Stock then outstanding (treating Class A Common Stock
and Class B Common Stock as a single class of Common Stock for this purpose). The Carlvle Investors’
initil indirect proportionate interest in RF Investors 1s 25%, which interest will be recalculuted following any
non-praportionsl distribution 1o the Carlyle Investors. Following the fifth anniversary of the closing of the
Offening, the Carlyle Investors will have the right to cause the distnibution to the Carlyle Investors (by RF
Investors and then Telcom Ventures), of up to the full amount of the Carlyle Investors’ then indirect
proportionate interest in the shares of Common Stock, so long as the Common Stock remaining held by RF
Investors would leave RE Investors with at least 51% of the voting power of the Common Stock then
outstanding. Upon the first distribution to the Carlyle Investors, the Carlyle Investors will have the nght 1o
exercise ane of the three nights held by RF Investors to demand registration of shares of Commaon Stock under
the Secunties Act “Certiun Transactions — Registration Rights.” The ability of the Carlyle Investors to
require distnbutions of Cliss A Common Stock or demand a registration thereol would be subject to a
determination by an investment banker reasonably acceptable 1o RF Investors and the Curlyle Investors that
such action would not matenally adversely impact the market for the Common Stock.

Curlvle Option Designee Stock Options

The Company has reserved 85,000 shares of Class A Common Stock (subject to anti-dilution
adjustments in the event of a stock sphit, recapitalization or similar transaction) for issvance pursuant to
options to be granted to the Carlyvle Option Designees. The option excreise price for the Carlyle Option
Designee Stock Options will be 1005 of the fair market value of the Class A Common Stock on the date of
prant of the option. The applicable Carlyle Option Desipnees will be granted an imitial option to purchase
25.000 shares of Cliss A Common Stock in connection with the Otfenng, and an additional option to purchise
15,000 shares of Class A Common Stock on each of the next four anniversaries of the imtial date of grant.
Options grunted will vest immediately. The options will expire no later than the Hifth anniversary of the date of
prant

Advance Notice Provisions for Stockholder Proposals and Stockholder SNominations of Directors

The Bylaws establish an advance notice procedure with regard to the nomination, other than by the Board
of Directors, of candidates Tor election as directors (the “Nomination Procedure” ) and with regard 1o certain
muatters to be brought before an annual meeting of stockholders of the Company (the “Business Procedure™)
The Nomination Procedure requires that a stockholder give prior wnitten notice, in specified form, of 4
plinned nomination to the Board of Directors 1o the Secretary of the Company. Any person who s not so
nominated will not be eligible for election as a director under the Nomination Procedure. Under the Business
Provedure, o stockholider seeking 1o have any business conducted at an annual or special riceting must give
prioe wotten notice, in speaitied Torm, 1o the Secretary of the Company. 11 husiness s not properly brought
belore such meetmg i accordance with the Business Procedure, such business will not be transacted at such
mecting. Although the Bylaws do not give the Board of [hrectors any power o approve or disapprove
stockholder nominations for the election of directors or any other business desired by stockhulders to be
conducted at an annual or special meeting, the Bylaws (1) may have the effect of precluding 4 nomination for
the election of directors or precluding the conduct of busiaess at @ particular meeting il the proper procedures
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are not followed or (ii) may discourage or deter 4 third party from conducting a solicitation of proxies to elect
its own slate of directors or otherwise attempting to obtain control of the Company. even if the conduct of such
solicitation or such attempt might be beneficial to the Company and its stockholders.

Limitation of Liability

The Certificate of Incorporation provides that to the fullest extent permitted by law, no director ol the
Company will be liable 1o the Company or its stockholders for monetary damages for any breach of hiducian
duty as a director. The Delaware Law permits such limitation of liability except for {1) uny breach of the
director’s duty of loyalty to the Company or its stockholders; (ii) acts or omissions not in good faith or
involving intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law; (i) approval of certain unlawful dividends or
stock purchases or redemptions; and (iv) any transaction from which the director derived an improper
personal benefit. In appropriate circumstances, equitable remedies such as an injunction or other forms of non-
monetary relief would remain available under Delaware Law.

Section 203 of Delaware Law

The Company will be subject 1o the provisions of Section 203 of Delawire Law (“Scction 2037). Under
Section 203, a Delaware corporation may not engage in # business combination with an interested stockholder
for a period of three ycars after the date such person became an interested stockholder, unless (i) prior to such
date, the board of directors approved either the business combination or the transaction which resulted in the
stockholder becoming an interested stockholder; (i) upon consummation of the transaction which resulted in
such person becoming an interested stockholder, the interested stockholder owned at lcast 85% of the
corporation’s voling stock outstanding at the time the transaction commenced (excluding the number of
outstanding shares owned by (a) persons who arc directors and officers and (b) employees through certain
employee stock plans); or (iii) subsequent to such date, the business combination is approved by the board of
directors and authorized by the affirmative vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding voting stock that 1s not
owned by the interested stockholder. Section 203 defines the term “husiness combination™ 10 encompass i
wide varicty of transactions with or caused by an interested stockholder, including certain types of mergers,
consolidations. asset transfers and other transactions resulting in a financial benefit to the interested
stockholder. “Interested stockholder” means a person who owns 15% or more of the corporation’s outstanding
voting stock, or an affiliate and associate of such person who has owned 15% or more of the corporation’s
voting stock within a three-year period immediately prior o the date of such determination

Listing

The Class A Common Stock offered hercby has been approved for listing on the Nasdagq National
Market under the symbol “LCCL™ subject to official notice of issuance.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for the Class A Common Stock is American Stock Transfer & Trust
Company.

SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE

Prior to the Offering, there has been no established public market for the Class '« Common Stock. After
the consummation of the Offering, substantial sales of Class A Common Stoch could adverscly affect the pnce
of the Class A Common Stock in the public market.

Upon completion of the Offering, 14,114,395 shares of Common Stock will be outstanding (assuming no
exercise of the Over-Allotment Option), none of which will be freely transferable without restniction or further
registration under the Securities Act, other than the §.250,000 shares of Class A Common Stock offered
hereby. As of the completion of the Offering, the Company’s existing stockholders will continue to own an
aggregate of ¥,864,395 shares of Common Stock, assuming no cxcreise of the Over-Allotment Option. All of

65




such shares of Common Stock are deemed to be “restricted secuntics™ as that term s detined in Rule 134,
promulgated under the Secunties Act

In general. under Rule 144, a person (o persons whise shares are aggregated with shares held by another
person) who is not an afliliate of the Company and who has satistied a two-year holding perod may . under
certain circumstances, sell within any three-month period @ number of restncted securities which does not
exceed the greater of one percent of the shares outstanding or the average weekly trading volume dunng the
four calendar wecks preceding the notice of sale required by Rule 144, In addition, Rule 144 permits, under
certuin circumstances, the sale of restncted secuntics, without any quantity limitations, by o person who is not
an atliliate of the Company and who has satistied a three-year holding penod. Under Rule 144, RE Investors,
the Founder Corporation and TC Group may be deemed to have acquired more than two years ago the
Common Stock held by them and accordingly, each may be able 1o commence public sule of any of s
Common Stock pursuant 1o Rule 144 beginning 90 days after the Offering, except as provided by its “lock-up”
apreement with the Underwnters described below. MCI may be able, at the tme of the MO Conversion
Canticipated to be in August 1997). 10 commence public sale purssant o Rule 144 o the Common Steck
received by MCL

The Selling Stockholder, the Founder Corporation, the TC Group and exccutive oflicers and directors of
the Company have agreed not to, directly or indirectly, sell. offer, contract to sell, grant any aption to purchase
or otherwise dispose of any of their shares of Common Stock for a penod of 180 dass from the dite of this
Prospectus, withou! the prior written consent of DI, notwithstanding any Rule 4 exemprion which may be
available 1o such stockholder. Subject 1o such “lock-up™ arrangements, which may be terminated carlier at the
discretion of DL, commencing 180 days after the date of this Prospectus there may be 5864395 restnicted
shares of Common Stock available for sale pursuant to Rule 144, The Company intends to lile one or more
registration statements under the Securities Act with respect to the approvimately  IR93000 shares of
Common Stock avialable upon exercise of options under the Employee Plan, the Emplovee Stock Purchase
Plan and the Directors Plan. Finally, RF Investors has and upon the MCI Conversion MCT will have certan
“demand” rights 1o require the Company 1o register their Class A Common Stock for sale and 1o register
shures on a “piggyback™ basis in connection with most registered public offenings of secunties of the
Company. RF Investors and MC1 are or will be entitled 1o registration nights that would, among other things,
permit cach of REF Investors and MCT to submit three demiand registration reguests to the Company (and one
of the R Investors denands may be exercised by the Carlyle Tnvestors Tollowing o distribution ol shares ol
Common Stock by REF Investors 1o Carlyle — sec “Description of Capital Stock — Certan Relationships
Between the Founder Corporation and Carlyle Investors Affecting the Company™) . Generally, the Company
is required to use “best efforts™ to file a registration statement with the Commission within 0 davs ol
receiving such o request. However, onee a0 vear, the Company may deler o demand repistration reguest tor g
period of up to 90 days 1 the Board of Directors mikes a good Gauth determination that it would be “seriously
detrimental * to the Company 1o file a registration statement within the tme penod otherwise required. See
“Certain Transactions — Registration Rights.”
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L SNDERWRITING

Subject 1o the terms and conditins contaned 10 the Underwnting Agreement (the “Underwnhing
Agreement” ). the Underwriters named telow have severally agreed 1o purchise from the Compars and the
Selling Stockholder, and the Company and the Selling Stochholder have agreed toosell o the Undersniters, an
aggregate of 5,250,000 shares of Class A U oimmen Stock at the Oflenmg pnce per share, less the underwnting
discounts amnd commissions set forth on the cover of this Prospectus. The number of shares of Class A
Common Stock that cach Underwriter has agreed 1o purchase iv set forth opposite 1ts name helow

Ssumber

U nderwriters of Shares

Donaldson, Lufkin & Jenrette Secuntics Comporation 1,472,000
Alex. Brown & Sons Incorporated 1472000
Oppenheimer & Co., Inc R TTLLEL
Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc L1
Cowen & Company ... ... L
Dean Witter Reynolds Inc. (RLLY
Deutsche Morgan Grenfell/C 3 Lawrence Tng 65 ANKD
Dresdnet Klemwort Benson North Amenca 1L, 65,0000
\Go Bdwards & Sons, Inc 65,000
Goldman, Sachs & Co. e . 65 UMD
Mermnll Lyvnch & Co. 65 IHND
1P Maorgan Secunties Ine 65,00K)
5 (NN

Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated
Prudential Secunties Incorporated H5 (0K
Salomon Brothers Ine [RALEY
Suith Bamey Ing 65,000
LIBS Sceunties LLC 65,0600

Anderson & Strudwick Incorporated 11,000
Robert W Bairnd & Co. Incorporated ARNLLY
EVEREN Sccunties Inc ARRLLY
Fahnestock & Co. Ing LRNELT
Gierird Klaoser Mattison & Co, LG 13, (KM}
Linney Montgomenys Scott Ine RERLEA]
fohaston, Lemon & Co. Incorporated 11,000
1 adenburg. Thalmann & Co. Inc 13,000
Lara, Millard & Associates, L 13,0000
Lepe Muson Wood Walker Incorporated 13.000)
MeDonald & Company Securities, Inc ! LRETEY
Ragen Machenzie Incorporated (REELY
Rausclier Pierce Relsnes, Ine ARRELL
Redwine & Company Inc ALY
Rohinson-Humphrey Compuiny, I 1L
Romey & Co LR 13000

Rayan, Boech & o TLINND

Sands Brothers & Co., Lud 100
Unterberg Harns 11000
13,000

Wheat Fiest Secunties Inc

Total 5,250,000

Ihe Underwnting Agreement provides that the obligation of the several Underswniters to purchase amd
b ¢ i

accept delivery of the shares of Class A Common Stock offered hereby are subyect toapproval of certan legal

matters by their counsel and o certain other comditions 1 any shares of Clhiss A Common Stk are
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e b by the Underwnters st to fhe 1 s Apreciment ll such shares tother thap shafes
cavted b the Over- Allotment Opton b must b pur based by the Enderwniters

The Company and the Selling Stockholder hooe agreed tomdemmily the Dnderwriers against certaim
Ianhties. mcluding labilities under the Securities Act, or 1o contnbute to paviments that the Underwnters
ney b reguired to make morespect thereol.

The Underwniters lone advised the Company that thes propose o offer the shares of Class A Commion
Ston ko thie pubthie imtabls st g prce to the pubhic set torth an the cover page ol this Prospectus and o certam
dealers twho oy include the Underwnters) at such pnce. fess o concession not to esceed $I067 per share
Phe Underwoners may allow, and such dealers s re-allos . concession not in excess of S0 per share 1o
any other U nderwnter and certam other deaters Atter the Oflenng, the Otlenmg price and other selling terms
ey b clomeed by the U nderwinters

The Company and the Selling Stockholder ave granted o the Underwnters the Over- Allotment Option
torpurchuse up tooan aggregate of I8TA00 additional shares (412500 shares from the Company and 375000
Juares from the Selling Stockholder) of Class A Common Stock at the Offering price net of underwnting
discounts and commissions, solely 1o cover over-allotments. The Over- Allotment Option s be exercised i
v e within 300 davs atter the date of thus Prospectus. To the extent that the Underwniters everone the
Oner-Allotment Option, cach of the Underwniters will be commutied, subject o certinn conditions, 1o
purcise o number of aption shares proportionate to such Unders nter’s mttal commitment as indicated in the
precedimg table and the Company and Selling Stochbolder will have conmitted to sell such shares 1o the
Uinderwrters 10 parchased, the Undersmters will sell such addinonal 787500 shares on the same lerms on
wlieh the = 2500000 shares are being offerced

The Underwnters have requested that the Selling Stockhholder and the other stockholder and exceutine
othicers amd directons of the Company agree not to olter. sell, transfer, contract 1o sell. prant any option to
parclose or otherwise dispose of any Common Stock o sccunties comvertible mnta o eactuisable an
T I|_|||_-_-;'_||l-||' Fowr € wvpnomnom Stowch o, 1 oany mannen, tansten All o paarbion ol the evonomi weivCyuenives
e ntesd wath the owneeslup ol Common Stock of cause to be filed with the Commssion a registration
statement with respect thereto, for o period of 180 davs atter the date of this Prospecius wathout prior wntten
comsent of DM See “Shares Eligible for Future Sale

Pl € Liss A Common Stock has been approsed toe stmg on the Nasdag Sational Market under the

saantheod 1O sulyect toolhicn] notice of ssuange

Certnn Undersnters and thew afliliates have engaged i oand may i the future engage m commercisl
banking and mvestment banking transactions with the Compans and s athiutes i the ordinan course ol

Migerigss

Phe 1 omderanters have informed the Compamy tiat thes do not expect sales tdiwretionan accounts by
the U nders rers o exceedd five pereent of the total numiber of shares of € Liss A Common Stock oflered by

them

A thie request of the Company, up 1o 320000 shares of Common Stock offered herebs have been
resersedd tor sale o certam idnoaduals, mdluding directors and cimplovees of the Company and of ather entities
with whom directors of the Company are athilated. and members of their Lamhies, The price of such shares to
el persons will be Ottening price. The number of shares avanlable 1o the general public will be reduced to the
entent such persons purchase reserved shares. Any shares not o purchised swill be offered herebs o the
cencral puhlic at the Offening prive

e Copnpaany Do o agreement swotle Me Lack Markell pursiant o which Mo Markell provided certam
comstltmg amd el advison services to the Company, including assistng the Company with sespect o the
Ontenng Parswant to this agreement. Mreo Markell will be entitled to recene a fee canadd v 0 25% of the
procecds recened by the Company and RE Fnvestors trom the Oitening

Proor to the Otfermg, there has been no public marhet tor the shares of Class A Common Stock The
pntal prwe o the pubilic bor the shares of Class & Common Stoch wall be detenmmed by negotation aimong
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the Company. the Selling Stockholder and the Representatives Among the Lactors considered in determumng
the initial price o the public include the histors of and the prospects lor the mdustry in which the Compan
competes. the past and present operations of the Company. the histoncal results of operations of the
Company, the prospects for future carmngs ol the Company, the recent muarket prices of securnties of penerally
comparable companies and the general condition of the securities markets at the time of the Offening

FEGAL MATTERS

Ihe valuhits of the shares of Class A Common Stock offered herebs and certain other legal npatters
reparding the shares of Class A Common Stock will be passed upon for the Compans by Hogan & Hartsan
L. Washington, D C. Certain legal nuters in connection with the OfTering will be passed upon tor the
Underwnters by Paul. Wenss, Rifkind, Wharton & Garnson, Mew York, New York

EAPERTS

Ihe consolidated tinancial statements and Schedule of the Company as of December VL 1995 and
December 11, 1993, and Tor cach of the years in the thiee year period ended December UL 1995, ancluded in
this Prospectus. and in the Registration: Statement have heen included herem and in the Registration
Statement in rolance upon the reports by KPMG Peat AMarwick LLP, independent certiticd  public
accountants, appeanng elsewhere herein and in the Registration Statement, and upon the authonty of sad
firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

The Company has filed with the Commussion in Washington, DO o Registration Statement on Form S-1
under the Securities Act with respect to the shares of €l A Common Stock bemng offered hereby This
Prospectus does not contain all of the imformation set forth the Registration Statement and the exhibits and
whedules 1o the Regstration Statement. For turthier mformation about the Company and the Cliss A
Common Stock offered hereby, reference s made 1o the Repistration Statement and 1o the exlibits and
whedules filed therewith, The statements contamed i this Prospectus with gespeet to the contents ol an
apreement of othier document referred o herem are nol necessanly complete and, in cach imstince, reference
is e 1o copy of such contract or document hiled s exhibit 10 the Registration Statement, cach such
statement being qualiied in all respects by reference o the provisions of the relevant documents. The
Registration Statement, including the exhibits and whedules thereto, may be inspected at the Public
Reference Gacilities of the Commission located ar Room 1024, Judicin Pliza, 450 Fath Street, NW
Washington, 1.0 20549, and at the offices ol the Cammission located at SO0 West Madison Street,
Room 1400, Chicago, Hhinors 60661, and at 7 World Trade Center, Suite 1100, New York, New York 00485,
and copies of such material can be obtuined upon request and pasment of the appropriate fee from the Public
Reference Section of the Commission located at Room 1024, Judiciary Plaza. 450 Fifth Street, NW
Washington, D.C. 20549 The Commission maintains @ World Wide Web site (htip //www see gov) that
contains matern) reparding issuers thut ble elecimmcally with the € ommmssion s Registration Staement

s been s filed el mias Be obiiaoed at such sie
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

I'he Members” Comnnties
LOC, 1. Coand Subsidianes:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated halance sheets of LOC, LL.C. and Subsidines (the
“Company™) as of December 31, 1994 and 1995, and the related consohidated statements ol operations,
members” capital, and cash flows as of and for each of the years in the three year penod cnded December 31,
1995, These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsihility is 10 express an opinion on these consolidated hnancial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to oblain reasonable assurance about whether the linancial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on i test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes cnsessing the
accounting prnciples used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the uverall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion. the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all matenal
respects. the financial position of LCC, L.L.C. and Subsidiarics as of December 31, 1994 and 15, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three year penod  ended
December 31, 1995 1n corformity with generally accepted accounting principles

KPMG PEAT MARWICK LLIP
Woshington, 120

March 15, 1996, except for note 19
which s as of May 17, 1990




1.0C, 1.1.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
Years ended December 31, 1993, 1994, and 1995
and six months ended June 30, 1995 and 1996
(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues;
Service revenues
Product revenues

Total revenues .. ..o ains

Cost of revenues:
Cost of service revenues
Cost ol product revenues ..

Total cost of revenues.

Gross profit . ..
Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Non-cash compensation (note 13)
Depreciation and amortization . .
Tuotal operating expenses

Operating mcome

Other income (expensc):
Interes! INCOME . ..o vvervnnnn-
Interest expense. .. .. ...
Other ..........

Total other income (expense)

Income before income taxes .
Provision for income taxes {noie 9) .

Netincome .. ..........

Pro forma income data (unaudited) (note 3):
Income before income laxes .
Pro forma provision for income taxes (note ¥)

Pro forma net income (unaudited )
Pro forma net incame per share (unaudited):

Weighted average number of common shares and
common share equivalents (unaudited)

Sin mont b
endied
.I_nm' L 1R
L S (. SN . I .o S ...
(1 nawdited)

$30,712  $41,063  Sed0l6  $29.249  SIU2NI
29,595 4992 40445 17311 21083
60307 76055 104461 46560 60.164
21,087 M) IHS 45,682 2140 UL
16,026 21,299 25455 11,550 14719
37.1113 50,484 71137 32981 40,822
23194 25571 11,3124 13,879 19542
ERE LG 4987 4K 29y L
5,799 K802 10,108 4977 3,965
— 5.255 4,646 2.372 1,599

1. 53K 2.020 Iy 1.381 2522
11,7513 19,044 24.27hH [N FGRES 15,127
41 _6S07 9048 1945 4418
243 496 6H25 LK) 112
(97) (T17)  (28I1K) (103 (1L6l7)
(231) 721 1,027 _19s 1.670
_(85) __ SO0 (L16o) _ (445) V7S
11.126 7.007 7,882 1,500 4.790)
X9 .07 Y142 75K 1,764
$10.497 § 4970 $ 4740 § 741 S 1ol
$ 7.8¥2 § 479

3183 1916

§ 4,729 2 RT4

3 1 g 21

15,57 18,879

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidhated imancaal statements
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LOC, 110, ASD SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BATANCE SHEETS

December 31, 1994 and 1995 und June M), 19906

{In thousands)

Assels

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents (note 4)

Short-term mvestments ... ... ...

Receivables, net of allowance for dnuhtl’ul accounts of $2,7496,
$31.131, and $4.275 at December 31, 1994 and 1995,
and June 30, 1996, respectively:

Trade accounts receivable .. .

Due from related parties and athliates (notes S and 8
Notes receivable from affiliate (note %)

Unbilled receivables (note 3)

Inventory (notc 6} .

Prepand expenses .u'ul nlhu currenl asscls

Fistal current assels L,

Property and equipment, net (note 7). .. .

Saftware development costs, net of accumulated amortuzation of $151,
$1.055, and ST.ROT at December 31, 1994 and 1995 and June 30,
1996, respectively

Nuoles recewvable inote §49) .

Investments 1n joint ventures (note X}

Other assets (note 19) ... . .

Liabilities and Members' Capital

Current halilines

Note payable (notes 10 and 20)

Accounts payable . .. ..

Accrued expenses (note 13)

Defer =d revenue

Income taxes payable (note %)

Due 1o related parties and affilbates (notes 2 and 5)

Other current liahilities . . .

Touil current labilines .. ... .

Convertble subordimated debt (note 11}

Obligations under Incentive Plans, net of current portion (note 1 3)
Other habilities. . ... ..

Total liabthities . . o

Commtments and contingencies (notes 12 T4 T amld 15)
Mombers” capital

The accompanyiig notes are an integral part of the consolidated tinancial statements
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ShA
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4K, 480

et

$ 0571
T8

LT
RUTET
1,382
[
4,040

LLY

s.7

5,440

1,748

14001
146
Sn2.041

S10.000
2170
1,137
11T
fhot]2
71
Xy
11,658
MOMMD
K623
4

Y Tan

(RS B 1]
02041

June M),
1900

(U naudited)

$ 540
T

20457
3422
1.398
9,594
5,583
1.007

ﬁh'r' |

5,340

4,450
s, 650)
2057
5,427
LR0,6K1

20,0600
4,775
12,862
1,064
1,700
137
1,230
49774
200,000
12441
_600
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LOC, 1.1.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years ended December 31, 1993, 1994, and 1995
and six months ended June 30, 1995 and 1990

(In thousands, except per share data)

Revenues:
Service revenues
Product revenues

Total revenues

Cost ol revenues:
Cost of service revenues
Cost of product revenues .

Total cost of revenues.

Ciross profit

Operating expenses:
Sales and marketing
General and admimistralive .

Non-cash compensation (note 13) . ..

Depreciation and amortization. . .
Total operating expenses
Operating income
Other income (expense):

Interest income . ..

Interest expensc.
{Mher

Total other icame (expensc)

Income belore income taxes .
Provision for income laxes (note 9)

Nel income

PPro forma inoome data (unaudited) (note 3):
Income before income taxes . ... ...

Pro forma provision for income taxc

Pro forma net income (unaudited )

s (nole 9)

PPro forma net mcome per share (unaudited):

Weighted average number of common shares and

common share equivalents (unaudited): |

Siv monihs
ended
June W,
LI | NN R . B ...
i1 naudited )
10712 $41,063  $64.016  $29.24%  $39.2K]
29.595 14992 40,445 17.311 21081
60,307 76,055 104,461 46,560 60 ind
1087 29,188 45,082 21,431 o103
16,026 21,299 25455 11,850 14719
17113 S0.484 71137 LRGSR [,
23094 15,57 13304 13,579 19,542
4,146 4987 SE 294 041
5.799 K.N02 10, 10K 4,977 S5
3.255 4,646 2.372 3.5
| K1K 2020 L 1. 351 28502
LY 19064 24276 1163 15127
1AL 6507 9048 1945 4418
243 491 Hh2s (K| 142
{(97) (717) (2815 (LUd) o heldTy
1280 T2 1.027 9% I.670
(B3] SO0 (1,166) (44%) 7%
11,326 7.007 T.8R82 1,500 4,790
X219 1037 Li42 T5% 1,764
S10497  $ 4470 $ 4740 § 741§ 3021
£ 7.KH2 £ 4.7
(T 1900
L4729 2874
< in LY 2
]a_u'}l; 1&}‘?&]

The sccompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated hinancial statements
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LOC, 1.0 AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOTIDATED STATEMENTS OF AMEMBERS CAPLTAL
Yeurs ended December 31, 1993, 1994, and 1995
and six months ended June 3, 1996
(In thousands)

St
Additional reveivabil
{ simmon paid - in Hetained Members”  from member
s h capital carnings capital (noe §) lors

Balances at December 31, 19492 4 v 4 710§ W8 < 5
I vademds pond { T05K)
MUl I 497
Balanices ot December 31, 1993 1A T 12,1840
Mot assets retnned by LOC, Incorporated

by Telcom Ventures upaon s loriation

(nole 2) . (13 i1} 4.23%) 14
Caprtal contnbuted o LCC, LLC Iy

Peleom Yentures upon s lormatwon, nct

(note 1) (6,450 Lty " H) I
Prividends pad 149,265 ) (N2
Net income (note 2) AR 6,572 Bl
C umulative foreign curreney translation

aalpustmient {4 (LR
Hualances at December 3, 1994 | 33N (RAR
I sian to member (note 5) (AR (9 AR
Dividends puad TR AT R
Nl inuoneg 4,730 4,740
Cumplative foregen curieney trnmslation

adjustment My iy
Balances at December 31, 1995 W1 3K IR [RER Y
Loan to member funaudined) 14,754 14,7541
Net income (unaudited ) Lzl Lanll
Cumulatine Torelpn currenoy translation

aidiustment funawdied) (18T} 115874
Halances at June 30, 1996 (unaudited) % $ s & 120 Sl S 2

Fhe accompanying mes are an integral part ol the consolulated tinancial statemenls
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LOC, 1.L.C. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years ended December V1, 1993, 1994, and 1995
and six months ended June M, 1995 and 1996

{In thousands)

1991
Cash Mows from operating acthivities
Nel income . £ 10497
Midpastments to recondle net income o net cash (used
Wil ;m-\hlnl by oiperitimg activitics
Preprecumon and amartization 1.KIK
Prowasion tor doubtiul accounts sS40
Loss (amcomie ) TEom imvestingnis i joint ventures,
net . . LS i
Cran on dhaposition of joint venture. net .
Clhanges i operating assels and habilities
Prade, uniabled, and other recevahles (1795%)
Accounts payabile and acerued expenses } 522
Insventon (955)
Uhher carrent assets and liabihities 11652
Onhwer noncorrent assets and Taihbes (RN
et cash Gised g provided by opecating activities (4.21%)
Cush lows from investing activities:
Decrease (increase ) i short-tenn investiments, net 21
Mrchases of properts and equipment (1ER2)
Puire bose o mvestient hehd as agent lor athilane (15250
Tnerease e capibalreed soltware
Investient m jomn ventures (24
Lsstnee of notes recevable from uncombined atiliate 130N
Proweeds Trom sale of point venture
by N
Mot vashi fused i) provided by anvesting activaties CLTRAy
sl s Trom imanang activilics
Decrease i outstanding checks 1in excess of hank
luilinges [LLL)
Horrovw g under hine of credit/ note e 30y
Poowvedds tromn subssrdinated deiw
Dustnibstusns and boans 1o member
Pasmients of dividends {7,658}
Net cash prescuded by fosed i) financing activinies 21.HS5
St pdewrease b omerease i cashoand cash egun alents {140y
Cuisle amad cash eguinadents a0 begmmmg of pernsd YAt
Cash and cash equividents at end ol period $ Wi
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow informition
Cash pand during the sear tor
Iitere st 5 LA
Tcanine taves s

1wy

$ 4970

2o
206

(METN]

1%.4511)
Lol
(2.245)
LUK?
1073

KNI

(K4
{241

P13y
115

{504 )

RITET T
(BB
19285
% kS
L)
LN 1

Sk dnn

$ 4740

LR ]

1
ho.

[RGB ]

(12 2y
N
1177)
4077
4172

4187

1325)

(4222

[ R (V]
i sty

{7.774)

RN ]
P4, 500))

)

(B LA
(R AR LY
[ O

LR

¥ 17y

s

s

S

5

Siv munths
ended
June W),
1ms | #0e
il naudited )
742 % 102
1,941 T
MM 1.5R%
(RERT] (THA)
(5140
(4.2 )
P70 4.0
{35) [hid)
\T5 (R
TORT [ REART
(R I W Nt
(dnd ) ]
(2.m2) (1437
Y 1727
(2500 1T87)
[ 1]
1,500
440 08262
ALY ILIELEL
iP5 vy sl 7% )
LRI
T L LD S 240
R LLE RhY [RAE ]
[ LA 5Tl
suUld & sS4
T % 6TH
o Isin

The accompansing notes are an integral part of the consohdiated inancil statements
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LOC 1.01.C, AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 1993, 1994 and 1995
and six months ended June 30, 1995 and 1996

(1) Description of Operations

The Company is a leading provider ol integrated services and products relating 1o the design and
engincering of wircless com munications systems. The services and products provided by the Company are as

follows:

Sﬂ'l'l'ﬂ'.\

Engincering and design services — The Company provides engineening and design services for cellular
phone system operators, personal communication syslem (PCS) operators and other wireless communica-
tion system providers. These services arc predominately provided on a time-and-matenal or fixed-pnce
contract basis.

Program management services — The Company provides program management services related 1o the
build-out of wireless communications systems

Products
Sofiware products — The Company develops and markets proprictary software and data, which
support the design and operation of wireless communications systems.

Hardware products — The Company designs, assembles and sells ficld measurement equipment used
in the implementation, testing and muintenance of wircless communications systems

The Company operates in a highly competitive environment subject to rapid technological change and
emergence of new technologies. Future revenues are dependent upon the re-engineenng of existing wircless
communications systems, introduction of existing wircless technologies into new markets, the entrance of new
wireless providers into existing markets and the introduction of new technologies. Although the Company
believes that its services and products are transferable to emerging technologies, rapid changes in technology

could have an adverse financial impact on the Company.

The Company's existing and polential customer hase is diverse and includes start-up companics and
foreign enterprises. Although the Company believes that the diversity of its customer base minimizes the nsk
of incurring material losses due 1o concentrations of credit risk, it may be exposed to a declining customer base
in periods of market downturms, severe competition, or international developments

(2)  “ormation of Limited Liability Company

LCC, L.1..C. is the successor to the husiness formerly conducted by LCC, Incorporated and certiain of 1ts
affiliztes. The transactions pursuant fo which 1 CC, 11.C was formed are described below.

On January 3, 1994, LCC, Incorporated and certain of its afliliates, Telcom Solutions, Incorporated.
LCC International Corporation, and Eurofon, Incorporated (herein collectively referred to as LCC, Incorpao-
rated and affilistes) and their sharcholders consummated a transaction pursuant (o which certain athiliates of
The Carlyle Group acquired a 25.0 pereent interest in Telcom Ventures, 1.1 C. (Telcon Ventures), a newly
formed Hmated liabeity company for SR 00,00,

Upon the consummation of this transaction, substantially all the assets aud liabilities of LCC,
Incorporated and affiliates were transferred 1o Telcom Ventures at their carrying value, LCC, Incorporated
aling $4.317,000, which consisted of certain related party notes receivable,

and afliliates retained assets 1ol
20,0 percent limited partnership interest in Eurofon, Incorpo-

investments in certuin joint venlures, and a
rated & Co. KGo(ERG)
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LCC, L., AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LOC, LLC, o Delaware limited lability company, was formed on Junuars 4 1994 a5 the successor
entity o LOC, Incorporated and afliliates. In comunction with the formation of LOC, L LC. Telcom
Ventures made a capital contnbution of $16.690.000 10 LCC, L 1LC i exchange Tor 0 990 percent mterest in
1LOC, LLC Teleom Ventures' capital contribution comsisted of $6.35 1,000 of the net assets and labilities
tormerly emplwed by LOCC, Incorporated and allibiates, which were transferred to LCC, LL.C. at their
carrving values, and $10,339,000 of the Carlyle Group's contnibution to Telcom Ventures Upon the formation
of LCC, LLC., Telcom Ventures retained an investment in Wireless Ventures of Brazil, Inc. totaling
$15.253,000 which had been held by LCC, Incorporated and affiliates on behall of its shurcholders and the
Carlvle Group as of December 31, 1993,

In connection with such transactions, i total of S1,602.000 was required to be paid 1o certiain employvees
LCC, Incorporated recorded this amount as an expense in 1994 prior to the formation of LCC, LL.C This
lability was transferred to LCC, L.L.C. upon tts formation. At December 310 1994, the remainmg unpand
amounts associaled with the termination and cancellation of the Plan of $1,0000000 s mcluded i due 1o
related parties and aflihates within the accompanying consolidated balince sheet. Such amount was pad in
1905

(3) Summan of Significant Accounting Policies
Priaciples of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and 1
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been chnnated m consolidation,

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents include all highly hguid investments purchased with onginal matuntics of three months
or less.

Shorr-tevm Tnvestments

Short-term investments consist of certificates of depositand other highly hyuid investments with nuitunny
dates of more than three months from the date of acquisition. Investments are carried wt cost plus acerued
interest which approximates their market value

Concentration of Credir Rish

Financial instruments that potentially expose the Company 1o concentration of credit nish consial
prinuirily of trade receivables. The Company sells its services and products plobally. Generally, the © ompany
does not require collderal or other securty to support customen recenvahles The Company perboms ongomg
credit evaluanons ol its customers” imancial condition and maintais reserves for potential credit losses. The
Company had the following significant concentrations of trude receivables from customers located cutside the
United States ot December 31, 1994 and [995:

19g LA

Ul thoasands )
Latin Amenca o ials LTy SL049  $5.293%
Lurope . e 4,502 La70
Middle Last e AR R AR X719 1,550

Asia Pacihic DM S fhdd




LOC 1.0 AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Inventory

Inventory. net of allowance for absolete and slow moving Ny entury, consits of pants amd accessones or
ficld measurement and test equipment and s stated at the Jower ol i, determined on an average cost basis,
ar nuirket value

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. less an allowance for deprecration. Replacements and major
improvements are capitalized: maintenance and repairs are charged 10 expense as incurred

Depreciation is calculated using the straght-line method over the estimuted uselul lives of the assets
which range from three to seven years. The costs of leaschold improvements are capitidized and amortized
using the struight-line method over the shorter of their useful lives or the terms of the respectine leases

Research and Development Expenditures

Fhe Company capitilizes software development costs, prncipally wages and contractor fees, when
icurred. after establishing the commercial and technological feasibility of the product. These costs are
amortized using the greater of the ratio of current product revenue o total current and anncipated product
revenue or the straight-line method over the software’s estimated evonomic life. penerally ten to forty-cight
months. During 1993, 1994, and 1995 the company recognized software amortization costs of approximately
SO, $1 31,000 and $927,000, respectively.

The Company penodically performs an eviluation of the nel realizable value of ats capitalized soltware
development costs. This evaluation requires considerable judpment by oumagement with respect to certan
external Gactors including, but not linted 1o, anticipated Tutute revenues, estimaied product ¢conomic hife,
amd changes i technology. No capitahized soltware development costy were wrillen ofl i 1993 or 1994
Approvinately $T30,000 of software develupment costs were witten ofl in 1995

Al other research and development expenditures are expensed n the pernnd incurred  The amount ol
other research and deselopment costs was $SS12.000, S477.000 and SATOANND 1993 1994 and 1995,

respecinely

Investments in Joint Ventures

The Comnany uses the equity method of accounting for s nvestinents i, advanues toamd the carmings
and Jusses of ps point ventures

Revenue Kecognition

The Company™s principal sources ol revenue are engincenng andd desipn services, program management
services. sales of field measurement and testing cqpupmient and softwace hoense agrecments The €ompany
recognizes revenue from fong-term ined prive contiacts using the percentape-ol-completion methsd, hased on
iy idual contract conts incurred 10 date compared with twotal estimated contract costs. Antiapated contract
lusses are recognized as soon s they become known and estimable. The Company recogmizes revenue from
software licenses cither @t the time the software is dehvered and accepted or ratably over the vontract term
depending on the nature of the heense arrangement Revenue on sales of freld measurement and testing
cquipment is recognized at the time the merchandise 1s shipped. Revenue from consulting and other soltware
related semvices s recopnized as such services are rendered. Revenue from post contract customer support
(maintenance ) agreements as recogmized ratably over the perid durine which the servies e o b




LOC, L1, AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

performed. Revenue camed hut not vet billed v reflected as unbilled receables an the accompanying
consobidated balance sheets. The Company expects substantially all unialled receivables to be hilled and
collected n one year

Income Taxes

As a hmited labiliy company, the Company s not directly subject to US Tederal income Lines
Instead, the members are responsible for Federal income taxes on their proportionate share of taxable income
Members are also entitled to a proportionate share of tux deductions and credits

Generally, the Company is not subject to US. state and local income tanes as the majonty ol stites
recognize the flow-through nature of a limited hability company. This practice follows the LIS Federal ta
rules and, accordingly, the members are taxed by the states based upon their allocated taxable income or hoss
States which do not recognize the hmited hability company as a flow-through entity require the Company 1o
be taxed as if 1t were a corporation. Where this is the case. the Company has established & provision for these

ncome taxes.

Certain of the Company’s international operations are subject o locul imcome tavation. ( urrently, the
Company is subject to tananon on income from certan operations in Europe, Latin Amenica, the Far East, the
Middle East and the non-ULS. portions of North Amenca where the Company has established branch offices
or has performed significant services that constitute 4 “"permanent establishment” for tax reporting purposes
Forcign taxes account for a significant portion of the provision for income taxes as reflected in the Company ™
consolidited statements of operations (see note 9). The foreign taxes paid or accrued by the Company
represent u potential credit for the members against their federal income taxes. Where apphcable, these
credits are allocated to the members based upon their proportionate membership interests in the Compiny

Pro Forma Income Data (Unaudited)

In connection with the Company’s planned il pubhic offenng of Cliss A Common Stck, the
Company intends 1o convert to a Subchapter C corporanion under the Internal Revenue € ode of 1986, s
amended (the IRC). Accordingly, the accompanyving pro forma information has been prepared as al the
Company was treated as a Subchapter C corporation for Federal and state income tax purposes from
January 1. 1995,

Pro fornu mcoe per share imformation has been computed by disiding pro forma net income by the pro
torma weighted average number of common shares and common share equivalents outstanding. Common
share equivalents include all outstanding stock options after applying the treasury stock method and the
Company’s and Telcom Ventures' convertible subordinated debt. Commuon stock options granted durning the
12-month per od preceding the date of the Compamy's wmimal public offenng have been mcluded 0 the
calculation of weighted average common shures outstandimg for all penods presented based on o per share

price ol $16

Foreign Currenacy Translation

Ciains amd losses on transtation of the aceounts of the Company’s toreign operations where the loval
currency s the functional currency are accumubiated and included in the cumulative foreign currencs
teanslation adjustment within the accompanying consoliduted statement of members” capital Forergn currency
transaction gains and losses are recognized currently in the consolidited statements of operations

Pervasiveness of Esrimares

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally uccepted account-
ing principles requires management to muke estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts ol
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LOC, 1.1.C. AND SEBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STA TEMENITS
assets and habilities and disclosure of contingent assets and luhilities a1 ihe date of the hinancal stalements

and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses durning the reporting penod. Actual results could difler
from those estimated

U naudited Interim Information

The unaudited interim information for the six months ended June 30, 1995 and 19496, has heen prepared
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principies for interim Binancial atornation and with
instructions 1o Article 10 of Regulation S-X. In the opion of management, such infurmuiton contains all
adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustinents, considered necessary lor a tan presentation o
such periods. The operating results for the six months ended June 30. 1996 are not necessanbyndicative of the
results that may be expected for the year ending December 3L 1996,

Reclassification of Prior-Years' Balances

Prior-vears” halanees have been reclassitied to conlorm with the current-vear presentabion

(4) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Al December 31, cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following

1  ha

tIn thousands)
Cash in banks ... .. - . S 2daus SpAan?
Overmight repurchase apreements T.HON 115K
Short-term commercil paper .. IO At

SIN 468 8657

(5)  Related Party Transactions

During 1994 and 1995, the Company provided engineering services and software prsducts to Telcom
Ventures and arious other companies owned, in part, by Telcom Ventures or ats members. s well as the
Telemate joini venture (see note K). Revenues camned dunng 1994 and 1993 for services and prosducts
provided to these customers were approximately S11.3 nullion and $3.5 milhion, respectively Trade accounts
receivables from these related partics were $5.2 million and $2.2 millon at December 3, L and 199,
respectively. and are included in due from related parties in the accompanying consolidated balunce sheets
Also during calendar 1995, program management services were pros ided 1o the Company by the Kol Jomm
Venture (see note ).

During 1994 and 1995, the € ompuany mude vertam pasients on beball of Telcom Ventures and s
members which consisted primanly of pavroll services. fnnge bencht payments, facility reluto o chuarges,
business insurances and foreign tax payments. At December 31, 1994 and 1995, oulstunding amounts
associated with these payments totaling $568.000 and $311.000, respectively, are included in dae Trom related
parties and afliliates within the accompanying vonsalidated balance sheets

At December 3, 1994, due to related parties and aflilites ncluded certam amounts diie toa member of
Telcom Ventures as well as approximately $1.286.000 due o Telcom Ventures for the “escess working
capital” transferred to the Company upon its formation. as dehined in the agreement exccuted between LOC,
Incorporated and its atfiliates and the Carlyle Group in Januany 1993 {see note 21 These halances were pad
m 199s
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Notes receivahle consists of two promissory notes due from an entity owned approximatels 4 5 pereent by
4 100 percent-owned subsidiary of Telcom Ventures and approsimately 150 percent by a member of Teloom
Ventures. The notes hear ipterest at approsintatels Lo percent and are pavable monthly. Late pavinents are
subject 1o an additional charge of 2.0 percent on the entire unpaid principal balance and any outstanding
interest. All outstanding principal is due in 199 Interest income recorded on the notes was STOL000 for the
year ended December 31, 1995 The Company expects pavment to be made on these notes trom capital
contributions to be made by the sharcholders of this entity duning 1996, including Telcom Ventures and the
member of Telcom Ventures

In May 1995, the Company entered into a revolving promissory note with Telcom Ventures under which
it had advanced $9.382.000 1o Telcom Ventures as of December 31, 1995 The note bears o vanable interest
rate of prime plus 3.0 percent, escalating a1 .25 percent increments at vanous intervals over the term ol the
debt. At December 31, 1995, the note carnied an interest rate of pnme plus 325 percent or 1175 pereent
Outstanding principal together with all accrued interest s due May 30, 2000 The note s reflected as a
reduction of members” capital in the accompanying statements of members” capital

(6) Imentory

At Decembaer V1, P9 and 1995, snventony conststed of the follow g

(Kol 1S

iIn thowsands)
Ficld measurement and test equipment L5608 S4.450
Parts and avcessones 1,004 sl

4,572 5,290
Less — reserve for obsolete and slow moving inventon —- k2]

$4.572 S04

{7)  Property and Equipment

Propenty and equipment at December 31, 1994 and 1995, consisted of the following

1oy 1ok

(I thousands
Computer equipment .. .. ; $ 740§ 9760
Furniture and oflice equipment 2,595 3.145
Purchased computer software LU 2074
I caschold improvements [l (METR)

Veliuoles vy 21y

1 2.0M5 16317
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization KOT6 10877
CAtY 5 5440

Beginning in 1995, purchased computer software mcludes the external coste ol the conversion of the
Company’s financial information system
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(51 Divestments in Juint Y entures

The Company’s investments in joint ventures at December 31, 1994 and 1995, consisted of the following

fwag 1995
{In thousands)

Telemate S A, .. T TOT L S102  § Rhb

Kol Telecommunications, L.L.C : 3 RA L 517

$121 $1.403

The Company had a 50.0 percent interest in Telemate S.A {Telenmute ). which provides consulting
services in connection with the implementation and operation of mobile communications sysicims i1 certun
countries in Europe. Asia and Latin America. The Company provides design engmeenng services and softwaie
products to Telemate. Revenues carned related to these services were approsimately $1,900,000, $4,4 20,000,
and $1.797.000 in 1993, 1994, and 1995, respectively. Due trom related parties and atliliates included
approxcamatedy $1.220.000 and £554.000. due from Telemate for the years ended December 31, 1994 and 1995,
respectively.

The unaudited condensed financial statements of Telemate s of and for the years ended December 31,
P, 19, 1995, were as Tollows:

1993 1994 L]
I thousunds)

Condensed Statements of Operations

Revenues g ECT SIR2L S1HL623  SI6S67
Cost and expenses _I_E-_H .“:!r’j _l_."_;]ff
Net (loss) meome $ (56) & 45 $ 1312

Condensed Balance Sheetrs

Current assels Linll % o ux § 820

MNoncurrent assels Tds 2916 AT
Current habihties 2517 5.261 RIREE
Noncurrent liabilities R 153 LI
Stockholders™ equity . . . 1681 4,053 5,893

The Company sold its investment in Telemate i Januan 14996 (see note 19)

The Company’s investments also include i 33 percentinterest in Koll Telecommunications Services,
LL.C (Koli . which was formed in October 1994 wath twoe other unrelated entties. Kol provides site
acquisition and conslruction management services 1o aperiton af wireless conpmumications svstems. The
Company’s interest in Koll was recewved in exchange Tor o cashmvestment of $150000. Dunng 1995, the
Compamy contnbuted an additional S US0.000 Operating costs and expenses of the Company include services
provaded by Kol m the amount of $537.000 in 1995,
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The unaudited condensed financial statements of Kall as of and for the three months ended Decem
her 31, 1994 and the 12 months ended December 31, 1995 were as follows:
1974 s
{ln thousands )

Condensed Statements of Operations

Revenues . ...... T $ 160 S31017
Cost and eXPenses ... ...t iiiiieiin i e s e 206 2908
MNet (loss) InCome. ... vrnenerrnensess T e $156) § 109
Condensed Balance Sheet

CUTENT ASSEIS . oottt et e et i e e e ie e a e R T . Y 2 |
MNONCUITENL BSSELE ..\ iie i v aae s i in s s ranas it R 44 K2
Cument Babilities . . ... ..o iviirrrrrrcrrsscsaannnnsssmannesnns 97 726
Stockholders' equity ... e 44 1097

(9) Income Taxes

LS. state and local income tax expense is generated from activities conducted in the several states that
do not recognize the limited liability company as a flow-through entity and, therefore, require the Company 1o
be taxed as if it were a corporation. Foreign income tax expense is generated from business conducted
countries where the Company has established brunch oflices or has performed sigmibeant services thal
constitute a “permanent establishment”™ for tax reporting purposcs.

Income tax expense consists of the following:

LN TR L0
(In thousands )

1S, — state and local . ... .. [ s $§ — § 345
MNorth Amernica ; 105 2
Latin Amenea ... P 617 K3l
EURORE ovimisinies susosias G Ta TR TR . . 5K4 E TR 451
Middle East voviaon s pgn it Doinaiia s : 87 IX 310
Asia Pacithe ... . ... .. : . i 129 324 1,155
Foreign . R S . R 2.017 297
Tatal <owemnumns mvv S0 $2.017 $i142

The unaudited pro forma provisions for income taxes presented in the consolidated statements ol
operations for the year ended December M, 1995 and the intenm penod ended June 30, 1996, represents an
estimate of the taxes that would have been recorded had the Company been a Subchapter © corporation as ol
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January 1, 1995, The unaudited pro forma provisions for income taxes for the year ended December A1 1995,
and the three month period ended June 30, 1996, consist of the following:

December 31, June M1,
199 1

(1 thousands )

Pro forma (unaudited ):

Federtl ..o ooennn . . S T $ 541
State i . 0l {TH
Eorcigh s ooeaniss AR 1007
Total pro forma ... ... ... $3.153 14916

A reconciliation of the statutory Federal income tax rate and the unaudited pro forma cllective rate lur
the vear ended December 31, 1995, and the siv month period ended June 30, 1996, lollows.

December M, June M),
1995 1990
ro rqu_ _l'rn !ﬂm;_t

i1 naudited ) (1 maudited)

Statutony federal income tax rate S0 LR
LiTect of:
State and local income taxes, net of federal tax benein 5.0 5.0
5] 1 P ERroe 210 210
Tax credits, net Eh (23.0) (2
I flective Lax rate STRNTE A0irs

(10) Note Payvable

In May 1995, the Company entered into a $15.000,000 financing Licility with Nomura Holding Amenca
Ine. At December 1, 1995, $10,000.000 had been drawn agaimst the facility. At cach siv-month anniversan
of issuance while the facility remains outstanding, the onginal mterest rate of prinic plus 10 percent will
increase by 25 percent. At December 31, 1995, the facility carned an interest rate of prime plus 3.25 percent
or 11.75 percent. All unpaid principal and interest due under the faciliny is payvable no Later than May 30, 1997
The facility was secured by the pledging of substantially all of the € ompany’s assets and Telcom Ventures
w mbership interest an the Company and was puaranteed by Telcom Ventures

Ihe financing facility contained certam covenants restncting addimonal indebledness and pavment ol
dividends. as well as requiring the maintenance of certan hinancial ratios. Al December 31, 1995, the
Company was in violation of certain of these covenants. However, subsequent to year-end, the Nomura Licibiny
was purchased by Chase Manhattan Bank, N A (Chase ) and the abligation 1o Nomuns was satished (see
note 1Y)

(11) Convertible Subordinated Debt

In June 1994, the Company issucd to a third-party investor 3 $20.000.(00 comy crithle Subordinated MNote
Due 2000 (the Subordinated Note). The Subordinated Note bears interest at i rate cqual to the higher ol
6% percent, payable semiannually or an amount which approvimates their retrin had they converted into
membership interest from the date when the Subordinated Note was issued. The entire principal amount ol
the Subordinated Note is due in June 2000, Upon the occurrence of certain specihicd events Gincluding any
merper of the Company with another company or any sale of substantially all of the Company’s assets), the
Subordinated Note will automatically be exchanged for an 8.0 pereent membership interest in the € ompam
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In addition. the investor has the right to exchange the Subordinated Note for an 8.0 percent membenship
miterest in the Company (1) a0 any ime dunng the 45y pernd commencing on the thirnd through hifth
anniversanies of the ssuance of the Subordinated Note, €21 0 the event the Company effects a public offenng.
and (1) upon the occurrence of certain other specificd events. The Company has the nght to exchange the
Subordinated Note for an 8.0 percent membership interest in the Company: (1) in the event the Company
effects i public offering; (2) if the investor does not exchange the Subordinated Note duning the 45-day penod
commencing on the third through fifth anniversaries of the issuance of the Subordinated Note, and (1) upon
the occurrence of certain other specified events

In June 1994, Telcom Ventures issved a $30,000.000 convertible Subordinated Note Due 2000 (the
Telcom Ventures Subordinated Note) to the same investor. Upon the occurrence of certain specificd cvents
{including any merger of the Company with another company or any sale of substantially all of the Company’s
assels ), the Telcom Ventures Subordinated Note will automatically be exchanged for & 120 percent
membership interest in the Company. In addition, the investor has the nght 1o exchange the Telcom Ventures
Subordinated Note for a 12.0 percent membership interest in the Company: (1) at any time duning the 45-day
period commencing on the third through fifth anniversanes of the wsuance of the Telcom Ventures
Subordinated Note: (2) in the event the Company effects a public offenng; and (3) upon the occurrence of
certain other specified events. Telcom Ventures has the nght 1o exchange the Telcom Ventures Subordinated
Note for i 12.0 percznt membership interest in the Company: (1) in the event the Company effects a public
offening; (2) if the investor does not exchange the Telcom Ventures Subordinated Note dunng the 45-day
period commencing on the third through Bifth annversanes ol the ssuance ol the Telcom Ventures
Subordimited Note: and §3) upon the occurrence of certain other speciied events. The Company has fully and
unconditionally guaranteed the obligations of Telcom Ventures under the Teleom Ventures Subordinated
Nule,

(12) Heanlth And Retirement Plans

The Company has a defined contribution profit shanng plan under Section 401(k) of the IRC that
provides for voluntary employee contnbutions of 1.0 10 150 percent of compensation for substantially all
employees. The Company makes a matching contribution of S0.0 percent of an employee’s contnbution up to
6.0 percent of each employee’s compensation. Company contributions and other expenses associated with the
plan were approximately $194,000, $353,000, and S419.000 for the years ended December 31, 1993, 1994, and
1995, respectively.

The Company is self-insured for group health, e, and short and long-term disability clanms below
verbuin specified limits,

(13)  Incentive Plans
Phantom Membership Plan

In April 1994, the Company adopted the Phantom Membership Plan (the Phantom Membership Plan)
Under the Phantom Membership PLin, the Members Committee 1s authonzed to grant awards (Phantom
Membership Awards) o thuse employees of the Company whose responsibilities and decisions, in the
Members Committee’s opinion, affect the long-term sustwined growth and profitabulity of the Company

Each Phantom Membership Award entitles the recipient thereol ta receive, no later tho May 1 of each
vear, an annual award based on a specified percentage of the Company ‘s net earnings for the preceding fiscal
vear. The Phantom Membership Plan also includes o fong-term award Under the lonp term award, once a
Phantom Membership Award is fully vested, the recipient his the right (o require ihe Company o purchase,
and the Company has the right to require such reciprent o sello all or any portion of the recipient’s Phantom
Membership Award. The purchase price is equal 1o the speciied percentage relating to such Phantom
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multiplied by the pormon of the Phantom Mcmbership Award being purchased.

-current “deemed Lat arket value™ of the Company or, for certann cmployees, the Lo
“deemed far murket

Membership Awand

multiphied by the then
market value as determined by apprasal. As detined in the Phantom Membership "lan,

value™ 1 equal 1o 14 times the Company’s income before interest and tanes for the calendar year preceding the
date of the calculation. In general, Phantom Membership Awards become tully vested on ether the third o
fifth anniversary of the grant thereof. as determined by the reciprent an his or her discrenon at the time his or

her Phantom Membership Award s granted

offering of the Company’s sccurities under the Secunties Act of 1933, cach Tully
vested vutstanding Phantom Membership Award i automatically converted into 4 number of shares of the
Company's capital stock equal to the specified percentage relating to such Phantom Membership Award,
multiplicd by the total number of shares of the Company’s capital stock 10 be issucd and outstanding
immediately following the closing of the public offering. In the event of the acquisition by thind party ol
75 percent or more of the outstanding membership interest or assets of the Company. cach fully vested and
outstanding Phantom Membership Award is converted into 4 membership interest equal 1o the specilied
percentage relating to such Phantom Membership Awand, multiphied by the total membership interests to be
issued and outstanding immediately prior to the closmg of the transachion (assunitng convenion in full of 4ll
Phantom Membership Awards which are then outstanding and fully vested )

In the event ol a public

As of Pecember 3, 1994 and 1995, 44 and 40 emplovees, respectively, hadd been granted Phantom
Membership Awards, and the aggregate Applicable Percentage of all outstunding Phantom Membership
Awards was 6.5 percent and 6.4 percent, tespectively Compensation expense related 1o the annual award
feature of the Phantom Membership Plan was $530,000 and $608.000 for 1994 and 1995, respectively, the
liability for which is included in accrued expenses in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Non-cash
compensation related 1o the long-term award feature of the Phantom Membership Plan was $3.255.000 and
£4.646,000 for 1994 and 1995, respectively, the habality Tor which s included m obligation under incentive
plans in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets. Prior to 1995, certan Awards under the Phantom
Membership Plan were recognized over the esimated service period of the emplosee. The Company hus
changed the method of accounting for the awards to reflect compensation expense over the vesting perisd to
better match the expense with the period carned hy the emplovee All peniods presented have been resined 1o
reflect this change 10 accounting.

Incentive Compensation 'Man

In September 1994, the Company adopted an Incentive Compemsation Plan (the Incentne Compensa
wom Plan). Under the Incentive Compensation Plan, the Members Commitice is authonzed Lo grant awards
(Incentive Awards) 10 those employees of the Company whose responsihilities and decisions, i the Mem
Committee’s opinion. affect the long-term sustaned growth and profitability of the Company

hers

Fach Incentive Award entitles the recipient thereof 1o recerve i cash pavment on the date specitied i the
corresponding award agreement. To date. all Incentive Awards pranted under the Incentive Compensatica
Plan are payable on the third anniversary of the grant thereof At the decrenon of the Members Commitice
participating emplovees may horrow g portion of the total amount of their Incentive Awards

As ol December 31, 1994 and 1995, 20 and 60 employees. respectively, had been prantea Incentive
Awards gnder the Incentive Compensation Plan. Compensation eapense accrued m connection with the
distribution of the value of vested Incentive Awards was $KT.000 and S635.000 for the vears ended
December 31, 1994 and 1995, respectivels, which has been mcluded in obhgations under incentive plans, net
of current portion in the accompanying consolidated halance sheets.
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(14)  lease Commitments

The Company leases office facilities and certain equipment, prncipally n the Ulmited States, under
operating leases eapiring on various dates over the next eight years. The lease agreements include renewal
options and provisions for rental escalations hased on the Consumer Pace Indes and reguire the Company o
pay for executony costs such as taxes and insurance. The lease agreements also allow the Company 1o elect an
carly out provision by giving notice and paying certain lease lernunation penaltics

Benefits associated with o rent abatement penod and certin Tease mcentives Tor othee facilities are
reflected ratably over the period of the lease. The total deferred rent benetit was approvimately $1.E70.000 and
$1,434,000 at December 31, 1994 and 1995, respectively

In November 1995, the Company gave notice of early lease termination to one ol s landlonds and
recorded the lease termination penalty thereon in s calendar 1995, inancial statements In May 1996, the
Company entered into 10-year and S-year faciliny lease agreements effective March 1, 1997 and July 1, 19497,
respectively. Future minimum rental payments related o these leises, as well us the termination pasvments for
existing leases. are included in the balances below (see note 19)

Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelable operating leases. excluding evceutony costs. are

s Tollows

iln _llum\ndnl

19, . & d.68R
[ L : e pan LN IR
PO i s T N Lo
1wo9 AT FaaniaT e L2
JOHM) - : ! . L2250
Fhercalier g ot

3.2

Rent expense under operating leises was approximuately $2L0I8.000, $2.76 1000, and $3.5345,000 Tor the
vears ended December 31, 1993, 1994, and 1995, respecinely

(15)  Contingencies

The Company is party to vanous legal proceedings and clams mcdental o their husiness SManagement
does not believe that these matters will have o matenal adverse etfect on the consolidited results of nperatians
or financil coadition of the Company

The Company has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the oblipations of Teleom Ventures under the
Telcom Ventures Subordinated Note (see note 1)

(16)  Geographic Data

The Company mantans subsidianes in France and Germany Fhese entities prntantly opetate i the
country in which they ure domiciled. The remaining sales to Lurope and prancipally all of the export sales to
Latin Amenca, Middle East-Africa and Asia-Pacific are U S services and products
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Export sales by geographic region are as follows

0y e s
(In thousands)

North Amenica ..o 0. : 0% 231 0§ L2eD S 3,330
Latin Amernica, ... .. .. : . 5.229 5,990 ¥,200
Europe | N KK e A I 23,605 17400 9,290
Middle l ast- \fnc..l T T o 667 K50 1,310
Astia-Pacitic : Wheli X __5_,_"):._' 5.570 _}_h'..{:“.'l_:
Total export sales . B R $34.834 S'-l ll'”l $40.860

Revenues generated from one customer were approximately $6.6 million, $14.0 million and $14.7 million,
or 11.0 percent, 18.0 percent, and 14.0 percent of total revenues for 1993, 1994, and 1995, respectively.

(17 Quarterly Data (Unaudited)

1994

Ist 2nd Y dth
Quarter (uarter Quarter Quarter Full Year
(In thousands)

Revenues ... ... ... e T SI4.880 $15940 $20.710  $24.525 8§ 76,085
Operating INCOME . ... ...t iee e 594 543 QK77 2,493 6,507
Income before income l-!ll:‘- . . 607 513 1,599 2. 2KK 7.007
Nel income P e 186 135 2751 (R 44970
144
st 2nd Aed 4th

Quarter Q!!r_uL Um.rlrr '-’“E'.. Full Year

{In thwundu

Revenues - ... .oveecevaiiia 2 21,140 $25420 825,117 $32764 S104.461
Operating income 1118 %27 1.310 5,793 90K
Income hefore income Lixes : Yy S04 Ka7 5. 4KS 7882
Net income . ; 536 206 AT 1622 4,740

(1%)  Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table presents the carrying amount and estimated fair value of the Company’s financial
istruments in accordance with SEAS Noo 107 “Disclosure about Far Value of Financial Instruments”

1994 1994

Carrving I"-alr o ‘arrving ) Fair
amount value smount value

(Im thowsands)

Assets,
Notes receivable from affiliate ; 22 5 — 5 — $ 1382 5§ 1,382
Noftes receivable from member . s — - 49,382 9,182
I rahilines:
Note payahle SeRaiE : . - ALY 10, (KM
Convertible \ulhlri]anll:d debi N + 200000 LR ML RUKL LY
OIT halance sheet — letters of credit .. ......... . S ; A0 m 41 450

The carrying amounts of financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes
receivable and accounts payable approximated fair value as of December 31, 1994 and 1995, because of the
relatively shon duration of these instruments.
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Notes receivable from member — the carrving v/ e of the notes recevable from member approaiiated
the Lair value as the receivable is treated as a deemes distribution 1o owners

Convertible subordinated debt — the carrving value of the convertible subordinated debt approvimated
foir value as of December 31, 1994 and 1995, bused upon the Company™s borrowing activities and assessment
of current prices offered for similar loans.

Letters of credit — the fair value of letters of credit was estimated based on lees currently charged for
stmilar agreements or the estimated cost 1o terminate or settle the obligations

Financial guarantees are conditional commitments issued by the Company 1o puarantce the payment of
certain liahilities of unconsolidated affiliates. As of December 31, 1994 and 1995, one such guarantee was
outstanding. which wits issucd 10 support a borrowing arrangement (see note 111 The € oImpLany s exposure lor
this puarantee is equal to the contractual amount of the guarantee of $30,000,000 at December 31, 1994 and
1995,

(19} Subsequent Events

In January 1996, the Company sold its 50.0 percent interest in Telemate and granted certin distnbution
rights for the Company’s software and hardware products for $3800.000. Approsinutely $1A00.000 of the
proceeds were received for the Company’s investment in Telemate, resulting i a gain ol approsvamately
SS14.000, which was recogmized by the Company in its calendar 1996 first quarter results. The renvuning
proceeds of $2400,000 were recorded as deferred revenue and are hemng amortized o imcame over the
24 month hie of the distnibution agreement.

In March 1996, the Company adopted an Employee Option Plan for certain hey executives under which
the Members' Commuttee may grant options lor up to an aggregate b pereent interest in the Company The
options were granted in March 1996 4t an exercise prce generally equal o Lur markel value at time of grant
and penerally become exercisable at 20,0 percent o year over a hve-year period Unesercised options penerally
expire len years after issuance

In March 1996, the Nomura Facility (see note 10) was purchised by Chiase. Also in March, additional
draws aggregating S10.0 million were made by the Company, resulting in a total outstanding balance under the
Facilits of $20.0 million. The terms and conditions of the Nomura Facility renvoned intact with the exception
of interest rate which was subsequently revised such that interest on the Joans will accrue at the announved
prime commercial lending rate of Chase plus 25%. The additional $10.0 million draws were used to tund two
investments in customers. One investment consists of loans aggregating $6.5 million. The louns are convertible
into shares of non-voting common stock at the Company’s option, upon the satisfaction of certain conditions
In connection with this investment, the Company obtaned & commutment from the customer 1o purchase
services and products aggregating $65.0 million oser the neat five years. The other imvestment convists ol in
equily i vestment of $5.0 million. In connection with this investment, the Company abtined 4 commitment
from the customer for the purchase of services and products aggregating $55.0 mullion over the neat hive years

In May 1996, the Company entered into 10-vear and S-year Lavility lease agreements cllective March 1,
ot and July 1, 1997, respectively. The lease aprecments conbin reaewal options for up to thice hveaear
pends. The lease agreements also provide for the Company to pay feal cabite Lines and certam other
operating costs of the properties. Lease termination costs associted with the current Lacility leases ol
1.4 million were recorded in the calendar 1995 financial statements. Future lease payments assoctated with
the new lease are included in future minimum rental payvments in note 14

(20)  Refinancing of Note Payable (Unaudited)

In June 1996, the Company entered into s new three year revolving credit and hve year term loan Lacility
with Chase which replaced the March 1996 facility (see note 19) Under the racibity, Chase has eatended
(1) a revolving credit facility in an aggregate principal amount not to exceed the lesser of $12.8 million or
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K0 percent of the Company’s receivables which are deemed “eligible™ as i basis tor ohtaining credit and () &
term loan in the amount of $7.5 million. Interest on the loans will accrue at the Company s election at either
(1) a vanable rate determined with reference 1o the higher of (a) the Federal Funds rate plus 'L of 1 pereent,
and (b) the announced prime lending rate of Chase or (2) a fixed rate determined with reference to the
London Interbank Market. In addition, an interest margin will be added 1o the vanable rite or fined rate Cas
applicable) based on the Compuny’s cash flow leverage ratio, as periodically determined

At June 30, 1996, the Company was in vielation of certain hnancial ratios required to be maintained
under its agreement with Chase. The Company has obtuned 4 watver of such ¢ovenant violations from Chase.
At June 30, 1996, the Company has classificd the note payable as a current liability in the accompanying

consohdated balince sheet,
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GLOSSARY OF TERMS
U hln b aniction” An aucton held by the FCC to award 30 MHz POS hcenses for $1 MTAs The

A-Bblowh auction, held in comjunction with the B-block auction, was concluded in March 1995, and Lcenses
were awarded on June 23 1995

“alphanumeric” — A message or other tvpe of readout contaiming both letters (“alphas™ ) and numbers
{"numencs”). In cellular, “alphanumenc memory dial™ s a special tvpe of dial-from-memon option tha:
displivs both the name of the individual and that individual’s phone number on the cellular phene hance:
The name also can be recalled by using the letters on the phone hevpad. By contrast, standard memon digl
recalls numbers from number-only locations

TAMPST — Advanced Mobile Phone Service. The Ulnited States analog cellular standard

Yanalog” — A method of stonng, processing and transmotting informution through the continuous
varntion ol a signal.

Tuntenna T — A device Tor transimithing and/or receving signals

“Hebloch guetion”™ — An auction held by the FOC o award 30 MHy 1POS licenses for ST MTAs The
B-block auction, held in conpunction with the A-block auction, was concluded in March 1995, and hicenses

were awanded on June 23, 1995,

“have station” — A lixed site with network equipment that is used for RE commumcations <:th mohile
stations, and is part of a cell, or a sector within a cell, and s backhauled o an MTSO or other part ol a cellular
system

“Heonadband PCSN™ — High frequency, neat generation wircless services

“HEAT — Basic Trading Area. A service arca designed by Rand MeNally and adopted by the FCC o
promuote the rapid deplovment and ubiquitous coverage of POS and providers There are 493 HT A~ in the
United States

“Cobloekh auction” — An auction held by the FCC 1o award 30 MELz POS licenses for 493 BTAs w0
citreprencunal businesses having gross revenues of less than $125 mallion in cach of the last two vears and
total assets of less than $500 million. Bidding credits and installment pavient options were granted to small
husinesses having average gross revenues lor the preceding three sears of less than S340 pulhon The € -block
auction was concluded e May 1996 1 icenses have not vet been awanded

COM T Cade Division Multple Aceess A digital wireless transossion technology for use mn cellular
telephone commumications, PCS and other wircless communications svstems, CDMA 1 a spread spectrum
technology ain which calls are assigned o pseudo random code 1o encode digital hit streams. The coded signals
are then transmitted over the air on a frequencs between the end user and o cell site, where they are prowessed
by o base station, CDMA allows more than one wareless user o simultincoushy occupy a single RE hand

el The basic peographine vt of o cellular system

cellulur network ™ — A telephone svstem based on o gnd of “eells™ deploved at 500 MHz Pach cell
contains transmitters, reecivers and antennas, and i connected 1o switchimg pear and control equipment

“celloaphtting” — Adding o cell to overbap voverape of an exishing ste, wlch adds capacits to the aredd
servedd by that existing site

chaanel” — A single path, either RE or vowce, Tor transmitning electneal signals

“CHET - Cellular Telecommumications Industry: Associition. An andustry group ain North Amenca

comprised primarily of cellular telephone serace companies anid, recently, simme 'OS lwense holders
bk actton”  An auction 1o be held Iy the FCC o award 10 Mz PCS licenses for 490 HT As

In March 196, the 1CC proposed rule changes lor the D-block auction, and 1 aal rules have not been

announced. The FOC has stated its intention 1o commence the D-hlock auction v the summer of 1996
O8N — Digital Communications Service. A GSM-based ssstemoan the POS band

“ihertal’ A micthod of stonng. processing and transmtting information through the use of distnct
clectrome or optical pulses that represent the binany digits 0 and T Dl trmsmissiondswatching technolo-
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T o T 1 T T YL 1T RRY JNY PRI TR T T T O AL AT P renresent anfornation, as "L‘I.*'“l'll s the vistiniosly
varahle analog sipnal

“digival prosowoly — Methodologres that serve Lo manage the communication for digital signal transmis
sion. CDOMA Gnd TDMA are examples 4 high level dagital protocols

bk wuerion” — An auction to be held by the FOU w award 10 MiLs POS licenses lor 4493 BT A
In Muarch 1996, the FCC proposed rule changes for the b-blch auchon, and final rules have not been
announced. The FCC has stated its intention o commence the E-hlock auction i the summer of 19

“ESMR T — Enhanced Specialized Mobile Rudio 1 o radio communications system that emplovs digital
technology with o multi-site contiguration that permits frequency reuse but used in the SMR tiequendies,
ulfering enhanced dispatch services to traditional analog SME users

Les Enhanced Total Avcess €ellular System. The European anabige cellular standand

“Feblick auction” — An auction to be held by the FCC 1o award 10 ML PCS hicenses for 493 BT As
Under current rules. the auction would be open only 1o entreprencurial businesses (having gross revenues of
less than $12¢ million in cash in cach of the last two vears and total assets of Jess than $300 pullm g aor
businesses owned by mumonties and/or women. In March 1996, the FCC proposed rule changes Tor the
I -block auction, including making the rules race- and gender-neutral Tinal rules have not been announyved
The FCC has stated its intention to commence the F-block auction in the summer of 1996,

Ot — Federal Communications Commission. The government agency responsible lor regpulating
telecommunications in the United States

“feerieniv” — The number of oyeles per seoomd. measured in herte, of o penodic ascillation o wasve in
rudio propagation.

“Cilobal Positioning Svstem” — A satellite-based network provided by the LS. government which allins
the user thereof to pinpoint precisely his or her location at any place in the world

“GAM™ — Global System for Mohile Communications. A distnbuted open networking aarchitecture
standand for digital wireless systems world-wide

“hand-off” — The act ol transternng conmumication with o mobile umt from one buse station to another
A hand-off transfers a call from the current bise station to the new base staton

“hert> — A measurement of electromagnetic eneney, equivalent o one "wave™ or cvcle per se ol

SDENT — Integnited Dispatch Ealanced Network aDEN s technologs anid o network solution tor
providing communications services in the SMR spectrum

“INFLEXION"” — A technology for providing vowe narros hand PPCS developed by Motorols

“infrastructure equipment” Fizned infrastructure equipment vonsisting ol hase stations hase station
controllers, antennas, switches, management nformation systems amd other equipment making up the
hackbone of the wireless commumcation ssstem that recenes, Transmits and processes sipmals trom and 1o
- shaeriber equipment and/or between wircless systems and the publi suitched telephone network

N dn — North Amercan Interim Standard-digital TDMA sastem specitication
AT kaloherty pone tesand herg
1A Fowal Mulupoint Distobution Sssten A sastem that delivers video prograimmnng services

over microwave channels received by subscnibers with o specul antenna Operates at o higher frequency., tias
more spectrum allocated 1o 11, and has more channel capacity than MMDS

“AMMET - mepaherts (onllions of herg)

mitc el ¢ ell sites wath sl converape sndins Satenna heghis are perally Tow, Beame 40 feet i
hereht or loss

“mvicrowell sire” — comprised of g mucrocell hase stanon and electoeal and transmssion ermimation
equipment. This equipment provides the radio nterfuce hetween the PCS netwark and the customer’s
handset and differs from the mim base station i its feduced phssical dimensions and included antegrated
antennes Phese s are the size of a mcdimm sized suntease, allowing mounting on walls anl poles
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MMDST — Multichannel multuipomt distnibution sz A ssstem that delivers video programiming

services over microwave channels receved by subseribers warh a speaal antenna. Sometimes referred to as
“wircless cable svstems™.

“MTAT Maor Trading Area: A PCS area desipned by Rand MeNally and adopted by the FCC There
are SEAT A< m the inted States

“MTSOT — Mobile Telephone Switching Othee e central computer that connects o cellular phone
call to the public telephone network. The MTSO controls the entire system’s operations, including monitonng
calls, halling and handotls

“Nurrowhand PCS™ — Identifier given by the FOC tor POS spectrum an the 00 Mhy frequency range
SO/SO KHy (parred), 507125 KHe (paired) and S0 KHz (unpaired) were recentls auctioned by the FOA
and purchased by companies such as PageNet, Inc., Miel ATET Corporation, and MohileComm. Narrow -
hand PCS 15 expected to provide advanced data and sorce communications for devives traditionally known s
rudio pagers. including acknowledgment and two-was paging capabihity

“network equipment” — The fixed infrastruciure consisting of hase stations, hase station controllers,
mohile switching centers and related mformation processing control points thit manages communications
between the mobile umit and the public switched telephone network

ST Personal Commumications Services, FOC terminology deseribing intelligent. digital wireless
persomal Dwo-way Communmcations systems,

PO 0T - 1900 MH s GSM-based digital cellular radio technology
“Public Switched Telephony Network™ — The wirchne telephone network
CREFEEXN™" — Two way narrowhand PCS protocol developed by Matorola,

“RET — Radio frequency. Frequencies of the clectromagnetic spectrum that are associated wath radio
wave propagition.

CSMET Specialived Molale Radio, releromg 1o ssstems that serve non-public special mobile commu-
meation markets (lor example, toa cabs) Recent 1CC mulings have pernntied these aperators 1o offer
cellular=like services to the pubhc.

“switeh” — A central facility capable of routing calls from one point to another. Usually o point ol
connection to the PSTN,

“PPMAT — Time Division Multiple Aceess A digital wireless trnsimssion technoliopy that consverts
amadog vorce signals into digital data and puts more than one vorce channel on a single RE channel by
separating the users in time

“ENIVT A multiuser, multitasking operating system
“uplink” — The radio path from o hamdset or mobile user o the cell site

“wireless” — A radio-based system allowing transmission of telephone and/or data sipnads through the
aiewithout a physical connection, such as a metal ware or hiber aptic cable

Cwarefess fowal Lowop” A saatem that chimpnates the need for o owire Toop comnectir, asers te the public
switched telephone network, which s wsed i comventiomal woed telephone systems by Tansntting vone
messages over radio waves for the “last mile” connection between the locanon of the  ustomer's telephone and
a hase staton connected 1o the network equipment
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Through LCC International’s integrated products and services,
the Company has helped design and optimize hundreds
of wireless networks with thousands of cell sites, serving
millions of subscribers worldwide.

LOC and PenCAT are registered trademarics, and the LOC logo Is a registered service mark of LOC Intermational, Inc.




No person has been authorized to give
any information or to make any representa-
tions other than those contained in this Pro-
spectus, and, if given or made, such -
iltllurm.ﬂi:m e n'pt::%q'nlnlium must not be 5-'2501000 ShﬂrEh
relied upon as having been authorized. This
P'rospectus does not constitule an olfer to sell
or the solicitation of an offer to buy any secu-
rities other than those to which it relates or an
offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to
buy such securitics in any circumstances in
which such offer or solicitation is unlawiul.
Neither the delivery of this l"ﬁusprcc:ua nor
any sale made hereunder shall, under any :
tir{umﬁlances, create any implication that LCC lnternatlona]' InC.
there has been no change in the affairs of the
Company since the date hereof or that the
information contained herein is correct as of
any time subsequent to its date.
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Until October 19, 1996, all dealers effecting

transactions in the Class A Common Stock

offered hereby, whether or not participating

in this distribution, may be required to de- .

liver a Prospectus. This is in addition to the September 24, 1996
obligations of dealers to deliver a Prospectus

when acting as underwriters and with respect

to their unsald allotments or subscriptions.




